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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

To,
The Members,
ORIX Leasing & Financial Services India Limited

Your Directors are pleased to present the Fifteenth Annual Report on the business and
operations of your Company together with the audited annual accounts for the financial year
ended March 31, 2021,

(D Financial Performance:

The summary of the Financial Performance of the Company for the Financial Year
2020-2021 as compared to previous financial year 2019-2020 is given below:

(Currency: Indian Rupees In Lakhs)

Particulars 2020-2021 2019.2020
Gross Income
33,869 34,804
Profit/{loss) before interest, depreciation and :
taxation 22,191 26.486
Financial charges
14,767 17,972
Depreciation
947 927
Profit/(lLoss) before tax
6,477 7.587
Provision for tax:
Current Tax
2,918 2,321
Deferred Tax
(1,203) 1,608
Income Tax relfating to previous year
- 18
Profit/(Loss) afier tax
4,762 3,641
Transferred to Reserve Fund
052 731
Balance Carried forward
17,090 13,280

This financial staternent have been prepared in accordance with the Companies
Indian Accounting Standards (referred to as “Ind AS™) Rules, 2015 as prescribed
under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act”) and relevant amendment
rufes issued from time to time.

LPF]
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{In Dividend:

Your Directors have not recommended payment of dividend for the financial year
ended March 31, 2021 since it is proposed to retain the same in the business.

(IIN)  Brief Deseription of the Company’s state of affairs during the year and Review
of Operations of the Company:

With the outbreak of COVID-19 pandemic, the company’s business has been
adversely impacted. While there is no impact an the Finance lease business, loan
against property and Commercial vehicle lending business have been impacted. Due
to the impact on the elients, the collections on these two retail lending business have
taken a hit

Revenue for the company has reduced by 2.69% to INR 3.39Bn and Profit before
Tax reduced by 14.62% to INR 648Mn over the previous year 2019-20

The Company has followed a conservative approach over the last vear and with
COVID -19 impact, the same approach wilt continue over the next few quarters. Loan
moratorium has already impacted the collections and sfuggish GDP forecast and
reduced Auto sales will impact the fresh disbursements for both Loan against
property and Finance lcase business.

The Company is backed by a very strong and supportive shareholder. The parental
support has been demonstrated through corporate guarantees, parent loans, giobal
committed lines and any other means. The active support and confidence from the
shareholder will propel the Company’s growth despite competitive pressures across
business lines and extremely turbulent envirenmental conditions

The Company has a People First Philosophy and all the necessary steps were taken
to ensure the safety and wellbeing of our employees and their families. Workplace
sanitization, rostering of the employee population to prevent overcrowding, closure
of office premises as and when required, and following the requisite covid protocols
were some of the steps taken to keep the employee population protected

The liguidity position of the Company continued to be comfortable. The Credit
worthiness of the company has been revalidated through a revalidation of AAA
rating of our Long Term Debt and A [+ of Short Term Debt. The Cost of Borrowings
during the year were competitive as compared to the market ratcs.

(IV) Capital Adequacv Ratio:

Your Company is well capitalized and has a capital adequacy ratio of 24.60% as at
March 31, 2021 as against the minimumn regulatory requirement of 5% for non-
deposit accepting NBFCs.
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(V)  Credit Rating:

The India Ratings & Research Private Limited (FITCH) have affirmed ratings vide
its letter dated June 09, 2021 for the various facilities availed by the Company,
details of which are given below:

] Facility Rating Amount (Rs. in mn)

' Short Term ' IND Al+ 10575
' Long Term IND AAA 12,922
Non-Convertible Debenture IND AAA 4,000
| Total 27,497

(VD) Borrowings:

Your Company has diversified funding sources from Public Sector Banks, Private
Sector Banks, Foreign Banks and Financial Institutions etc. Funds were raised by
way of term loans, unsecured redeemable non-convertible debentures (NCDs) and
Masala Bond.

All the NCDs issued during the year 2016 and 2017 and listed on Wholesale Debt
Market (WDM) of the National Stock Exchange of India Limited were redeemed
effective September 21, 2020 and all the payment obligations were made to the
Debenture Holders on the due date.

During the year under review, your Company:

(1) raised Rs.3,000 million through term loans from Banks (including Parent
Loan Rs.1,000 million}, Interest payment or principal repayment of the term
loans due as on March 31, 2020 has been paid; and

2) issued Senior, Unsecured, Unlisted, Redeemable, Rated Non-convertible
Debentures on Private Placement basis and raised an amount aggregating to
Rs. 2000 million.

The Company has not received any grievances from the debenture holders. The
assets of the Company which are available by way of security are sufficient to
discharge the claims of the debenture holders as and when they become due.

The Directors of your Company state that there were no material changes and
commitments affecting the financial position of your Company which have occurred
between the end of the financial year March 31, 2021 to which the financial
statements relate and the date of this report.
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(VID) Share Capital:

(1) Authorised Share Capital: The Authorized Share Capitaf of the Company is
Rs. 1.500,000,000 (Rupees Fitteen Hundred Million Only) divided into
150,000,000 (One Hundred Fifty Million Only) Equity Shares of Rs.10/-
each.

(2) Issued. Subscribed and Paid up Share Capital : The Issued Subscribed and
Paid up Share Capital of the Company is Rs. 1.039,359,010/- {Rupees One
Thousand Nine Million, Three Hundred Fifty Nine Thousand and Ten)
divided into 100,935,901/~ (One Hundred Million, Nine Hundred Thirty-five
Thousand Nine Hundred One) Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each.

There was no change in the Share Capital during the year under review.

(VHI) Deposits :

The Company being registered as Non-deposit taking Non-Banking Financial
Company with RBI has not accepted any deposits from the public during the year
under review and shall not accept any deposits from the public without obtaining
prior approval of the RBT,

(IX) Details in respect of adequacy of internal financial controls with reference to the
Financial Statements:

In terms of Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act’), Audit Committee’s
terms of reference, amongst others, includes evaluation of Internal Financial Control
(IFC) and Risk Management Systems. An evaluation of the Company’s Internal
Financial Control (IFC) is a detailed process to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles During the year under review, a detailed exercise was carried by Mr.
Rishikesh Agarwal, an external expert who evaluated the entity level controls;
business process level controls; testing, reporting and monitoring and Risk
Management Systems of the Company so as te evaluate operating effectiveness of
entity level controls on financial reporting process and put in place suitable
remediation plan / compensatory control to minimise or eliminate risk of any nature.

The report provided by Mr. Rishikesh Agarwal did not indicate any material issues
which required attention of the Audit Committee and Statutory Auditors.

(X) Registration as Systematically Important Non-Deposit NBFC:

The Company is a registered Non-Banking Finance Company—Non Deposit —
Systemically Important Company (NBFC-ND-SI) pursuant to the receipt of
Certificate of Registration No. N-13.01981 from the Reserve Bank of India (RBI)
dated December 8, 2010, under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of Tndia Act,
1934, Further, your Company always aims to operate in compliance with applicabie
taws and regulations and employs its best efforts towards achieving the same.

6
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(X1 Auditors:

(1 Statutory Auditors and Statutory Audit Report: Pursuant to the provisions of
Sections 139 and 141 of the Companies Act, 2013, M/s. B S R & Co. LLP,
Chartered Accountants, were appointed as Statutory Auditors of the
Company in the Annual General Meeting of the Company held on July 29,
2016 to hold office from the conclusion of tenth Annual General Meeting
(AGM) until the conclusion of the fifteenth AGM of the Company to be held
in the year 2021,

The observations made by the Auditors’ in their report for the financial year
ended March 31, 2021 are self-explanatory and therefore do not call for any
further comments under section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013,

There are no qualifications, reservations or adverse remarks or disclaimer
made by the Statutory Auditor in their report for the financial year ended
March 31, 2021.

(2) Secretarial Auditor and Secretarial Audit Report: Pursuant to the provisions
of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board of Directors at its
meeting held on March 31, 2021 had appointed M/s. BNP & Associates,
Practicing Company Secretarics, as the Secretarial Auditor of the Campany
to conduct the secretarial audit of the Company for the Financial Year 2020
-21.

There are no qualifications, reservations or adverse remarks or disclaimer
made by the Secretarial Auditor in their report for the financial year ended
March 31, 2021. The Report of the Secretarial Auditor is annexed as
‘Annexure-A’.

(XIT) Statutory Disclosures:

N Pursuant to the provisions of Section 134(3)(a) and Section 92(3) read with
Rule 12 of the Companies (Management and Administration} Rules, 2014,
the Annual Return is uploaded on the website of the Company at ORIX -
OLFS: Reports & Filings (orixindia.com)’.

(2) Disclosure as per Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with
Rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial
Personnel) Rules, 2014 pertaining to individuals employed throughout the
financial year and in receipt of remuneration of not less than
Rs.1,02,00,000/- ( Rupees One Crore and two [akh) per annum or employed
for part of the financial year and in receipt of remuneration of not less than
Rs. 8,50,000/- (Rupees Eight lakh and fifty thousand) per month is given in
*Annexure-B.
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3 Disclosures in terms of Section 197(12) read with Rule 5(1) of the
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnet)
Rules, 2014 are given in *Annexure-C’.

{(H Pursuant to the provisions of Section 134(3)h) read with Rule 8(2)
of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, particulars of the contracts or
arrangements with related parties referred to in section [88(1) in Form AOC-
2 is annexed as “Annexure-D’.

All contracts/ arrangements/ transactions entered into/ by the Company
during the financial year under review with related parties were on arms’
length basis and in the ordinary course of business of the Company. There
have been no materially significant related party transactions, pecuniary
transactions or relationships between the Company and its Promoter,
Directors, Key Managerial Personnel or other designated persons that may
have potential conflict with the interest of the Company.

The Board of Directors of your Company have approved the Refated Party
Transactions Poticy of the Company. During the vear under review, the Board
of Directors based on the recommendations of the Audit Committee,
amended the Policy on Related Party Transactions and the same is uploaded
on the Company’s website at the web-link hups./'www.orixindia.com/pdfOLFS-
policy/corporate-governance/policy/Related%s20Partv%20 Transaction%020Policy pdf
The Policy governs the following:

(1) Identifying related party(ies), updating and maintaining the database
ot such persen/entities;

(2)  Ascertaining that the transaction entered with the related party(ies)
is/are in ‘ordinary course of business of business” and at *arm’s length
basis’;

(3) Identifying related party(ies) transaction;

(4)  Obtaining approvals before entering into any related party(ies)
transaction;

(5)  Determining the disclosures / compliances to be adhered in relation to
the related party(ies) transaction.

Transactions with related parties, as per the requirements of Accounting
Standard 18, are disclosed to the notes to accounts annexed to the financial
statements.

(3 Pursuant to the provisions of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013, the
Board of Directors has, based on the recommendation of the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee (NRC) of the Company, approved the policy on
Directors” appointment and remuneration for Directors, Senior
Management, KMPs and other employees. The said Policy is available on
the website of the Company at Microsoft Word - NRC Policy - OLFS - 2017
(orixindia.com). Further, pursuant to the provisions of Section 134(3)(e). the
Company’s policy on director’s appointment and remuneration including
criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes, independence of a

8
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director and other matters provided under Section 178(3) is alsc annexed as
‘Amnexure-E’.

(6) Disclosures pursuant to the provisions of Rule 8(5) of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014 are as follow:

(a)  There is no proceeding pending under the Insolvency and Bankruptey
Code, 2016.;and

(by There was no instance of one time settiement with any Bank or
Financial Institution.

(XIII) Moratorium of Loans

The RBI had announced Moratorium for 6 months on repayments for the peried
March 2020 to August 2020 for term loans and working capital facilities outstanding
as on February 29, 2020. This was part of the regulatory measures adopted to mitigate
the burden of debt servicing brought about by disruptions on account of COVID-19
pandemic and to ensure continuity ol viable businesses. As part of the scheme and
as per Company's Board approved policy, the Company has provided moratorium to
eligible borrowers. Refer note 46 of Notes to Accounts for disclosure as per circular
on moratorium.

(X1V) Corporate Governance:

The report on Corporate Governance for the Company is annexed as ‘Annexure-F~
and forms an integral part of this Annual Report.

(XV) Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption, Foreign Exchange Farnings
and Qutgo:

(H Conservation of Energy:

The requirements of disclosure with regard to Conservation of Energy in
terms of Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014, arc not applicable to the Company since it does not
own any manufacturing facility.

However, the Company malkes all cfforts towards conservation of energy,
protection of environment and ensuring safety.

(2) Technology Absorption:

Not Applicable

(3) Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo:

There is foreign exchange outgo of Rs.2110.87 lakhs during the financial
year under review.
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(XVD) Details of Subsidiary, Joint Ventntre or Associate Companies

The Company does not have any Subsidiary, Joint Venture or Associate Company

(XVII) Directors and Key Managerial Personnel (KMP):

(1) Pursuant to the re-appointment of Mr. Nagesh Dubey (DIN: 06067617) and
Mr. Abhay Kakkar (DIN: 06659327), Independent Directors, by the Board of
Directors of the Company as mentioned in the previous Annual Report, the
Members in theit 14" Annual General Meeting held on September 25, 2020
approved their re-appointment to hold office as Independent Directors of the
Company not liable to retive by rotation on the Board of the Company for the
period of five vears commencing from March 09, 2020 until March 08, 2025.

(2)  On recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration Committee ot the
Company, the Board of Directors, at its meeting held on July 7, 2020,
appeinted Mr. Yoshiaki Matsuoka (DIN: 08141800) as an Additional Non-
Executive Director of the Company with effect from July 7, 2020. The
Members of the Company in their 14™ Annual General Meeting held on
September 25, 2020, approved his appointment as Director of the Company.

Further the Board of Directors, at its meeting held on March 31, 2021
appointed Mr. Yoshiaki Matsuoka (DIN: 08141800). the existing Director of
the Company as the Chairman of the Board and the Company with effect from
March 31, 2021,

(3)  On recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the
Company, the Board of Directors, at its meeting held on November 04, 2020,
appointed Mr. Takashi Nakayama (DIN: 08768983) as an Additional Non-
Executive Director of the Company with effect from November 04, 2020, The
Members of the Company in their 18" Extra-Ordinary General Meeting held
on December 23, 2020, approved his appotntment as Director of the Company.

(4) On recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the
Company, the Board of Directors, at its meeting held on March 31, 2021,
appointed Mr, Takehiro Onishi (DIN: 09019630) as an Additional Non-
Executive Director of the Company with effect from March 31, 2021 upto the
date of 15" Annual General Meeting of the Company and thereatter subject to
the approval of the Members at the ensuing General Meeting of the Company.

(5)  On recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the
Company, the Board of Directors, at its meeting held on December 11, 2020,
re-appointed Mr. Sandeep Gambhir (DIN: 00083116) as Managing Director of
the Company for the period commencing from January 08, 2021 until March
31, 2021. The Members of the Company in their 18" Extra-Ordinary General
Meeting held on December 23, 2020, approved his re-appointment as
Managing Director of the Company for the period commencing from January

08, 2021 until March 31, 2021.
1¢
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On recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the
Company, the Board of Directors, at its meeting held on March 31, 2021
further re-appointed Mr. Sandeep Gambhir (DIN: 60083116) as Managing
Director of the Company for the period commencing from April 01, 2621 until
March 31, 2024 subject to the approval of the Members in the ensuing General
Meeting of the Company.

(6) Tn the view of organizational changes at ORIX Corporation (Japan), the
Ultimate Holding Company:

(a) Mr. Tkuo Nakamura (DIN 08074714) Director had resigned from the
Board of Directors of the Company with effect from July 03, 2020.

by  Mr. Kiyokazu Ishinabe {DIN 07763966) Director had resigned from the
Board of Directors of the Company with effect from November 04, 2020,

{¢)  Mr. Harukazu Yamaguchi (DIN 03535391), Director and Chairman had
resigned from the Board of Directors of the Company with effect from
March 3§, 2021,

The Board placed on record its sincere appreciation [or the valuable
contribution and services rendered by Mr. lkuo Nakamura, Mr. Kivokazu
Ishinabe as Directors of the Company and Mr. Harukazu Yamaguchi as
Director and Chairman of the Company.

(7 Mr. Sandeep Gambhir (DIN 00083116), Managing Director, Mr. Vivek
Wadhera, Chief Financial Officer and Ms, Meeta Sanghvi (1ICSI Membership
no. A21168), Company Secretary and Compliance Officer arc the Key
Managerial Personnel (KMP) of the Company pursuant to Section 2(31} and
203 of' the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014.

There has been no change in the KMP of the Company during the year under
review.

(XVIIY) Retire by Rotation :

In accordance with Section 152 and other applicable provisions of the Companies
Act, 2013, Mr. Ryohei Suzuki (DIN: 08218888) will retirc by rotation at the ensuing
Annual General Meeting of the Company and being eligible offers himself for re-
appointment at the ensuing Annual General Meeting. The Board recommends his
re-appointment.

(XTX) Declaration from Directors

All the Directors of the Company have confirmed that they satisfy the “fit and

proper” criteria as prescribed under Chapter X1 of RBI Master Direction No.

DNBR. PD. 008/ 03.10.119/2016-17 dated 1st September, 2016 and that they are
11
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not disqualified from being appointed/ continuing as Directors in terms of section
164 of the Companies Act, 2013.

(XX) Declaration from Independent Directors and statement on compliance of code
of conduct

The Company has received declaration from Mr. Nagesh Dubey (DIN: 06967617),
Mr. Abhay Kakkar (DIN: 06659327y and Mr. Rajeev lochan Seth (DIN:
00111866), Independent Directors of the Company confirming that they meet with
the criteria of Tndependence as prescribed under Section 149(0) of Companies Act,
2013. All Independent Directors have submitted the declaration of compliance of
sub-rule (1) and sub-rule (2) of rule 6 of the Companies {Appointment and
Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 to the Board. No transaction was entered
with Independent directors in the vear which could have any material pecuniary
relationship with them. Apart from sitting fees no other remuneration was given to
the above Independent Directors. The Independent Directors have complied with
the Code for Independent Directors prescribed in Schedule I'V to the Act.

The Independent Directors are persons of integrity and possess the relevant
proficicncy, expertise and experience to qualify as Independent Directors of the

Company and are Independent of the Management of the Company.

(XXI) Risk Management and Portfolio quality:

Risk Management is an on-going process. The Board has defined the roles and
responsibilities of the Risk Management Committee and has delegated the
monitoring and reviewing of the Risk Management Plan to the Committee.

The Company is exposed to Credit Risk, Economy Risk, Interest Rate Risk, Asset
Liability Mismatch Risk, Cash Management Risk etc. The expertise in {ending
operations acquired by the Company over past few years has helped to mitigate
credit risk. The Company ensures that the short term and long term resources of
funds are favourably matched with deployment. To avoid any asset liability
mismatch risk, the Company proposes to long term funding instruments such as
Debentures. The Company has continued to enjoy trust and support from its banks
and financial institutions, due to its impeccable record in servicing debts on lime.

The Company has also adopted stringent checks and internal controls across all
branches. Risk function is an independent department without any business
overlays. The Company has implemented necessary control measures to arrest the
operational risk arising from manual processes which are not supported by IT
systems, The Company mitigates its interest rate risk through innovative resource
mobilization technique, prudent fund management etc. Superior credit rating of
company’s financial instruments enables it to raise funds at competitive rates. The
Treasury and Asset Liability Management Committee regularly review the interest
rate risk and liquidity risk.

The risk function is also supervised by the Audit Committee of the Beard from time
to time. The Risk Committee reviews the asset quality and product policy programs
12



/_'___'_,.’---':
== ORIX

ORIX Leasing & Financial Services India Limited vome s wownas oas aue

Financial Services Limited) (A Subsidiary of OR IX Auto Infrastructure Serv ices Limited)

Regqd. Office : Plot No. 84, Marol Co-cperative Industrial Estate, Andheri « Kurla Road, Andheri (E), Mumbai - 400 059
Tel: + 91 22 2859 5093 / 6707 0100 » Fax: +91 22 2852 8549 « Email : infogorixindia.com » www . orix india.com « CIN:U74300MH2005PLC 163937

and the same are duly approved before any new product launches and are reviewed
regularfy. The asset quality of the Company continues to remain healthy.
The ratio of gross non-performing assets to gross advances and net non -performing
assets to net advances as of March 31, 2021 stood at 10.41% and 9.43%
respectively. The specific loan loss provisions that the Company has made for its
non-performing asscts continue to be more conservative than those prescribed by
the regulator,

(XXH) Vigil Mechanism:

The Company has adopted Whistle Blower Policy with a view to provide a vigil
mechanism framework for Directors and employees of the Company to report
genuine concerns. The provisions of this policy are in line with the provisions of the
Section 177(9) and (10) of the Companies Act, 2013. The functioning of vigil
mechanism is reviewed by the Audit Committee from time to time. During the year
under review, the Board of Directors based on the recommendations of the Audit
Commitice, amended the Whistle Blower Policy and the same is uploaded on the
Company’s website at the web-link Microsoft Word - Whistle Blower Policy-
04.11.2020.01LFS {orixindia.com)

The Company conducts regular workshops and training sessions to inform and
educate the employees about Whistle Blower Policy. During the year 2020-2021 the
Company had received one complaint in the form of Whistle Blower under the
Whistle Blower Policy, All the reported incidents were dealt and disposed-off by the
Audit Committee in accordance with the Whistle Blower Palicy of the Company.

(XXIII) Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) :

Your Company’s Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) activities are guided and
monitored by its CSR Committee. The CSR Policy of the Company provides a broad
set of guidelines including intervention areas. The Company believes CSR is a way
of creating shared value and contributing to social and environmental good.
Company’s strategy is lo integrate its activities in community development, social
responsibility and environmental responsibility.

As part of its initiatives under CSR, the Company has initiated partnerships with
implementing agencies for projects in the arcas of Promoting education and
employment enhancing vocation skills amongst women, women empowerment,
healthcare, education. These projects are in accordance with Schedule VII of the
Companies Act, 2013,

The Company believes in achieving its CSR objectives through sustained
intervention by partnering implementing agencies with strong credentials in the
areas the Company seeks to make a difference.

The Company has been circumspect in initiating projects and partnering with
the agencies concerned. The endeavor in the current linancial year has been
building relationships with credible implementing agencies and effective
implementation of projects initiated.

13
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The Company, however, believes that it is well positioned to build on the
foundations put in place in the current year to broaden and accelerate its CSR
interventions in the ensuing vears. The company carried out various philanthropic
and environmental Corporate Social Respensibility (CSR) initiatives throughout the
year.

T

The annual disciosure on CSR activities is annexed herewith as “Annexurg-G

(XXIV) Internal Audit and Compliance:

(1Y Internal Audit:

The Company conducts its internal audit functions within the parameters of
regulatory framework which is well commensurate with the size, scale and
complexity of operations. The internal controls are reviewed and enhanced
periodically.

The Internal Audit Department continuously monitors compliance to internal
processes across the operations to ensure that all assets are safe guarded and
protected against loss from unauthorised use or disposition, that transactions
are authorised, recorded and reported correctly and that operaiions are
conducted in an efficient and cost effeciive manner.

The Internal Audit activities are designed to ensure reporting efficiency and
compliance with the regulations. The Internal Audit Reports are discussed at
fength during the Audit Committee meetings, which also reviews the
adequacy and effectiveness of the internal controls. The Company has
framed the scope and plan of Internal Audit to effectively monitor and
supervise the internal audit function in accordance with the statutory
requirements.

(2)y Compliance:

The Company has set up Compliance Department which is independent of
Internal Audit Functions. The Compliance Functions have a preventive,
advisory and supervisory role, with particular emphasis on:

(a) Facilitating the effective identification of risk of violation of refevant
external requirements, such as compliance with [aws and regulations,
as well as providing advice on risk reduction measures

(b) Developing and facilitating the implementation of internal controls
that will provide the organisation with protection from Compliance
Risk

() Monitoring and reporting on the effectivencess of control measures

(d) Providing the business with advice about acceptable behaviour and
practices in relation to the interpretation of external laws and internal
rules
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{e) Monitoring relevant regulatory developments within the compliance
function’s areas of responsibility
H Ensuring awareness and training

This function is evolving within the organisation and executives of this
department are closely working with ultimate holding company (ORIX
Corporation) Global General Counsel’s Office, which is respensible for
supervising the Compliance [unctions of the Company, so as to adopt best
ethical business practice and behaviour within the organisation. Moreover,
Annual Comptliance Plan has been drawn up and submitted to the Audit
Committee so that concentrated efforts can be made in specific direction for
ensuring that directives of ORIX Corporation are followed 4

The Audit Committee reviews the performance of the internal audit and
compliance functions, the effectiveness of controls and compliance with
regulatory guidefines and gives such directions to the Management as
necessary / considered appropriate.

Since FY 2013-2014 and untif March 31, 2021, the Internal Function was
headed by Mr. Jay Gandhi. He was also made in-charge of the Compliance
Department, an independent department to oversee functions as stipulated
above. Considering the Company’s size, shareholder’s interest and
governance perspective, the Internal Audit function had been segregated
from the Management and accordingly Mr. Jay Gandhi relinquished his
position as Head of Internal Audit and Mr. Akshat Shetty has been appointed
as Head of Internal Audit effective April 1, 2021. Mr. Gandhi will continue
to head other functions such as Legal, Secretarial and Compliance besides
the Company Secretary of holding Company

(XXYV) Particulars of Loans, Guarantees or Investments:

The provisions of Section 186 of the Act pertaining to granting of loans to any
persons or bodies corporate and giving of guarantees or providing security in
connection with loans to any other bodies corporate or persons are not applicable
to the Company, since the Company is Non-Banking Finance Company.

(XXVT) Significant and Material Orders Passed by the Regulators or Courts:
There has been no significant and material order passed by the Regulators or Courts
that would impact the going concern status of the Company and its future

operations.

(XXVI1) Policy on Prevention of Sexual Harassment:

The Company has zero tolerance for sexual harassment at workplace and has
adopted a Policy on prevention, prohibition and redressal of sexual harassment at
workplace in line with the provisions of the Sexual Harassment of Women at
Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 and the Rules

15
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thereunder for prevention and redressal of complaints of sexual harassment at
warkplace. The Company has constituted Internal Complaints Commitlees as per
the above Act. During the year under review, no complaint was received by the
Company under the above Act. Internal Committees under Prevention of Sexual
Harassment Act were conslituted across locations of the Company.

(XXVTIT) Investor Education and Protection Fund (IEPF)

During the vear under review, there were no amount which were required to be
transferred 1o Investor Education and Protection Fund as per provisions of Section
125 of the Companies Act, 2013,

(XXIX) Directars’ Responsibility Statement :

To the best of their knowledge and belief and according to the infermation and
explanations obtained by them, Your Directors make the following statements in
terms of Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013:

(1)  that in preparation of the annual accounts for the financial year ended March
31, 2021, the applicable accounting standards have been followed;

(2) that appropriate accounting policies have been selected & applied
consistently & judgments and estimates made are reasonable & prudent so as
Lo give a true & fair view of the state of aftairs of the Company at the end of
the financial year ended March 31, 2021 and of the profit of the Company
for the said year;

(3)  that proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, for
safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting
fraud and other irregularities;

(4)  that the annual accounts have been prepared on a going concern basis;

(5) the Company has an established internal financial control framework
including internal controls over financial reporting, operating controls and
for the prevention and detection of frauds and errors. The framework is
reviewed periodically by Management and tested by Mr. Rishikesh Agarwal,
an external consultant, appointed by the Management to conduct the internal
audit. Based on the periodical testing, the framework is strengthened from
lime to time to ensure the adequacy and effectiveness of internal financial
controls; and

(6)  that the proper systems are devised to ensure compliance with the provisions
of all applicable laws and that such system were adequate and operating
effectively.
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(XXX) Frauds reported by the Auditor

During the year under review, the Auditors have not reported any instances of
frauds committed in the Company by its officers or employees under sub-section
(12) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013.

(XXXI) Secretarial Standards issued by 1CSI:

Pursuant to the provisions of section 118([0) of the Companies Act, 2013,
compliance with Secretarial Standards refating to General and Board Meeting
specified by the Institute of Company Secretarics of India (ICSI) as approved by
the Central Government have become mandatory from July 1, 2015, The Company
is adhering to the standards issued by the ICSI, including any amendment or
modification as may be notified by them from time to time.

(XXXII) Management Discussiont and Analvsis for F.Y:2020- 2021:

Management Discussion and Analysis Report is as under:

(1Y Industry Structure and Developments — With the backdrop of COVID-19,
the company’s operations have also been impacted. On the Finance lease
business, there has been no impact either or business or on collections.
The automobiie sales were growing in FY 20-21 and hence the finance
lease business continues to do well. Due to client profile in this business,
the collections have also not gotten impacted.

The Loan against property business was curtailed due to dynamic and
unclear market scenario. The company decided to wait for the economy to
recover and get back on track before resuming this business. The
collections have also gotten impacted due to continuous lockdown
scenario Some of the initiatives taken by the government would help
mitigate the impact on the economy but it would take some time for the
company to get back to normal or a pre COVID scenario

The RBI, on 27" March, 2020 announced a moratorium on working
capital and term loans given by financial institutions to their borrowers.
As a result of this, the collection on Loan against property and
Commercial vehicle business has gotten impacted. Further RB came out
with Restructuring guidelines and that would help the clients get back on
track faster.

(2)  Opportunities — Despite the tough external environment, the Company is
very well placed Lo navigate through these turbulent times. The Company
continues to be AAA rated and that would help in fund raising at
competitive pricing. Hence the Company is well equipped to handie
liquidity and interest rate risk.
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Also, the diversification of the portfolio into retail and corporate book has
helped the Company significantly. While there has been impact on the
collections for the retail portfolio, the corporate portfolio of Finance Lease
continues to perform very well and collections haven’t been impacted in
the teasing business. The underlying philosophy for the organization has
been controlled growth and the results have been very encouraging thus
far.

The Company will continue to follow the cautious approach for the next
few quarters. The liquidity position continues to be comfortable and the
shareholder has shown the willingness and ability to help in case of need.

(3} Threats - The biggest challenge in the current market is the impact of
COVID 19. While the Company is working diligently to assess and
mitigate the impact, the real quantum and timing of this on liquidity and
portiolio guality is yet to be seen. The Company also recognizes the threat
that COVID {9 poses to the health and safety of its employees. Hence,
timely and necessary actions were taken to ensure the health and safety of’
the employees and additional steps continue to be taken on an ongoing
basis, as the situation warranis.

) Segment—wise ot product-wise performance of the Company during last
6 vears is as below::

Rs in Mn

SME 2013 | 2016 | 2017 | 2018 | 2019 | 2620 | 2021

Disbursement 98 9161 3,231 17,3381 9,138 | 4,385 623

Balance

Sheet Size 98 949 ¢ 3,538 1 9,821 15,5391 16,475 | 15,272

Revenue ] 61 236 7581 1,551 1,977 2,116
FL 2015 | 2016 | 2017 | 2018 | 2019 | 2020 | 2021

Dishursement | 1,480 | 2,075 | 2,074 1 2,001 | 3,322 | 3,154} 3,303

Balance
Sheet Size 2387 12994 | 3451 13,351 | 4,238 4594 4,491
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Revenue 352 412 460 445 328 656 614
Cv 2015 | 2016 | 2017 | 2018 | 2019 | 2620 | 2021
Disbursement | 1,567 | 2,775 | 2,621 1 4,236 | 2,936 275 -

Balance
Sheet Size 1,815 | 3,403 | 4,398 | 6,297 | 5,822 | 3,591 2,355

Revenue 199 366 543 687 881 624 484

Note: From FY: 2013 io FY 2018 number are as per IGAAP and from
FY 2019 t0 FY 202] number are as per IND AS

(5)  Outlook — The company has maintained a strong performance trajectory
over the past few years, the same has however been impacted due to
COVID 19. The company expects the impact to stay over the short to
medium term. Basis the strong business model, a healthy client base, a
100% secured lending book, comfortable liquidity position and
shareholder support, the company is confident that it would tide over this
crisis as weli. The Company believes that it is well placed vis a vis its
compelition to be able to capitalise on some of the opporlunities that
would come its way once the economy starts opening up in the near future.

(6) Risks and Concerns: Following are the key risks and mitigants of the
Company:

(a)  Credit Risk- The biggest risk for any financing business is the credit
risk that can be a result of poor underwriting/policy or market
downturn. The Company has been extra cautious and conservative
in developing the credit policy and processes. The client selection
process is fairly stringent and the Company believes that it is well
equipped to evaluate credit worthiness of the clients. The credit role
is independent of any sourcing/business roles.

(b) Liguidity Risk - While liguidity is a key risk for any organization,
the Company has worked on various fronts to mitigate these risks.
The Company continues to enjoy an AAA rating for long term debt
and A [+ for short term debt from credit rating agency, it maintains
a robust financial position and has a sound parent backing. The
Company also has diverse funding options and continues Lo

t9
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feverage on strong parent, robust financial performance and highest
credit rating.

{(7)  Material developments in Human Resources / Industrial Relations front,
including number of people emploved:

Listed below are some of key initiatives on development of Human
Resources front:

{a) ORIX India, Senior Management Panel Discussion & Employee
Town Hall - On June 19, 2020 ORIX hosted the panel discussion
with the senior [eadership team to share their perspectives, current
challenges, and existing business opportunities in Covid times. The
essence of the panel discussion was to present a diverse perspective
on the same and educate, inspire, and spark the employee’s curiosity
during such times. Our employees got a chance to learn and interact
with the senior leadership team of the company that included- Mr.
Sandeep Gambhir, Managing Director; Mr. Vivek Wadhera Chiel
Financial Officer -, Business Head BTS - P N Subramanian,
Business Head Lease - Dipankar Sen, and Head HR- Mr.
Manmohan Malik.

Employee Town Hall Meeting: similar employee town meetings
were conducted in quarter 3 which enabled the senior leadership to
keep employees informed.

(b) Training and Development: Provision of a variety of Training &
Development opportunities in FY, 2020-2021 which were aimed at
building employvee capacity to deliver scrvices, meet strategic
needs, and align with the Company’s values, strategic plan, and
overall mission were conducted.

(i}  E-Learning — Training was provided to employees through a
digital platform to meet the objectives and challenges &
accommodated everyone's training needs.

(iiy  Up-Skilling Training — Employees completed self—learning
training through online platforms on multipie topics of their
choice and enhanced their skills and knowledge.

(iiiy POSH Awareness Workshops

Total Man-hours completed in FY. 2020-21: 6080 (On-Roll)
Total Man — Days completed in FY. 2020-21(: 760 (On-Roll)

(¢) Star Awards Program: The company continued with Star Awards
program quarterly for recognition of performance excelience and (o
in-stifl enhancement in motivation levels at the staff levels. The
focus is to encourage those additional efforts taken by employees to
create value addition in the service they provide (o the organization/
customers.
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{d) Wellness Wednesdav: The initiative was introduced to encourage
batance the covid related anxiety and disruption in work life
balance. Employees were providing with a day off to rejuvenate,
with a work-free day were no phone calls, emails, or team meetings.

(e) Emplovee Anniversary & Birthday Wishes: A sense of
community at work is a major contributor to employee satistaction,
and a fun way to build community and foster a climate of
appreciation and recognition is in celebrating work anniversaries &
Birthdays. These two things were imbibed into the system so that
our employees feel appreciation and recognition for their efforts and
loyalty towards the organization. Just as it is essential to recognize
the people we care about on their birthday; it is also crucial to
recognize your employees or co-workers on their corporate
anniversary. A total of 72 employees was recognized for work
anniversaries & 518 on birthdays.

(H  ORIX Awards Night: We believe that we must successfully focus
on cultivating both appreciation and recognition. Hence on the same
lines- ORIX India celebrated the ORIX awards night on 25th
September *2020. The awards nights were broadly segregated into
three categories mainly Individual Awards, Team Awards &
Collaboration Awards and in together 248 employees were awarded
that night.

(g) Buddy Program: The initiative to provide welcoming experience
for new joiners continued through this Program. The buddy partner
essentially helps the new joiner in understanding the formal and
informal culture of the organization, the program helps them in a
smooth transition into a new organization and gets them to know
some quick facts about ORIX and the way we work. The
programmed started in 2018 and is still running successfully.

(hy Emplovee Engagement, Team Building Activities: activities
were carried out regularly to provide a healthy and stress-free
environment to the employee base. These activities fostered
teamwork and stronger bonds and helped in increasing the
happiness and pride quotient. We conducted several of these
activities in the form of festival celebrations, fun contests,
mindfulness activities etc. There were also several welfare activities
conducted to help build comfort and pride in the environment: -

Total Number of Emplovee Engasement Activities: 36 (FY.

2020-21)

(i Yoga day
(ity  Annuoal Sports Festival
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(i) Talent Show on ORIX Awards Night with the employees
and their families.

(i)  Employee HEALTH & Welfare: employees are supported with
medical insurance and term insurance. Medicai insurance for sell
and dependent of family and a term life cover equivalent to 5 times
of the CTC.

(i OMG _— ORIX Mentorship Program: The ORIX Mentorship
Program or OMG was started in April 2019 with the purpose to tap
into the existing knowledge, skills, and experience of senior high-
performing employees and transfer these skills to less expertenced
but high potential employees to enhance their careers. Under this
program, identified employees are assigned to a sentor leader where
they receive advice, counsel, or guidance about their career
aspirations over a defined period.

These senior leaders have helped the mentees manage their careers
better, Some of the key developmental themes are:

- Time management
- Multi-tasking

- Problem Solving

- Public speaking

- Creative Thinking

The said program helped in integrating expert knowledge transfer
through ongoing sessions and assessments to help build leaders of
tomorrow for the company. The mentorship program is in
continuation however due to the pandemic the sessions were
discontinued though these initiatives are up and running. The
success of the program can be measured with the fact that nearly 41
% of the employees enrolled for the program were successful in
getting the next level of elevation in their category of appraisal cycle
just concluded.

{(XXXIII) General:
Your Directors state that no disclosure or reporting is required in respect of the
following items as there were no transactions on these items during the year under

review:

(1) TIssue of equity shares with differential rights as to dividend, voting or
otherwise.

(2)  Issue of shares (including sweat equity shares) to employees of the Company.

]
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(3} No significant or material orders were passed by the Regulators or Courts or
Tribunals which impact the going concern status and Company’s operations

in future.

(4)  Nochange in nature of business.

(5) Material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the
Company between the end of financial year (March 31, 2021) and the date of
the Report - The outbreak of COVID-19 pandemic globally and in India have
caused significant disturbance and slowdown of economic activity.
Operations and revenue have been impacted due to COVID-19.

(XXXTV) Acknowledocements:

We are grateful to the Government of India, Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Reserve
Bank of India, Stock Exchange, Bankers, Investors, rating agency, customers and
all other business associates for their valuable guidance and support and wish to
express our sincere appreciation for their continued co-operation and assistance.
Financial Institutions and other lenders, Customers, Emplovees and other
Stakeholders remained sound during the year under review. We look forward to
their continued support and encouragement.

Your Directors express their deep sense of appreciation for all the employees whose
commitment, co-operation, active participation, dedication and professionalism has
made the organization’s growth possible.
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Annexure-A

FORM NO. MR-3

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 313" MARCH 2021
[Pursuant ta section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 9 of the Companies
{Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,

The Members of

ORIX Leasing & Financial Services india Limited
Fiot No. 94, Marol Co-operative Industrial Estate,
Andher-Kurla Road,

Arwther East,

Mumbai-400059

We have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutery provisions
and the adherence to good corporate practices by ORIX Leasing & Financial Services India
Limited having CIN U74300MH2006P1.C163937 (hereinafter called the ‘Company’) for the
financial year ended on 31% March 2021 (the "Audit Period'/ the 'Year'/ ‘Pericd under review').

We conducied the Secretarial Audit in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for
evaluating the. Company's corporate conducts/ statutory compliances and expressing our
opirion thereon,

We are issuing this report based on:

{i Our verification of the Company's books, papers, minutes books, soft copies of
varicus records, scanned copies of minutes of the Board and its Committees and
Statutory Registers, forms and returng filed and other records sent over mail and
maintamed by the Company;

{3 Compliance certificates confirming compliance with all faws applicable to the
Company given by the Key Managerial Personnei / Senior Managerial Personnel
of the Company and taken on record by the Audit Committee and / or Board of
Directors; and

{ui} Representations made. documents produced and information provided by the
Company, its officers. agents and authorized representatives during our conduct
of Secretarial Audit

We hereby report that, in our opinion, during the audit period covering the financiat year ended
on 313 March 2021, the Company has:

{i) Complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder; and
{ii) Board processes and compliance mechanisms are in place

to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter.

The members are requested to read this report along with our letter of even date annexed to
this report as Annexure-A.
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i Compiiance with specific statutory provisions

We further report that-

1.1, We have examined the books. papers, minutes books, forms and returns filed
and other records maintained by the Company during the year according to the
applicable provisions / clauses of

{i}  The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the Rules made thereunder:

(i} The Depasitories Act 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed
thereunder;

(i}  Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the Rules and Regulations
made thereunder to the extent of External Commercial Borrowing;

{ivi The Securities Confracts (Regulation) Act. 1956 and the rules made
thereunder;

{(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities

and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act) to the extent applicable
for debt listing

{a]  The Securities and Exchange Board of India {Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Reguiations, 2015 (LODR;;

(b]  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of
Debt Securities Regulations,2008. and

(¢ The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider
Trading) Regulations, 2015

{d}  The Securities and Exchange Board of India {Registrars to an [ssue
and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the
Companies Act and dealing with clients;

(vi} Secretarial Standards issued by the Instifute of Company Secretaries of
india.

(vii) We have also examined, on test check basis, the reievant docurnents and
records maintained by the Company with respect to Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934, its Master Directions and notifications to the extent applicable
to the Company.

1.2. During the period under review:

{i) The Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules,
Regulations, Guidelines and Standards as mentioned above.
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(i) Generally complied with the applicable provisions / ¢lausas of

{a} The Act and Rules menticned under paragraph 1.1 (i)

b) FEMA tc the extent of External Commercial Borrowings
mentioned under paragraph 1.1 (i) and

£} (i) The Secretarial Standards on mestings of Board of Directors
(35-1) and on General Meetings (353-2) mentioned under
paragraph 1.1 {vi) above to the extent applicable to the meetings
of Board, Committees constituted by the Board, held during the
review period except for some meetings for which draft minutes
were circulated to all the Directars beyond the prescribed time limit
of 15 days from the date of conclusion of the meeting and hence
these minutes were entered in the minutes book beyond the
prescribed time limit of 30 days as provided in the Secretarial
Standard-1. The compliance of the provisions of the Rules made
under the Act with regard to the meetings of the Board and if's
Committees held through video conferencing was verified based
on the minutes of the meetings provided by the Company.

(iiy The Secretarial Standard on General Meetings (585-2) in
respect of the 14% Apnual General Meeting held on 25%
September 2020 and 18" Extra Ordinary General Meeating held on
23" Decamber 2020

{d) We are informed that

{iy During the year under review, in an investigation of a case under Whistle Blow

mechanism, a fraud caused by a set of borrowers with the Company in
Commercial Vehicle Depadment was ascertained which was done by these
borrowers by ereation of fake documents of used commercial vehicles such as
Registration Certificate/s and Insurance Policy copies and against these
documents valuation repert/s were submitted through Valuer. These borrowers
obtained loan initially, in the financial year 2016-2017, aggregating to ¥ 804.45
Lakhs against these used vehicles and by submitting fake documents. We are
also informed that, it was later ascertained that most of these borrowers have
caused fraud with other banks and financial institutions following the
same modus operendl. The said instance of fraud is under investigation by the
Police Department and has heen reported to the Audit Committes and the
Board of Directors of the Company as well as to Reserve Bank of India through
prescribed Returns. We are also informed that the Company has mads
relevant provision in the Books of Accounts, for the year under review.

There was no instance of sexual harassment case reported,

We are informed that, during / in respect of the year, the Company was not
required to initiate any compliance related action in respect of the following laws
{ rides / regulations / standards and was conseqguently not reguired to maintain
any books, papers, minute books or other records or file any forms/ returns
thereunder.
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(i} Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the Rules and Regulations
made thereunder to the extent of Overseas Direct Investment and Foreign
Direct Investment;

(i) The foliowing Requlations and Guidelines prescribed under the SEBI Act -

a.  The Securities and Exchange Board of india (Issue of Capital and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018,

b, The Securities and Exchange Board of india (Delisting of Equity
Shares) Regulations, 2009,

c.  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee
Benefits) Regulations, 2014;

d.  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities)
Regulations, 2018, and

& The Securities and Exchange Boeard of India (Substantial Acquisition
of Shares and Takeovers) Reguiations, 2011,

2. Board processes:
We further report that:
2.1 The Board of Directors of the Company as on 31% March 2021 comprised of:

(i A Managing Director;

(iiy Five Non-Executive Non-Independent Directors (Includes One Additional
- Director); and

{iliy Three Non-Executive Independent Directors

2.2 The processes relating to the following changes in the composition of the Board of
Directors during the year were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the
Act and LODR:

) Resignation of Mr. Ikuo Nakamurag (DIN:- 08074714) as a Director of the
Company w.e f 03" July 2020

{i) Appoirdment of Mr. Yoshiaki Matsuoka (DiN:- 08141800). as a Director,
who was appointed as an Additional Director by the Board of Directors on
07" July 2020 and | the same was regularized at the 14" Annual General
Meeting held on 25" September 2020, He was alsc appointed as Chairman
of the Board and the Company by the Board of Directors in their meeting
held on March 31, 2021,

Re-appointment of Mr. Nagesh Dubey {DIN:- 08967617) as an
independent Director of the Company for a period of 5 years from 09"
March 2020 to 08" March 2025 at the 14™ Annual General Meeting held
on 25" September 2020
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{iv) Re-appointment of Mr Abhay Kakkar (DIN:- 08859327) as an Independent
Director of the Company for a period of 5 years fram 097 March 2020 to
08" March 2025 at the 147 Annual General Meeting held on 25"
September 2020

(v) Resignation of Mr, Kiyokazu Ishinable (DIN:-07763866) as a Director of the
Company w.e.f 04" November 2020

{viy  Appointment of Mr Takashi Nakayama (DiN:-08768983) as an Additional
Director (Non-Executive Director) by the Board of Directors w.ef 04"
November 2020 subject to Shareholders approvat at the ensuing General
Meeting . for his appeintment as a Director and this was regularized by the
Shareholders at the 18" Extra-Ordinary General Meeting held on 23"
December 2020,

{(vity, The Board of Directors of the Company, at #s meeting held on 11"
December 2020, recommended the re-appointment of Mr. Sandeep
Gambhir (DIN:-00083118) as the Managing Director of the Company for
the period from 08" January 2021 to 31* March 2021, and the same was
approved by the Shareholders at the 18" Extra Ordinary Generat Meeting
held on 23 December 2020, His term as Managing Director was further
extended by the Board of Directors at its meeting heid on 31°" March 2021,
for the pericd from 013 April 2021 (o 31% March 2024, subject to approval
of the Shareholders at the ensuing General meeting.

fvilly  Re-appointment of Mr. Harukazu Yamaguchi (DIN:- 035353981) who retired
hy rotation | at the 14™ Annual General Meeting of the Company held on
257 September 2020, Subsequently, Mr. Harukazu Yamaguchi tendered

. his resignation as a Director of the Company w.e.f 31" March 2021

{ix) The Board of Directors at its meeting hald on 31% March 2021, appointed
Mr, Takehwo Onishi {(DIN:- 09019630) as an Additional Director we.f
31.03 2021, subject to approval of the Shareholders at the ensuing
General meating.

2.3 Adeguate notices were given to all the Direclors to enabile them to pian their
schedule for the meetings of the Board and its Committees, except for tew
meetings which were convened at shorter notice to transact urgent business.

2.4 Notices of the meetings of the Board and it's Commiitees were sent to the
directors at least seven days in advance except for the few meetings convened at
shorter notice, at which more than one independent directors were present as
required under Section 173 (3) of the Act and 55-1.

2.5 Agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent to the directors at least seven
days before the Board meetings, other than for the few meetings convened at
shorier nolice.

2.6 Agenda and detailed notes an agenda for the following items were either circulated
separately less than seven days before or at the Board meetings and consent of
the Board for so circulating them was duly obtained as required under $5-1

{N Supplementary agenda notes and annexures in respect of unpubtished
price sensitive information such as audited financial statement / results,
unaudited financial results and connected papers; and
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{1} Additional subjects/ information/ presentations and supplementary notes

27 A system exists for directors to seek and obtain further information and
clarifications on the agenda items before the mesting and for their meaningful
participation at the meetings.

2.8 We note from the minutes verified that, at {he Board meetings held during the year.

{1y Decisions were carried through the majority of the Board; and

(i} No dissenting views were expressed by any Board member an any of the
subject matters discussed. which were required to be captured and recorded
as a part of the minutes

3. Compliance Mechanism

There are reasonably adequate systems and processes prevalent in the Company,
commensurate with its size and operations, to monitor and ensure compliance with
applicabie laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

4. SpecHic events / actions

We further report that during the audit period, the following specific events/ actions
having a major bearing on the Company's affairs took place -

A Subgect to the approval of the members of the Company |, at the ensuing generat
meeting, approval of the Board of Directors was accorded at their meeting held on 31%
March, 2021, for the alteration of the Articles of Association of the Company . and the
following Resolution was passed:

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to provisions of section 14 and other applicable
provisions., if any, of the Companies Act, 2013, (including any statutory modifications
or re-enactment thereof, for the time being in force) and subject to the approval of the
Members of the Company, consent of the Board of Directors be and is hereby
accorded for:

(1) alteration of the Articles of Association of the Company by:

. Amending Article Nos &, 15(a), 27, 28, 102, 106, 111, 115, 120, 121, 122, 123, 124,
125, 128, 128, 131, 138, 163, 183, 185 and 187;

i Deletion of existing Article No 126 and thereby renumbering further Article Nos 127 to
237 as 126 t0 236,

AND
(2) replacing the aforesaid Articles Nos with new Article Nos and that the new set of

_Articies of Association of the Company, as tabled before the meeting far the purpose
-of identification of the Board, due to alterations as aforesaid.”
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RESOLVED FURTHER THAT any one of the Director of the Company ar the Company
Secretary be and is hereby authorized severally to do all acts, deeds. matters and
things as deem necessary, proper or desirable and to sign and executa all necessary
documents, applications and returns for the purpose of giving effect to the aforesaid
resolution including filing of forms with the Ministry of Corporate Affairs and furnishing
of certified true copy of the resolution as and when required.”

B During the year under review, the Company issued and afiotted 2000 Senior,
Unsecurad, Unlisted, Redeemahie, Rated Non-Convertible Debentures, aggregating
to Rs. 200 Crore, on private placement basis, on 177 December 2020 and redeemed
2,000 secured, listed, Non-Convertible Debentures, aggregating to an amount of Rs.
200 Crore, in various franches on their respective maturity date/s,

Venkataraman Krishnan
Assaciate Partner

ACS No.:-8897/ COP No.:- 12459
For BNP & Associates

Company Secretaries

[Firm Regn. No. P2014MH037400]
[PR MNo.:-637 F 2019]

UDIN:- A008897C 000545037

Place:- Mumbai
Date:- 30.06.2021
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Annexure A to the Secretarial Audit Report for the financial year ended
31" March 2021

To,
The Members,
ORIX Leasing & Financial Services India Limited

Our Secretarial Audit Report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1. The Company's management is respensible for maintenance of secretanal records and
compliance with the provisions of corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations and
standards. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the secretarial records produced for
o audit,

2. Wa have followed such audit practices and processes as we considered appreopriate o
obtain reasonable assurance about the correciness of the contents of the secretanal records.

3. We have considered compliance related actions taken by the company based on
ndependent legal fprofessional opinion obiained as baing in compliance with law.

4. We have verified the secretarial records furnished to us on a test basis {o see whether the
correct facts are reflected thersin. We have also examined the compliance procedures
followed by the company on a test basis. We believe that the processes and practices we
followed, provide a reasonable basis for cur opinion.

5. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books
of Accounts of the Company.

6. We have obtained the management's representation about the compliance of laws, rules
and regulations and happening of events, wherever required.

7. Our Secretarial Audit Report is neither an assurance as to the future viabdity of the Company
nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of
the Company.

Venkataraman Krishnan
Associate Partner

ACS No.:-8897/ COP No.:- 12458
For BNP & Associates

Company Secretaries

[Firm Regn. No. P2014MH037400]
[PR No.:-637 / 2019]

UDIN:- A008897C000545037

Place:- Mumﬁai
Date:- 30.06.2021

Page 8ol 8

A/102, 1" Floor, Ramkrupa CHS, Abhove Indusind Bank , SVP Road, Borivali{West), Mumbai-400 052
T:+91 22 2890 0426/ 2880 0176 Email: support@bnpassociates.in Website: www.bnpassociates.in



=== ORIX

ﬁ

ORIX Leasing & Financial Services India Limited wmetkoumss ons o

Financial Services Limited) (A Subsidiary of OR X Auto Infrastructure Serv ices Limited)

Regd. Office : Plot No. 34, Marol Ca-operative Industrial Estate, Andheri - Kurla Road, Andheri {E), Mumbai - 400 059

Tel: + 91 22 2859 5093 1 8707 3100 « Fax: +81 22 2852 85§49 « Email : info@orixindia.cont « www . arix india.com « CIN;L74900MH2008PLE 163337

Annexure-B

Disclosures in terms of Section 197(i2) read with Rule 5(2) of the Companies

{Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014

Name  of [Designa Remuneratio [Natnre of [Qualifica |[Date  of {Age|Last The % ofRelative of
the tion n Received iEmplovme jtion and |{Commen Emplovment Equity any Direefy
Employee {Amgunt in ot Experien |cement of held  befargShares or Manage
Rs.) ce Employm joining ___theheld by the
ent Company  |employees
Full Time { B.E., 04-04- 48 lndiabulls Nil Nil
Gaurav Exezcutive| 1,15,16,739 | Employme | PGDBM, | 2014 Housing
Bhatia Vice nt 25 Years Finance Ltd
President of
Experien
ce
Sandeep Full Time | B.8C,, 30-09- 44 0Id  Hand | Nil Nil
Sinha Executive| 1,04,49.405 | Employme | MBA 2014 Consultants
Vice nt 20 Years [ndiz Private
President of Limited
Experien
ce
Full Time | B.COM, | 01-04- 40 KPMG India | Nil Nil
Executi Employme | MMS, 2019 Private
Harish ve Vice | 1,24,09,005 | nt CFA [imited
Indru Preside CHART
Advani nt ER
HOLDE
R
17 Years
of
Experien
ce
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Annexure-C

Information as per Rule 5 (1} of Chapter XIII. the Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Manaserial Personnel) Rules, 2014

H The ratio of the remuneration of each director to the median remuneration of
employees of the Company for the financial year is Nil.

(2) There was no increase in remuneration of Directors, Chief Financial Officer or
Manager in the Financial Year 2020-2021. There was 0.39% increase in
remuneration of Company Secretary in the said Financial Year.

(3) During the year under review, there was 9% increase in the median remuneration of
the employees of your Company.

(4) As on March 31, 2021 there were 192 permanent employees on the rolls of your
Company.

(5) During the year under review, the net income of your Company grew and the
hike was in consonance with the wage hike given by the Industry. Further, in
comparison to the growth of the Company, the average increase in remuneration paid
to Managerial Personnel and the average increase in remuneration for rest of the
employees was depending on the individual and business unit performance.

(6} [t is affirmed that the remuneration paid is as per the Nomination and Remuneration
Policy adopted by the Company.
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Annexure-D

Related Party Transaction Disclosure as per Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013

Form No. AOC -2

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub - section (3} of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8 (2) of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts / arrangements entered into by the
company with related parties referred to in sub - section (1) of section 188 of the
Companies Act, 2013 including certain arms-length transactions under third proviso
thereto

(H Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis: Nil

(2) Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm’s length basis:

(a) 1 Name(s) of the related party and (i) ORIX Corporation, Japan -Ultimate

nature of relationship holding Company

(ii) ORIX Auto Infrastructure Services
Limited - Holding company

(iii) ORIX Housing Finance Corporation
India Limited - Fellow Subsidiary

(iv) Infrastructure Leasing and Financial
Services Ltd - Fellow Subsidiary.

(b) |WNature of Normal business transactions (Mentioned
coniracts/arrangements/transactions | in the notes forming part of the financial
statements at Note no. 38).

(¢} | Amount As mentioned in the notes forming part
¢ LAY
of the financial statements at Note no. 38,

(d) | Duration of the

contracts/arrangements/ Usually annual, however depends on the
transactions nature of transaction,

(e) Salient terms of the contracts or Maintained at arm’s length similar to
arrangements or transactions third party contracts. Value of such
including the value, if any transactions during the financial year is

mentioned in the notes forming part of
the financial statements at Note no. 38.

(f) {Justification for entering into such | Competitive pricing and value of

contracts or arrangements or services

transactions rendered.
{gy |Date(s) of approval by the Board, |N.A.

if any

(h) | Amount paid as advances, if any N.A.

Note: No advance is payable in respect of any of the above transactions.
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Annexure-E

Details of Nomination and Remuneration Policy as per Scction 178 of the Companies
Act, 2013:

{I) Appointment / Nomination criteria and qualifications:

(1 Director and KMP:
{a) Criteria; The Committee shall identify and ascertain the infegrity,
expertise and experience of the person for appointment as a Director
and KMP and recommend to the Board for his / her appointment.

{b) Qualification: A person should possess adequate qualification for the
position he / she is considered for appointment. The Committee has
the discretion to decide whether qualification, expertise and
experience possessed by a person are sufficient / satisfactory for the
concerned position.

(2) Senior_Management Personnel: The Managing Director in consultation
with Human Resource Department shall identify and appoint SMP based on

their qualification, expertise and experience for the concerned position or
level.

(XI) Term/Tenure:

() Managing Director/Whole-time Director:

(a) The Company may appoint or re-appoint any person as its Managing
Director/Whole-time Director for a term not exceeding five years at
a fime.

(b) The Company shall not appoint or continue the employment of any
person as Managing Director/Whole-time Director/ who has attained
the age of seventy years. Provided that the term of the person holding
this position may be extended beyond the age of seventy years with
the approval of sharcholders by passing a special resolution based on
the explanatory statement annexed to the notice for such motion
indicating the justification for extension of appointment beyond
seventy years.

() Independent Director:

() An Independent Director shall hold office for a term up to five
consecutive years on the Board of the Company and will be eligible
for re-appointment as per the criteria laid down by the Act and
Regulations as amended from time to time.
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(b No Independent Director shall hold office for more than two
consecutive terms of 5 years, but such Independent Director shall be
eligible for appointment after expiry of three years of ceasing to
become an Independent Director.

(Ill)  Evaluation of Director, KMP and SMP;

The Committee shail carry out evaluation of performance of every Director
based on detailed performance parameters, as per applicable Regulations. The
performance parameters includes, but not limited to the following;

(1) Expertise;

(2) Objectivity and Independence;

(3) Guidance and support in context of life stage of the Company;

(4) Understanding of the Company’s business;

(5) Understanding and commitment to duties and responsibilities;

(6) Willingness to devote the time needed for effective contribution to Company;

') Participation in discussions in effective and constructive manner;

3] Responsiveness in approach; and

9 Ability to encourage and motivate the management for continued
performance and success.

The performance evaluation of KMP (other than Managing Director/Whole
Time Director}) aund Senior Management Personmel shall be done as per the
prevailing Human Resource Policy and Human Resource process framework
implemented by the Company from time to time, in consultation with the
Managing Director of the Company.

(IV) Retirement:

The Director, KMP and Senior Management Personnel shall retire as per the
applicable provisions of the Act or under the Regulations and the prevailing HR
policy of the Company, as the case may be. The Board will have the discretion to
retain the Director and KMP in the same position / remuneration or otherwise even
after attaining the retirement age, for the benefit of the Company, subject to
compliance of Regulations, if any, and prevailing HR Policy of the Company, as the
case may be. Further, the Competent Authority as specified in the Employee Hand
Book of the Company will have the discretion to retain the SMP in the same
position/remuneration after attaining the retirement age.

{V} Remgval:

Due to reasons for any disqualification mentioned in the Act; or Regulations or
breach of Company’s prevailing HR policy of the Company, the Committee may
recommend to the Board with reasons recorded in writing, removal of a Director and
KMP, Senior Management Personne!l may be removed from the employment of the
Company due to breach of Company’s HR Policy or code of conduct or other
employee related policies or performance related aspects. The decision of Managing
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Director, Director representing ORIX Corporation i.e. Ultimate Holding Company
and HR Head shal! be final in this regard,

VD Remuneration fo_Managing Director/Whole Time Director:

{1) Fixed pay:

The Managing Director/Whole-time Director shall be eligible for a monthly
remuneration as may be approved by the Board on the recommendation of
the Committee. The breakup of the pay scale and quantum of perquisites
including, employer’s contribution to provident fund, pension scheme,
medical expenses, club fees etc. shali be decided and approved by the Board
on the recommendation of the Committee and approved by the shareholders
and Central Government, wherever required.

) Minimum Remuneration:

If, in any financial year, the Company has no profits or its profits are
inadequate, the Company shall pay remuneration to its Managing Director/
Whole-time Director / in accordance with the provisions of Schedule V of
the Companies Act, 2013 and with the approval of the Central Government
approval, if and to the extent required.

(%) Other Provisions:

{a) The remuneration / compensation / commission etc. to the Managing
Director/ Whole Time Director, will be determined by the Committee
and recommended to the Board for approval. The remuneration /
compensation / commission etc. shall be subject to the approval of
the shareholders of the Company and Central Government, whersver
required as per law.

{b) The temuneration and commission to be paid to the Managing
Director/Whole Time Director shall be in accordance with the
percentage / slabs / conditions as per the provisions of the Act, as
amended from time to time.

(c) Increments to the existing remuneration / compensation structure
shall be recommended by the Committee.

(VII) Insurance Premium:

Where any insurance is taken by the Company on behalf of its Managing Director,
SMP or KMPs for indemnifying them against any liability, the premium paid on such
insurance shall not be treated as part of the remuneration payable to any such
personnel.
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The Company shall take Director and Officer Liability Insurance Policy on annual
basis.

(VIII) Remuneration to Non- Exccutive / Independent Director:

(1) Sitting Fees:

The Non- Executive / Independent Director may receive remuneration by
way of fees for attending meetings of Board or Committee(s) thereof and in
line with the applicable provisicns of the Act.

)] Commission:
Commission may be paid within the monetary limit approved by
shargholders, subject to the limits/ slabs and conditions mentioned in the
Articles of Association of the Company and as per the Act, as amended from

time to time.

(IX) Remuneration of KMP and SMP:

The remuneration determined for the KMP and SMP shall be in line with the
Company’s philosophy to provide fair compensation to key executive officers based
on their performance and contribution to the Company and to provide incentives that
attract and refain key executives, instiil a long term commitment to the Company,
and develop a pride and sense of Company ownership, all in a manner consistent
with shareholder interests.

The remuneration of KMP and SMP shall be decided by Managing Director of the
Company in consultation with the HR department.

(X) Remuneration_of other employees:

Apart from Directors, KMP and SMP, the remuneration of rest of the employces
will be determined on the basis of the role and position of the individual employee,
including professional experience, responsibility, job complexity and local market
conditions in compelitive environment.

The Company considers it essential to incentivize the workforce to ensure adequate
and reasonable compensation to the staff. The Human Resources Department shall
ensure that the level of remuneration motivates and rewards high performers who
perform according to set expectations in their respective domain.

The various remuneration compenents, basic salary, allowances and perquisites may
be combined to ensure an appropriate and balanced remuneration package.

The annual increments to the remuneration paid to employees shall be determined
based on the annual appraisal carried out by Head of various Departments and as
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per the HR Policy and Process of the Company as may be applicable from time to
time.

() Company’s Philosophy on Corporate Governance:

The Company’s philosophy on Corporate Governance is aimed at assisting the
management of the Company in the efficient conduct of its business and meeting its
obligations to stakeholders and is guided by a strong emphasis on transparency,
accountability and integrity. Your Company has adopled a Board approved Internal
Guidelines on Corporate Governance which has helped the Company in attaining its
objectives/goals, since it encompasses every sphere of operations, management,
action plans, internal controls, performance measurement and regulatory disclosure.
The said Interna! Guidelines on Corporate Governance has been uploaded on the
Company’s website at Microsoft Word - Internal Guidelines on Corporate
Governance - 09112016 (orixindia.com) which was approved by the Board of
Directors in their meeting held on November 9, 2016.

{Inh Board of Directors:

During the year the Board met at regular intervals to discuss and decide on various
business and policy matters of the Company. The meetings of the Board of Directors
during the Financial Year 2020 — 21 were held on, July 07, 2020, November 04,
2020, November 13, 2020, December 11, 2020 and March 31, 2021. At least one
meeting was held in every quarter and the time gap between any two meetings was
fess than 120 days except for the meeting not held during the quarter ending June
30, 2020 and the gap of meeting held between February 26, 2020 and July 7, 2020
was more than 120 days. The same was pursuant to MCA notification no. 11/2020
dated March 24, 2020 regarding increasing the interval between holdings of 2 board
meetings from 120 days to 180 days until September 30, 2020 in view of pandemic
caused by COVID-19.

The present strength of Board of Directors is Nine {9) Directors. The Board
comprises of Nine (9) Non-Executive Directors including three (3) Independent
Directors and onec Woman Director. The Non-Executive Directors bring independent
judgment in the Board’s deliberations and decisions. None of the Directors of your
Company are related to each other.

The Directors of the Company have wide experience in the field of finance, risk
management, banking and human resources.
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The details of aitendance of the Board of Directors as at March 31, 2021 are as under:

Sr.No. Name of Director No. of Board Last AGM
Meetings Attended
Attended
(N Mr. Yoshiaki Matsuoka, Director and 5 Yes
Chairman
(2) Mr. Sandeep Gambhir, Managing 3 Yes
Dirgctor
(3) Mr. Ryohei Suzuki, Director 5 Yes
(4) Mr. Takashi Nakayama 4 Not
Applicable
(3 Mr. Abhay Kakkar, Independent 5 No
Director
{6) Mr. Nagesh Dubey, Ind-ependent 5 Yes
Director
(N Mr, Takehiro Onishi, Additional i Not
Director Applicable
(8 Mr. Raieev Lochan Seth, Independent 5 Yes
Director
(9} Ms. Gouri Sawant, Director 5 Yes
(10) | Mr. Harukazu Yamaguchi, Director 4 Yes
and Chairman
{12) | Mr. Kivokazu Ishinabe, Director 2 Yes
(13) | Mr. Tkuo Nakamura, Director 0 Not Applicable

(IIMy  Committees of the Board of Directors:

{H Composition:
Sr. No. Name of the Committee Composition of the Committee
(a) Audit Committee Mr. Takashi Nakayama — Chairman
Mr. Nagesh Dubey

32



ﬁ
=2 ORIX

ORIX Leasing & Financial Services India Limited come iyxmcmas oas auo

Financial Services Limited) (A Subsidiary of OR |4 Auto Infrastructure Services Limiled)

Regd. Office : Plot No. 94, Marol Co-operative industrial Estate, Andharl - Kurlz Road, Andheri (E), Mumbai - 400 059

Tel: + 91 22 2858 5093 / 6707 0100 » Fax; +91 22 2852 8649 » Emall : infe@oarixindia.com « www . arix india.com - SIN:UT4900MH2006PLC 163937

Mr.

Abhay Kakkar

(b)

Nomination and Remuneration
Committee (NRC)

Mr,

Takashi Nakayama - Chairman

Mr.

Abhay Kakkar

Mr.

Nagesh Dubey

. Ryohei Suzuki

{c)

Treasury and Asset Liability
Management Committee

. Takashi Nakayama- Chairman

. Sandeep Gambhir

. Ryohei Suzuki

(d)

*Executive Committee

. Takashi Nakayama

. Sandeep Gambhir

. Ryohei Suzuki

()

Risk Management Committee

. Takashi Nakayama - Chairman

. Sandeep Gambhir

. Ryohei Suzuki

o)

Carporate Social Responsibility
(CSR) Committee

. Takashi Nakayama - Chairman

. Sandeep Gambhir

. Abhay Kakkar

IT Strategy Committee

. Abhay Kakkar - Chairman

. Sandeep Gambhir

. Harvinder Gandhi

. Gaurav Bhatia

. Vivek Wadhera

. Jay Gandhi

. Ryohei Suzuki

. Sandeep Sinha

. Dipankar Sen

(h)

IT Steering Commifttee

. Abhay Kakkar - Chairman

. Sandeep Gambhir

. Harvinder Gandhi

. Gaurav Bhatia

. Vivek Wadhera

. Jay Gandhi

. Ryohei Suzuki

. Sandeep Sinha

. Dipankar Sen
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*During the year under review:
b

(1) the Credit Committee, Residual Value Committee and were dissolved and their
powers were consolidated in the Executive Committee of the Company
effective March 31, 2021; and

{2} The Allocation and Allotment Committee was also dissolved and its powers
were consolidated in the Treasury & Asset Liability Management Committee

of the Company effective March 31, 2021,

{2) Powers of the Committees:

(D Audit Committee: The key responsibilities of the Commitiee are:

(A)  Fiancial Reporting:

(hH To oversee the financial reporting process,
accounting controls and disclosure of financial
information to ensure that financial information
report is sufficient and credible;

(2) To review Related Party Transaction {(RPT) Policy of
the Company on a periodic basis and approve, in
terms of the RPT Policy, any Related Party
Transactions i.e. transactions of the Company of
material nature with Related Parties as defined under
section 2(76) of the Companies Act, 2013 that may
have potential conflict with the interests of Company
at large including modification in such transactions;

3) To review audited / unaudited / limited review of the
annua! and/or semi-annual financial statements
before submission to the Board focusing primarily
on:

(a) the application of significant accounting
policies and any changes to them;

(b) the methods used to account for significant
or unusual fransactions;

(©) Compliance with accounting standards;

(d) Significant adjustments arising out of audit;
{e) Qualifications in draft audit report;

H Areas involving  significant judgement,

gstimation or uncertainty and the provisions
in the financial statements;
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{g) Compliance with legal and regulatory and
financial reporting requirements; and

(h} To review Auditors’ Report on annual /
semi-annual financial statement before
submission to the Board;

4 To approve and ratify write offs amount upto the
limit specified in Approval Authority Matrix (AAM)
and report to the Board of Directors such write offs;

5 To recommend to Board for approval of write offs of
an amount exceeding the threshold limits of Audit
Committee, as specified in AAM, which requires
approval of the Board

(6) Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments;

(7 To note valuation of undertakings or assets of the
Company, wherever necessary,

{8) Monitoring the end use of funds raised through
public offers and related matters;

3 Auditor (External Auditor) :
The Committee shalk:

(D) consider and make recommendations to the board, to
be put to shareholders for approval at the Annual
General Meeting, in relation to the appointment, re-
appointment and removal of the Company's
Statutory Auditor (External Auditor);

(2) review and monitor the External Auditor’s
independence and performance and effectiveness of
audit process

3 if an External Auditor resigns, investigate the issues
leading to this and decide whether any action is
required;

(4 oversee the relationship with the external
auditor. In this context the Commitiee shall:

(a) approve their remuneration, including both
fees for audit and non-aodit services, and
ensure that the level of fees is appropriate to
enable an effective and high-quality audit to
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be conducted;

{b) approve their terms of engagement, including
any engagement letter issued at the start of each
audit.

() Holding discussions with Statutory Auditors
before the audit commences regarding nature
and scope of audit as well as post audit
discussions on any areas of concern;

(5)  satisfy itself that there are no relationships between
the auditor and the company (other than in the
ordinary course of business) which could adversely
affect the auditor’s independence and objectivity;

(6) evaliate the risks to the quality and effectiveness of
the financial reporting process in the light of the
external auditor's commumnications with  the
Committee;

() meet regufarly with the external auditor (including
once at the planning stage before the audit and once
after the audit at the reporting stage) and, at least
once a year, meet with the external auditor without
management being present, to discuss the auditor's
remit and any issues arising from the audit

(%) discuss with the external auditor the factors that
could affect audit quality and review and approve the
annual andit plan, ensuring it is consistent with the
scope of the audit engagement, having regard to the
seniority, expertise and experience of the audit team;

9 review the findings of the audit with the external
auditor. This shall include but not be limited to, the
following:

(a) a discussion of any major issues which arose
during the audit;

(b) key accounting and audit judgements;

{©) the auditor's view of their interactions with
senior management; and

(d) levels of errors identified during the audit;

(10) review the management letter and management's
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response to  the auditor's findings and
recommendations.

(11) review the effectiveness of the audit process,
including an assessment of the quality of the audit,
the handling of key judgements by the auditor, and
the auditor's response lo questions from the
Committee.

(12)  Discusses problems and reservations arising from the
interim and/or the final audits {full or limited review)
and any matters the statutory auditor may wish to
discuss so as to ascertain quality and veracity of
Company’s accounts.

<) Internal Control ;

(hH keep under review the company's internal financial
controls systems that identify, assess, manage and
monitor financial risks, and other internal control
and risk management systems including
information technology security and control; and

(2) Understand the scope of internal and external
auditors’ review of internal control over financial
reporting and obtain reports from significant findings
and recommendation, together with management’s
responses.

3 review and approve the statements to be included
in the annual report conceming internal control,
risk management

(D) Internal Audit:
The Committee shall:
() approve the Internal Audit Charter.

(2) approve the appointment or termination of the Head
of Internal Audit;

(3) review and approve the role and mandate of internal
audit, monitor and review the effectiveness of its
work;

(4) review and approve the annual internal audit plan
and scope to ensure it is aligned to the key risks of
the business, and receive regular reports on work
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carried out;

(5 ensure internal audit has unrestricted scope, the
necessary resources and access to information to enable
it to fulfil its mandale, ensure there is open
communication between different functions and that
the internal audit function evaluates the effectiveness
of these functions as part of its internal audit plan, and
ensure that the internal audit function is equipped to
pesform in accordance with appropriate professional
standards for internal auditors;

{6) meet regularly with the Intermal Audit Head without
management being present, to discuss any issues
arising from the audit and also effectiveness of
the function

(7 carry out an annual assessment of the effectiveness of
the internal audit function; and as part of this
assessment:

2
{(a) determine whether it is satisficd that the
quality, experience and expertise of internal

audit is appropriate for the business; and

(b review the actions taken by management to
implement the recommendations of internal
audit and to support the effective working
of the internal audit function;

(8) monitor and assess the role and effectiveness of the
internal audit function in the overall context of the
company's risk management system and the work of
compliance, finance and the external auditor; and

)] consider whether an independent, third party review
of Information Technology (IT) Audit are
appropriate.

() Tax Auditors:
The comrmittee shall:

(L) consider and make recommendations to the board, in
relation to the appointment, re-appointment and
removal of the company's Tax Auditor;

{2) review the findings of the audit with the Tax
Auditor. This shall include but not be limited to, the
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following:

(a) discussion of any major issues which arose
during the audit; and

(b) review Tax Audit Report

{F) Compliance :

(1) Review the effectiveness of the system for
monitoring compliance with laws and regulations
and the results of findings / investigation of
compliance department and follow-up (including
disciplinary  action) of any instances of
noncompliance.

(2) Review the findings / observation of any inspection /
examinations carried out by regulatory agencies or
any notice received from regulatory authorities
concerning violation of any law.

(3 Review the process for communicating the code of
conduct to company personnel, and for monitoring
compliance therewith,

(4) Obtain regular updates from compliance head
regarding compliance matters.

&) review regular reports from the Compliance Officer
and keep under review the adequacy and
effectiveness of the company’s compliance function

{6) Consider whether the controls established to prevent
fraud and illegal acts are adequate so as to ensure all
major cases of fraud/illegal acts are reported to Audit
Committee

(G) Whistleblowing and Fraud:

The Committee shall:

n review the company's procedures for detecting
fraud;
(2) review the company’s systems and conirols for the

prevention of Bribery Anti-Corruption (ABAC) and
receive reports on non-compliance;

(3) Review Whistle Blower reports under Whistle
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Blower Policy and / or Vigil Mechanism

{(H) Litigation Review:

To review report of litigation against or by the Company
involving debt or claim above the threshold value as specified
in AAM.

(II)  Nomination and Remuneration  Committee: The key
responsibilities of the Committee are:

) Reviewing the current Board composition, its governance
framework and determine future requirements and making
recommendations to the Board for approval.

(2) Examining the qualification, knowledge, skill sets, positive
attributes and experience of ecach director and their
effectiveness to the Board on a yearly basis.

{3) Scrutinizing nominations for independent/Non-
Executive/Executive Directors with reference to  their
qualifications and  experience and  provide its
recommendation to the Board for
appointment/removal/filling of vacancies,

(4) To recommend to the Board of Directors about remuneration
of Directors including Managing Director.

(5) To lay down criteria in relation to appointment and removal
of Directors and KMP.

(6) To identify the persons who are gqualified to become Directors
and KMP and recommendation to the Board for their
appointment and/or removal. Directors and Head Accounting
Officer, who signs off sworn statement over Arnual Financial
Information as “Senior Accounting Officer”, requires ORIX
Corp’s prior approval,

@) To determine / lay down criteria for increase in remuneration
of KMPs and SMP based on the Company’s size and financial
position and trends and practices on remuneration prevailing
in peer companies, in the industry,

(8) To carry out evaluation of the performance of the Board of
the Company, Committees of the Board and individual
Directors of the Company.
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¢))] To carry out evaluation of KMP and SMP and approve their
elevation to next level depending on their performance.

(10)  To lay down criteria for payment of incentives to KMP and
SMTP and approve payment of incentives to them.

(11) To note the incentives and commission schemes for
employees other than SMPs and KMPs approved by the
Managing Director.

(12)  To retain, motivate and promote talent and to ensure long
term sustainability of talented managerial persons and create

competitive advantage.

(13) Formulate the Nomination and Remuneration Policy and
recommend to the Board of Directors for approval.

(14)  Ensure fit and proper criteria of Directors.

(15) To review and update Nomination and Remuneration
Committee Charter annually.

(III)  Treasury and Asset Liability Management Committec: The key
responsibilities of the Committee are:

(1 Setting of / preparing funding policy.
(2) Pricing of products for both deposits and advances.

3 Fixing of desired maturity profile and mix of the incremental
assets and liabilities.

C) Collecting information about the prevailing interest rates
offered by other peer NBFC for the similar services/products.

(5) Reviewing the results and progress in implementation of the
decisions made in the previous meeting,

(&) To articulate the current interest rate view.

N To develop a view on future direction of interest rate
movements and decide on funding mixes between fixed v/s.
floating rate funds, money market vs. capital market funding,
domestic vs. foreign currency funding, etc.

(8) Establishment of relations with bankers / financial institutions
/ companies for borrowing transactions (new or renewal).
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{9 To approve borrowings from wvarious Banks, Financial
Institutions and Companies upto such amount as the
Shareholders may authorise, from time to time, in the
ordinary course of business. To be pre-approved by ORIX
Corp.

(10) To raise money as and by way of Loan or Debentures
(Secured / Unsecured / Convertible / Non-Convertible) or
through Inter Corporate Deposit or Commercial Papers or
through any other resources as may be necessary either from
Domestic or International Market. To be pre-approved by
ORIX Corp.

(I1y To approve purchase and / or sale and assighment of
receivables arising out of lease rentals and / or loan / hire
purchase instalments whether with or without underlying
assets. 7o be pre-approved by ORIX Corp.

(12)  Toreport on funding transactions and activities (borrowings,
commitment lines, guarantee amounts, derivative
transactions, ALM related items and covenant compliance
matiers),

(13)  Allotment of securitics a5 defined under Securities Contracts
(Regulation) Act, 1956

(a) To approve allocation / allotment of shares,
debentures and other securities not exceeding the
amount of issue approved by the Board of Directors
of the Company from time to time.

(b) To approve allotment of securities from time to time,

{c) To affix or authorize affixation of Common Seal of
the Company on the security certificates of the
company; and

{d) To do all such acts, things or deeds as may be
necessary or incidental to the exercise of the above
powers.

(14)  To review and update Treasury and Asset Liability
Management Committee Charter annually.

(IV)  Executive Committee: The Key responsibilities of the Committee
arg:

(1) Credit {Approval of Credit facilities (o the Lease Customers
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2)

/Borrowers of the Company including Government

Companies:

(2)

Approval of Credit Proposals of financial leasing
business, Commercial Vehicle Business and Secured
Mortgaged Lending business of the Company as per
Annexure 1 to 3, respectively, which are enclosed
herewith per Annexure | enclosed herewith.

Setting Residual Value and Maintenance Budget for Leased

Vehicle:

(2)
(b)

{©

Setting up of Residual Value Policy.
Setting up / alteration of Residual Value of Vehicles
and Maintenance budget of Vehicles (Per XM

Maintenance Cost) for leased vehicles.

Delegate powers of the Committee to the Executives
of the Company with regard to:

(i)Y Increase in Residual Vahe as below:

» Business Heads may be authorised to
increase RV of a vehicle by 5% over
existing RV Grid.

» Managing Director may be authorised to
increase RV of wvehicle by 8% over
existing RV Grid.

» Any increase in RV of any vehicle > 8%
over existing RV Grid to be approved by
any two Members of the Committee.

(ii) Decrease in Per KM Maintenance Cost of
the Vehicles, as setup and approved by the
Commitiee referred in point no (2} above,
depending on__the prevailing market
conditions and to suit offering of
competitive quotes and to make transaction
process more efficient as below:

» Slab 1 — may be approved by Branch

Head.

» Slab 2 - may be approved by Business
Head

> Slab 3 - may be approved by Managing
Director.
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» Slab 4 - may be approved by the
Committee.

Note: The Business Head should monitor and
report the transactions approved, based on
the above Slabs, in the next Commiites
meeting.

€3y  Capital Expenditure for Business Operations:

{a) Acquisition and Disposal of Fixed Assets {for single
purpose excluding operating assets and Computer
Hardware and Software CAPEX) over JPY 20 Mn
and up to JPY 100 Mn subject to pricr approval of
ORIX Corp.

{4y  General Administration;

(a) To note waiver of income/reversals approved by
Director or Managing Director.

(b) To note non-performing Assets (NPA) occurrence
{Client or Clients group) of receivables as approved
by the Managing Director up to INR ¢ Mn.

(c) To approve non-performing Assets (NPA) occurrence
(Client or Clients group) receivables over INR 6 Mn

and reporting the same to ORIX Corporation post
approval.

(d) Rescheduling of non-performing receivables (Client
or Client’s group}:

(i) Total receivables up to INR 6.0 Mn; and

(i1} Total receivables over INR 6.0 Mn subject to
prior approval of ORIX Corp.

(®) Recomimend to the Board for approval of Write off:

(i Total receivables up to INR 3.1 Mn (Client
or Client’s group);

(i) Total receivables Over INR 3.1 Mn and up te

INR 7.8 Mn (Client or Client’s group) subject
to prior approval of ORIX Corp (HQ), and
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(iiiy  Total receivables over INR 7.8 Mn (Client or
Client’s group) subject to prior approval of
ORIX Corp (TCC).

(f To consider and approve opening of New Bank
Accounts (Current Account / Cash Credit Account /
Overdraft Account) and also approve change in
various Authorised Signatories and their respective
empowerment for signing cheques / varicus
instruments for and on behalf of the Compamy.

(g) To note Principal and Agency Agreement approved
by MD.

h) To approve general expenditure (for single purpose)
over INR 10 Mn.

(1) To consider and approve closure of Bank Accounts.

() Lease and/or rental (excluding operating assets and
Computer Hardware and Software OPEX) expenses
(including real estate for Company’s use)} where
annual rental is over JPY 10 Mn subject fo priov
approval of ORIX Corp.

(k) Disposal of Fixed Assets (for single purpose
excluding operating assets) over JPY 20 Mn and up
to JPY 100 Mun subject to prior approval of ORIX
Corp.

(5) Other functions:
(a) Parform such other functions as may be necessary or
appropriate for the performance of its duties and as

are delegated to it by the Board.

(b) To review and update Executive Committee Charter
annually.

(V)  Risk Management Committee: The key responsibilities of the
Committee are:

(1) Risk planning,

(2) Risk assessment & monitoring — Economy Review, Industry
Review, Portfolio Review, Rating.

(3) Risk systems (MIS and IT system integration).
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{4) Risk reporting — Keeping the Board informed at regular
intervals of credit, market and operational Risk Profile of the
Company.

(5) To decide and delegate powers of Executive Committee of
Board (EXCO) [only Credit related matiers amongst the
individual in credit department] with regard to person and
amount.

(6) To approve Policy on outsourcing and carrying out any
amendments, from time to time.

(7y Laying down appropriate approval authority structure- for
outsourcing of activities depending on risks and materiality.

(8} Deciding on business activities of a material nature to be
outsourced, and approving such arrangements,

{9) Review of central record of all material outsourcing of
Financial Services maintained by the Company.

(10) To lay down internal rules, policies, processes and regulations
with regard to Credit authorisations and delegate it to the

executives of the Company,

(11} To review and update Risk Management Committee Charter
annually,

(VI) CSR Committee: The key responsibilities of the Committee are;

(I}  Toformulate & update a CSR Policy and seek recommendation
of the Board on the CSR activities to be undertaken by the
Company.

(2)  To suggest areas of intervention & approve projects for CSR
activities,

(3) Put monitoring mechanisms in place to track the progress of
gach project.

(4) To approve CSR expenditure in accordance with the
Companies Act, 2013 including the Rules and Schedules
framed thereunder and the CSR Policy of the Company referred
to in clause (1).

(5) To review and update Corporate Social Responsibility
Committee Charter annually.
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(VII) IT Strafesy Commiltee:

(1) To work in partnership with other Board committees and
Senior Management to provide input to them,

{(2)  To carry out review and amend the IT strategies in line with the
corporate strategies, Board Policy reviews, cyber security
arrangements and any other matter refated to IT Governance.
Its deliberations may be placed before the Board.

(3)  Approving [T strategy and policy documents and ensuring that
the management has put an effective strategic planning process
in place.

(4)  Ascertaining that management has implemented processes and
practices that ensure that the [T delivers value to the business.

(5) Ensuring IT investments represent a balance of risks and
benefits and that budgets are acceptable,

(6) Monitoring the method that management uses to determine the
IT tesources needed to achieve strategic goals and provide
high-leve! direction for sourcing and use of IT resources.

(7) Ensuring proper balance of IT investments for sustaining
NBFC’s growth and becoming aware about exposure towards
IT risks and controls.

(8) To institute an effective governance mechanism and risk
management process for all IT outsourced operations.

(9) In respect of IT outsourced operations, if any shall include:

(i) Instituting an appropriate governance mechanism for
outsourced processes, comprising of risk bascd policies
and procedures, to effectively identify, measure, monitor
and control risks associated with outsourcing in an end
to end manner.

(ii) Defining approval authorities for outsourcing depending
on nature of risks and materiality of oufsourcing,

(iii) Developing sound and responsive outsourcing risk
management policies and procedures commensurate
with the nature, scope, and complexity of outsourcing
arrangements.
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(iv) Undertaking a periodic review of outsourcing strategies
and all existing material outsourcing arrangements.

(v) Evaluating the risks and materiality of all prospective
outsourcing based on the framework developed by the
Board.

(vi) Periodically reviewing the effectiveness of policies and
procedures.

(vii) Communicating significant risks in outsourcing to the
NBFC’s Board on a pericdic basis.

{viii} Ensuring an independent review and audit in accordance
with approved policies and procedures.

(ix) Ensuring that contingency plans have been developed
and tested adequately,

{(x) NBFC should ensure that their business continuity
preparedness is not adversely compromised on account
of outsourcing. NBFCs are cxpected fo adopt sound
business continuity management practices as issued by
RBI and seek proactive assurance that the outsourced
service provider maintains readiness and preparedness
for business continuily on an ongoing basis.

(10y To review and update [T-Strategy Committee Charter annually.

(VII) IT Steering Committec:

(1) Operating at an executive level and focusing on:

(a) Priority setting,
(b) Resource Allocation and
{c) Project Tracking,

(2)  To provide oversight and monitoring of the progress of the
project, including deliverables to be realized at each phase of
the project and milestones to be reached according to the
project timetable.

(3  Toreview and update IT Steering Committee Charter annually.
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(3)  Autendance of the Committees of Birectors:

Committees | Audit {Nominat{TreasurvResidual; Risk iCorpor| IT | IT :*Alloc*Exgcuti*Crediy
jon & |& Assetl Value [Manag| ate Strate|Steerini ation ve [Commi

Remune |LiabilityCommitt] ement | Social | gy g and Commitl] ftee
ration |Committ es |CommiRespon Allotm| ee
Committ] ee ttee |sibility ent
€e Commi
No of 6 5 3 2 2 1 2 2 0 0 0
Meetings
Name of
Member
Mr. Nagesh 6 5 NA NA NA | NA | NA| NA - NA NA
Dubey
Mr. Abhay & 5 NA NA NA | 1 2 2 - NA NA
Kakkar
Mr. Sandeep NA NA 3 2 2 1 2 2 - - -
Gambhir
Mr. Kiyokazu| 4 2 2 0 1 NA NA| NA | - - -
Ishinabe
Mr, Yoshiaki [NA 1 NA NA |NA NA NA | NA | NA NA NA
Matsuoka
Mr. Takashi 2 1 1 1 1 i NA | NA - - -
Nakayama
Mr. Ryohei |NA 1 3 2 2 I NA 1 1 - - -
Suzuki

Mr. Vivek  |NA NA NA NA NA | NA 2 2 NA NA NA

Wadhera
Mr. Gurpreet NA NA NA NA NA NA 1 1 NA NA NA

Singh
Mr. NA | NA NA NA NA [ NA | 1 1 NA | NA NA

Harvinder

CGiandhi
Mr. Sandeep {NA NA NA NA NA NA 2

Sinha
Mr. Dipankar NA NA NA NA NA NA 2 2 NA NA NA

(8]

NA | NA NA

Sen
Mr. Rominde NA NA NA NA NA NA - - NA | NA NA

Singh
Mr. Jay NA NA NA NA NA | NA 2 2 NA | NA NA

Gandhi
Mr. Gauray |NA NA NA NA NA NA 2 2 NA NA NA

Bhatia
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* These Committess did not meet during the year, however, approvals wherever
required were taken by way of Circular Resolution.

(TV) Meeting of Independent Directors:

In accordance with Section 149(8) of the Act read with Schedule TV of the Act, the
Independent Directors met separately on March 09, 2021 to review the performance
of Non-Independent Directors, Chairperson of the Company, the Board as a whole
and the flow of information between the Board and the management.

Sitting fees was paid to all the Independent Directors of the Company for attending
the meetings of Board of Directors and Committee meeting, wherever they are
members. The Sitting fees have been approved to Rs. 50,000/~ per Board Meeting
and Rs. 20,000/- per meeting for Committee meetings with effect from May 24,
2018.

(V) Board Performance Evatuation Mechanjsm;

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC) had approved a framework for
performance evaluation of the Board of Directors, its Committees and the individual
Board members. This performance evaluation framework was designed based on the
following:

(1) Expertise;

2) Objectivity and Independence;

3) Guidance and suppott in context of life stage of the Company;

%) Understanding of the Company’s business;

{(5) Understanding and commitment to duties and responsibilities;

(6) Willingness to devote the time needed for effective contribution to Company;

(N Participation in discussion in effective and constructive manner;

(&) Responsive in approach; and

{9 Ability to encourage and motivate the management for continued
performance and success.

As part of the framework, structured questionnaires were prepared after taking into
consideration the inputs received from the Directors and NRC. These questionnaires
cover various aspects of the Board’s functioning including composition and quality,
culture, roles and responsibilities, processes and functioning, execution and
performance to specific duties, obligations and govemance. The questionnaires
consist of evaluation of Board of Directors, Committees of Board of Directors and
the individual Board members by NRC. Further pursuant to Clause VIII of Schedule
IV of the Companies Act, 2013, separate evaluation of Independent Directors by alt
the Directors (excluding the director being evaluated) of the Company was also
carried ouf.

The evaluated questionnaires along with rating received were reviewed in the below
manner;
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(a)

The questionnaires for evaluation of (i) Board of Directors, (i) Committees

of Boatd of Directors and the (iii) individual Board members were reviewed
by the NRC and placed before the Board for their noting in their meeting
held on March 314, 2021,

(b)

The performance of Independent Directors were reviewed and noted by the

Board of Directors in their meeting held on March 31, 2021,

(VD) General Meetings:

Meeting Date and Venue Resolutions passed
Time
145 September Audio-Video Ordinary Businesses:
Annual 25,2020 at | Conferencing
General 12:00 pm (The deemed  [(1} Adoption of the Audited
Meeting venue of the Financial Statement of the
Meeting was Company for the year ended
Registered March 31, 2020.
office of the
Company {2) Re-appointment of  Mr
located at Harukazu Yamaguchi (DIN:
Mumbai 03535391) as Director liable to
retire by rotation,
Special Businesses:
(3) Appointment of Mr. Yoshiaki
Matsuoka (DIN 08141800} as
Director of the Company.
(4) Re-appointment of Mr. Nagesh
Dubey (DIN 06967617} as an
Independent Director of the
Company.
(5) Re-appointment of Mr. Abhay
Kakkar (DIN 06659327} as an
Independent Director of the
Company.
18" Extra- | December Audio-Video | Special Businesses:
Ordinary 23,2020 at Conferencing
General | 11:00 am (The deemed | (1)  Appointment of Mr. Takashi
Mecting venue of the Nakayama (]?Ig'{ %08768983)
Meeting was as Director of the Company
Registered | 3y Re-appointment  of  Mr.
office of the Sandeep Gambhir as
Company Managing Director of the
located at Company:
Mumbai
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(VII} Sharcholding pattern as at March 31, 2021:

;\Iamc of Shareholder No. o‘t"“equityus‘[lgres held
ORIX Auto Infrastructure Services Ltd. (OAIS) 100,935,831
Individual and OAIS R
| Total (Issued & Paid-up Shares) . 100935901
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Annexure-G

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)

[Pursuant to clause (o) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 9 of the

()

(2)

(3

4

Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility) Rules, 2014]

A brief outline of the Company’s CSR policy, including overview of projects or
programs proposed to be undertaken and a reference to the web-link to the CSR
policy and projects or programs — The CSR Policy has been formulated in accordance
with the provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 which outlines its
CSR objectives and the manner in which it will be implemented. Various projects
are within the framework of Schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013. The web link
to the CSR policy is at hitps//www.orixindia.com/pdf/OLFS-policy/corporate-

governance/policy/CSRPelicy.pdf

Composition of the CSR Comimitiee:

Sr. | Name of Director Designation | Number  of | Number of
No. / Nature of | meetings of | meetings of CSR
Directorship | CSR Committee
Committee attended during the
held  during | year
the year
1. | *Mr. Takashi | Chairman of 1 |
Nakayama CSR
Committee
(Director)
2. | Mr. Sandeep | Member 1 1
Gartbhir (Managing
Director)
3. | Mr. Abhay Kaldkar | Member 1 1
(Independent
Director)

#Mr. Kiyokazu Ishinabe resigned as Director of the Company with effect from November 4, 2020,
Henge, Mr. Takashi Nakayama was appointed as Director of the Company and Member of C8R
cammittec in piace of Mr. Kiyokazu Ishinabe with cffect from November 4, 2020.

_Web-link of Composition of CSR committes, CSR policy and CSR projects
approved by the board are disclosed on the website of the company - QRIX - OLFS:
Reports & Filings {orixindia.com

Details of Impact assessment of CSR projects carried out in pursuance of sub-rule
(3) of rule § of the Companies (Corporate Social responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014,
if applicable - Not Applicable.
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(3)

(6)

)

(8

Details of the amount available for set off in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 7 of
the Companies (Corporate Social responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and amount
required for set off for the financial year, if any - Not Applicable.

Average net profit of the company as per Section 135(5): Rs. 599,164,500 (2017-
2018, 2018-2019 and 2019-2020).

(a) Two per cent of the average net profit of the Company as per Section 135(5) -
Rs. 11,983,290/-

(b) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the
previous financial years 2019-2020- Nil

(¢) Amount required to be set off for the financial year 2020-2021, if any - Nil

(d) Total CSR cobligation for the financial year 2020-2021 (7a+7b-7¢) - Rs.
11,983,290/~

{a) CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year 2020-2021

Total Amount Spent for | Total Amount transferred to
the Financial Year. (in | Unspent CSR Account as
Rs.)

per section 135(6)

Amount transferred to any fund specified
under Schedule VIi as per second proviso to
section 135(5).

Amount | Date of transfer

Name of | Amount Date of transfer
the
Fund

11,983,290

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

| ]

(b) Details of CSR amount spent against ongoing projects for the financial year -

(1 Z) 3 4 (5) (6) (N {8) L] {18) (11}
St Mame Item Local | Location of | Proj JAmount | Amount Amount Mode of | Mode af
No | of the | from the | area | the project cet  mllocated | spent in | transferred | Impleme | Implementati
Project | list  of | (Ves/ dura ffor the { the to Unspent | niation - | on - Through
activities | No). tion. project current CSR Direct Implementing
in inRs) financial | Account for | (Yes/No} { Agency
Schedul State. | District Year (in | the project | . Namei CSR
e VII to Rs.) as er Registr
the Act Section ation
135(6) (in No.
Rs).

Not Applicable

54




== ORIX

ORIX Leasing & Financial Services India Limited wm: o rownas oas aw

Financial Services Limited) (A Subsidiary of OR X Auto Infrastruciure Serv ices Limited)

Regd. Office : Plot No, 94, Marol Co-ogerative Industrial Estate Andheri - Kurla Road, Andheri {E), Mumbai - 400 059
Tel: + 91 22 2853 5093 / 6707 0100 « Fax: +31 22 2852 6549 « Email : info@orixindia.com « www . arix india.com » CIN:U74800MH2006PLC 163937

(¢) Details of CSR amount spent against other than ongoing projects for the financial
year 2020-2021:

( 2 (3 3] G} {8 ] (t]]
§1,{ Name of the Ttem Lacal Location of the Amount | Mode of Mode of
No Project. from the area project spent for |impleme| implementation -
list of (Yes/ the ntation - Through
activities | No). project (in | Direct implementing
in Rs.). (Yes/No) agency
Schedule State. District Name *CSR
VTI to the Regist
Act. ration
No.

I. | Payment of Promoting | No Tamil Kanchi 3,00,000 | No Rising Star Not
college and Education Madu puram Outreach of |Applica
Hostel Fees [ndia ble
for leprosy
affected and
below poverty
line students

2. | Coaching Promoting | Yes [Maharashtra Navi 5,00,000 | No Sujaya Not
program for  |Education Mumbai Foundation [Applica
persons with  jand ble
disabilities employment

enhancing
vocation
sklls.

3. | Jeevan Dhara | Promoting | Yes [Maharashtra Mumbai 10,00,000 ; No Child Rights Not
(Mumbai) for | Education tand You Applica
education in ble
Thermatic
area

4. | Sanitation Sanitation | Yes |Maharashtra [Thane 6,00,000 | No Social Not
facility for and Uplifment  Applica
Rayate Preventive iand ble
Vibhag High | Health Development
School & Care. for Health
Junior Action
College SUADHA)

5. 1 Donation for Promoting | Yes [Maharashira Mumbai 13,00,000 | No Shree Not
utilization of | Health Kandivali  jApplica
Dialysis care Hithwardhak ble
patients Mandal

6. | Edueation of | Promoting | Yes [Maharashira [Palghar 7,06,941 | No Shiksha Not
underprivileged| Education Foundation Applica
Children ble

55




=T
==Z ORIX

ORIX Leasing & Financial Services India Limited gmenykmoumas oas o

Financtal Services Limited) (A Subsidiary of OR 14 Auto Infrasiructure Serv ices Limited}

Regd. Office : Plot Neo. 94, Marcl Co-aperative Industrial Estate,Andheri - Kurla Road, Andheri (E), Mumbai - 408 059
Tel: + 91 22 2853 5093 / 6707 D100 - Fax: +91 22 2852 8548 - Email ! info@ovixindia.com « wanw . orix ihdia.cam » CIN:U74900MH2006PLE 1639837

7. | Providing Promotitig | No  |{Chhatiisgarh Raipur 12,31,349 | No Cuddles Not
food and Health Foundation {Applica
mutrition carg ble
supplements
{0 children
fighting with
cancer

8. | Purchase of Promoting | Yes |Maharashtra Mumbai 25,45,000 | No Tata Not
Medical Health care Memorial Applica
Equipments including ble
for cancer Preventive
patients and Health
financiat aid Care.
for treatment
of children
with Cancer

9. | Education Promoting | Yes [Maharashtra Mumbai 8,006,000 { No Ascema Not
with remote Education Charitable  [Applica
learning, Trust ble
Mumbai

10 | Atal Women No Uttar Deoria 15,900,000 | No Jagriti Sewa Not
Community empower Pradesh. Sansthan Applica
Innovation ment Bhle
Centre
(ACIC),

i1 | Drinking Sanitation | No Uttar Lucknow | 15,00,000 | No Tal Seva Not
water security | and Pradesh. Charitable  Applica

Preventive Foundation ble
Health
Care,

Total 11,983,290

*The details of CSR Registration no. is not applicable as it is effective from 01.04.2021.

(d) Amount spent in Administrative Overhead — Nil

(e) Amouni spent on [mpact Assessment, if applicabie - Not Applicable

(f) Total amount spent for the Financial Year 2020-2021(8b+Bc+8d+8e) - Rs.

11,983,2990/-

(g) Excess amount for set off, if any.
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SL No Particular Amount (in
Rs.)

(1) Two percent of average net profit of the company as 11,983,290
per section 135(5)

(il) Total amount spent for the Financial Year 11,983,290

(i) Excess amount spent for the financial year [(ii)-(i}] 0

(iv) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or 0
programimes or activities of the previous financial
years, if any

{v) Amount available for set off in succeeding financial 0
years [{iii)-(iv})]

%) (a) Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years:

SL.No | Preceding | Amount Amount | Amount transferred to any fund | Amount
Financial | transferred spent in | specified under Schedule VIT as | remaining
Year. to  Unspent | the per section 135(4), if any. o be gpent
CSR reporting in
Account Financial [Name of | Amount | Date of | succeeding
under Year {in | the Fund | (in Rs). | transfer, | financial
section 135 | Rs.) years. (in
{6) (in Rs.) Rs.}
Not Applicable

(b) Details of CSR amount spent in the financial year for ongoing projects of the
preceding financial year(s):

ay i 3) (4} 5 {6} (N ()] 9N
Sl. | Project | Name of| Financial Project | Total Amount | Cumulative | Status of the
No. | ID. the Year in which duration. { amount | spenton | amount project -
Project. | the project aliocated | the project spent at the | Completed
was for the in the end of {Ongeing
commenced. project {in] reporting | reporting
Rs)). Financial | Financial
Year (in | Year. (in
Rs). Rs.)
Not Applicable

(10)  In case of creation or acquisition of capital asset, furnish the details relating to the
asset so crealed or acquired through CSR spent in the financial year.

{asset-wise details).
(a) Date of creation or acquisition of the capital asset(s) - Not Applicable
(b} Amount of CSR spent for creation or acquisition of capital asset - Not
Applicable
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(¢} Details of the entity or public authority or beneficiary under whose name
such capital asset is registered, their address etc.- Not Applicable

(dy Provide details of the capital asset(s) created or acquired (including compiete
address and location of the capital asset). - Not Applicable

(11)  Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the average
net profit as per section 135(5). — Not Applicable

By Order of the Board of Birectors
ORIX Leasing & Financial Services India Ltd.

Dugitally signed by Sandeep
Gambhir
DN: en=Sandesp Gambhir,

Sa n d ee p o+ DRIX Ao Infrastructure

Seances Ltd, oy=0HIX Aute

e y  Infrastraciore Senvaes Lt
o % Gambhir ZH 225
N ) Date: 2071 06.30 193532
T }/ ~ /J — +0530
Takashi Nakayama Managing Sandeep Gambhir
Chairman CSR Committee Managing Director
DIN: 08768983 DIN: 00083116

Place: Mumbal
Date: June 30, 2021
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Chartered Accountants

14th Floor, Central B Wing and North C Wing, Telephone: +91 22 6257 1000
Nesco [T Park 4, Nesco Center, Fax: +91 22 6257 1010
Western Express Highway,

Goregaon (East), Mumbai - 400 063

Independent Auditors’ Report

To the Members of
ORIX Leasing & Financial Services India Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of ORIX Leasing & Financial Services India Limited
(“the Company™}, which comprise the balance sheet as at 31 March 2021, the statement of profit
and foss (including other comprehensive income), statement of changes in equity and statement of
cash flows for the yvear then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary
of the significant accounting policics and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (* the
Act™) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2021,
profit and other comprehensive income, changes in cquity and its cash flows for the year ended on
that date,

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under
section 143(10) of the Act. Owr responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issucd by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India together with the cthical requirements that are relevant to our audit
of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have
fulfilled our other cthical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of
Ethics. We belicve that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our opinion on the financial statements,

Emphasis of matter

As more fully described in Note 30(ii) to the financial statement, the extent to which the COVID-
19 pandemic will have impact on the Company’s financial performance is dependent on future
developments, which are highly uncertain,

As maore fully described in Note 50(ii) to the financial statements, the Company has restructured
borrower accounts in accordance with the Resolution Framework for COVID-19 related stress
announced by the RBI vide notification dated 6 August 2020. Based on the terms of restructuring
and management’s credit evaluation, the Company’s has continued to classify such restructured
borrower accounts as non-impaired (i.c. Stage 1 and 2 under Ind AS 109, Financial Instruments}, at
the year-end.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matters.
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S5 H & Sl parmasshio firm watk
s2 Limited Liahility Parnerstio wi

istratinn Noo BAR 2230 <o
ion Mo AAS-

Wing anci Morth G Wheg, Neseo |7 Pack 4. Neson
Foareus Highwway, Goregpaon (Fast), Murilsc- 400053



B SR & Co. LLP

Independent Auditors’ Report (Continued)
ORIX Leasing & Financial Services India Limited

Other Information

The Company’s management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the Company’s” annual report but does not
include the financial statements and our auditors’ report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to repost that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

Management's and Board of Directors’ Responsibility for the financial statements

The Company’s management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in
section 134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a
frue and fair view of the state of affairs, profit/foss and other comprehensive income, changes in
equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133
of the Act.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that arc reasonable and prudens; and
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial —controts that werc
opetating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completencss of the accounting records, relevant
to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are
{ree from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Management and Board of Directors are responsible for
assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of
Directors either intends to liguidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The Board of Dircctors is also responsible for oversecing the Company’s financial reporting
process.
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Independent Auditors’ Report (Continued)

ORIX Leasing & Financial Services India Limited

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the audit of the e financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain rcasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists, Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material il, individually or in the aggregate, they could rcasonably be expected to influence the
ecornomic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Tdentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a malterial misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may mvolve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal confrol relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(1) of the Act, we are
also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and refated disclosures in the financial statements made by the Management and
Board of Directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management and Board of Dircctors use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Company’s ability to continuc as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modity our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going
concert.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
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Independent Auditors’ Report (Continued)
ORIX Leasing & Financial Services India Limited

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the audit of the ¢ financial statements (Continued)

We communicaic

with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned

scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies

in internal control

We also provide

that we identity during our audit.

those charged with governance with & statement that we have complied with

relevant cthical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other

Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies {Auditors’ Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the
Central Govermment in terms of section 143 (11) of the Act, we give in the “Annexure A7 a
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the cxtent

applicable.

2. (A)Y Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a)

b)

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the
best of our knowiedge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

The balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss (including other
comprehensive income), the statement of changes in equity and the statement of
cash flows dealt with by this Report arc in agrecment with the books of account

In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS
specified under section 133 of the Act;

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31
March 2021 and taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors
is disqualified as on 31 March 2021 from being appointed as a director in terms
of Section 164(2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements of the Company and the operating etfectiveness of such
conlrols, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure B”.
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Independent Auditors’ Report (Continued)
ORIX Leasing & Financial Services India Limited

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Reguirements (Continued)

(B) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors” Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Audirors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and
to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i.  The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations as at 31 March
2021 on its financial position in is financial statements - Refer Note 36.1 to the
financial statements,

ii,  The Company has made provision, as required under the applicable law or
accounting standards, for material foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term
contracts. The Company did not have any derivative contracts during the year. -
Refer Note 36.3 to the financial statements.

i, There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

iv.  The disciosurcs in the financial statcments regarding heldings as well as dealings
in specified bank notes during the period from & November 2016 to 30
December 2016 have not been made in these financial statements since they do
not pertain to the financial year ended 31 March 2021,

{C)  With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditors” Repost under section
197(16)

In our opinion and according o the information and explanations given to us, the
remuneration paid / provided by the company to its directors during the current vear is
in accordance with the provisions of Section 197 of the Act. The remuneration paid to
any dircctor is not in cxcess of the limit laid down under Section 197 of the Act. The
Ministry of Corporate Affairs has not prescribed other details under Section 197(16)
which are required to be commented upon by us.

For BSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No. 101248W/W-100022

Digitally signed by KAPIL
KAPIL VINODKUMAR vINODKUMAR GOENKA

GOENKA Date: 2021.06.30 20:27.00
+05'30'

Kapil Goenka

Mumbai Partner
Date: 30 June 2021 Membership No: 118189

ICATUDIN: 21118189AAAACIB021
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditors’ Report on the Financial
Statements of ORIX Leasing & Financial Services India Limited for the
vear ended 31 March 2021

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’
section of our report of even date)

iik.

vi.

Vii.

a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, includin
pany prop g p 124
quantitative details and situation of fixed assets.

(b) The Company has a regular programme of physical verification of its fixed assets
by which all the lixed assets are verified in 2 phased manner over a period of two
years. In our opinion, this periodicity of physical verification is reasonable having
regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. No material
discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

{c) According to the information and explanation given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the title deeds of immovable properties
are held in the name of the Company.

The inventory has been physically verified by the management during the year. In our
opinion, the frequency of such physical verification is reasonable. No material discrepancies
were noticed on such verification.

According to the information and cxplanation given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the books and records of the Company, the Company has not granted any
loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms, limited liability partnerships or other
parties covered in the register maintained under section 189 of the Act. Accordingly,
paragraph 3 (:11) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the books and records of the Company, the Company has not granted any
loans to any director or any person in whom director is interested in terms of Section 185 of
the Act, Further, Scction 186 of the Act is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the books and records of the Company, the Company has not accepted
any deposits {rom the public as per the directives issued by Reserve Bank of India and the
provisions of Sections 73 Lo 76 or other relevant provisions of the Act and rules framed there
under. Accordingly, paragraph 3 (v) of the Order is riot applicable to the Company.

The Central Government has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records under sub-
section 1) of section 148 of the Act for any of the activities conducted / services rendered
by the Company. Accordingly, paragraph 3(vi) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

{a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the book and records of the Company, amounts deducted/ accrued
in the books of account in respect of undisputed statutory dues including provident
fund, employees’ state insurance, income tax, goods and service tax, cess and other
material statutory dues have been generally regularly deposited during the year by
the Company with the appropriate authoritics. As explained to us, the Company
does not have any dues on account of sales tax, value added tax, service tax, duty
of customs and duty of excise.
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditors’ Report on the Financial
Statements of ORIX Leasing & Financial Services India Limited for the
vear ended 31 March 2021 (Continued)

viii.

ix.

Xi.

Xii.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, no undisputed amounts payable in
respect of provident fund, employees” state insurance, income tax, goods and service
tax, cess and otlier material statutory dues were in arrears as at 31 March 2021 fora
period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the following statutory dues have not
been deposited by the Company on account of disputes:

Forum  where

Name of the
Statute

Nature of Ducs

Amount Rs.

Period to which
amount relates

dispute  is
pending

income Tax  Income Tax 18,211,940  AY 20i2-13 Commissioner of Income Tax
Act, 1961 (appeals) Mumbai

ncome Tax Tncome Tax 2482,110  AY 2013-14 Deputy Commissioner of Income
Act, 1961 Tax {appeals) Mumbai

Income Tax Income Tax 8,999,596  AY 2014-15 Assistant  Commissioner  of
Act, 1961 Income Tax (appeals) Mumbai
Income  Tax Tncome Tax 23,813,398  AY 2017-18 Assistant  Commissioner  of
Act, 1961 : income Tax (appeals) Mumbai
Value Added VAT 38559650 AY 2012-13 and Joint Commissioner of sales Tax,
Tax Act AY 2013-14 Delhi

Value Added VAT 2458 111 AY 2011-12 Joint Commissioner of sales Tax,
Tax Act Maharashtra

Value Added VAT 6,961,825  AY 2012-13 Joint Commissioner of Sales Tax,
Tax Act Maharashtra

Goods and TRAN-1 ITC 26,848,810 AY 2018-19 Deputy Commissioner of Sales
Service  Tax  reversal Tax, Maharashtra

Act

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination
of the records, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of outstanding dues to financial
institution, bank or debenture holder during the year. The Company did not have any
borrowings from the government during the year,

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination
of the records, the Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or
fyrther public offer. According to the information and explanations given to us, the term
loans taken by the Company have been applied for the purpose for which they were raised.

According to the explanation and information given to us, no material fraud by the Company
or on the Company by its officers or employees has been noticed or reported during the
course of our audit.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has paid/ provided
managenial remuncration in accordance with the provision preseribed under scetion 197 of
the Act.

Tn our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
is not a Nidhi Company as per the Act. Accordingly, paragraph 3 (xii) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditers’ Report on the Financial
Statements of ORIX Leasing & Financial Services India Limited for the
year ended 31 March 2021 (Continued)

xill.

xiv,

XV,

Xvi.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, transactions with the refated parties are in
compliance with section 177 and 188 of the Act where applicable and the details have been
disclosed in the financial statements, as required by the applicable accounting standards.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of
the records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly,
paragraph 3(xiv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanation given to us and based on our examination of
the records of the Company, the Company has not entered into any material non-cash
transactions with directors or person connected with them. Accordingly, paragraph 3 (xv} of
the Order is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination
of the records, the Company has registered as required, under section 45-1A of the Reserve
Bank of India Act, 1934.

ForBSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No: 101248W/W-100022

KAPIL Digitally signed by KAPIL
VINGDKUMAR GOENKA

VINODKUMAR Date: 2021.06.30

GOENKA 20:28:09 +05'30"

Kapil Goenka

Muimbai Pariner
30 June 202} Membership No: 118189

ICAIUDIN: 211 18189AAAACIBO21
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditors’ report on the financial
statements of ORIX Leasing & Financial Services India Limited for the
year ended 31 March 2021,

Report on the internal firancial controls with reference to the aforesaid financial statements
under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013

(Referred to in paragraph A(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’
section of our report of even date)

Opinion

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of ORIX
Leasing & Financial Services India Limited (“the Company”) as of 31 March 2021 in conjunction
with our audit of the financia} statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate interna! financial controls with
reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls were operating effectively as at
31 March 2021, based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of lndia (“the Guidance Note™)

Management’s Responsibility for Interna! Financial Controls

The Company’s management and the Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and
maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note. These responsibilities include the design,
implemeniation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to
company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors,
the accuracy and completensss of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable
financial information, as required under the Companics Act, 2013 (hereinafter referred to as “the
Act™).

Auditors’ Respousibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with
reference to financial statoments based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note and the Standards on Auditing, prescribed under scction 143{10) of the Act, to the
extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements.
Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial
controls with referance to financial stalements were established and maintained and whether such
controls operated effectively i all material respects.

Qur audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the mternal
financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating cffectiveness. Our audit
of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an
understanding of such internal financial controls, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists,
and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the
assessed risk, The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditors’ report on the financial
statements of ORIX Leasing & Financial Services India Limited for the
vear ended 31 March 2021 (Continued)

Auditors’ Responsibility (Continued)

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to firancial
statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial controls with Reference to Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed
to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principies. A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements include
those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the wansactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2)
provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
financial statcments in accordance with generally acecpted accounting principles, and that receipts
and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of
management and directors of the company: and (3) provide rcasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets
that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial eontrols with Reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference fo financial
slatements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls,
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and nof be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods
are subject to the risk that the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements may
become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedurcs may deteriorate.

For BSR & Co.LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No: 101248W/W-100022

KAPIL Digitally signed by KAPIL
VINODKUMAR ;'ggg’;‘jm&%OENKA
GOENKA 20:28:38 40530

Kapil Goenka

Mumbai Partner
30 June 2021 Membership No; 118189
ICATUDIN: 21118189AAAACT8021
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Auditors’ Additional Report
To the Members of
ORIX Leasing & Financial Services India Limited

Report on the Financial Statements

1. In addition to the report made under section 143 of the Companies Acl, 2013 (“the Act’) on the
financial starements of ORIX Leasing & Financial Services India Limited (“the Company’) for
the year ended 31 March 202 1and as required by Reserve Bank of India ("RBT") Master Direction
No. DNBS. PPD.03/66.15.001:2016-17 dated 29 September 2016 on Non-Banking Financial
Companies Auditor’s Report (Reserve Bank)y Directions, 2016 (the ‘Direction’), we report as

follows on the matters specified in paragraph 3 and 4 of the said Directions, to the extent
applicable.

Management’s and Board of Directors® Respounsibility for the financial statements

2. The Company’s mzanagement and the Board of Dircctors arc responsible for the matters stated in
Section 134(3) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statciients that give a
trug and fair view of the financial position, financial performance and cash flows of the Company in
accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian
Accounting Standards (‘Ind AS’) specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibilify also
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act
for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frawds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policics; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant Lo the preparation and presentation of the financial
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

3. The Company’s management and the Board of Directors are responsible for ensuring that the
Company complies with the requirements of the Master Direction - Non-Banking Financial
Company — Systemically Tmportant Non-Deposit taking Company and Deposit taking Company
{Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016, as amended from time to time (the ‘Master Direction’). This
responsibility includes the design, implementation and maintenance of internal conirol relevant to
the compliance with the Master Direction,

Auditor’s Responsibility

4. Pursuant to the requirements of the Direction, it is our responsibility to examine the books and
records of the Company and report on the matters specified in the Direclion to the extent applicable
to the Company.

5. We conducted our examination in accordance with the *Guidance Note on Reports or Certificates
issued for Special Purposes (Revised 2016)” issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India. The Guidance Note requires that we comply with the ethical requirements of the Code of
Ethics issned by the Tnstitute of Chartered Accountants of Tndia.



BSR&Co. LLP

Auditor’s Additional Report (Continued)
ORIX Leasing & Financial Services India Limited

Auditor’s Responsibility (Confinued)

We have complicd with the relevant applicable requirements of the Standard on Quality Control
{SQC) 1, Quality Control for Firms that Perform Audits and Reviews of Historical Financial
Tnformation, and Other Assurance and Related Services Engagements.”

Conclusion

iti.

vi,

vii.

viil,

Based on our examination of the financial statements as a¢ and for the year ended 31 March 2021,
books of sccounts and records of the Company as produced for our examination and according to
the information and explanations given to us we further report that:

The Company is engaged in the business of non-banking financial institution and it has obtained a
certificate of registration No. N -13.01981 from Reserve Bank of India (‘RBT'} dated 8 December
20190, in pursuance of section 45-TA of RBI Act, 1934,

The Company is entitled to continue to hold such certificate of registration in terms of its asset/
income pattern as on/ for the year ended 31 March 2021,

Tn our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
Company is mecting the the required net owned fund requiremient as laid down in the Master
Direction.

The Board of Directors of the Company has passed a resolution in its meeting held on I April 2020
for non-acceptance of public deposits during the year ended 31 March 2021;

The Company has not accepted any public deposits during yvear ended 31 March 2021,

With effect from | April 2018, as per the roadmap issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs for
Non-Banking Finance Companies vide notification no. G.8.R 365(E) dated 30 March 2016, for
financial reporting purposes, the Company has followed the Indian Accounting Standards {'Ind AS”)
specified under Section 133 of the Act. In our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us, the Company has complied with the prudential norms
relating to income recognition, accounting standards, asset classification and provisioning for bad
and doubtful debts as applicable to it in terms of the Master Dircetions in the preparation of the
{inancial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021,

In our epinion and to the best of our information and according to the cxplanations given to us, the
Company being a Systemically Important Non-deposit taking NBFC as delined in paragraph 3 (xxx)
of the Master Direction, for the year ended 31 March 2021

a) the capital adequacy ratio as disclosed in the annual return submitted to RBI in form NBS ~ 7 as
at 31 March 2021, has been correctly arrived at and such ratio is in compliance with the
minimuwn capifal to risk assets ratio (*CRAR’) prescribed by RBI; and

b) the Company has furnished to RBI, the annual statement of capital funds, risk assets/exposures
and risk asset ratio (*form NBS-7) for the year ended 31 March 2021 on 15 April 2021 within
the stipulated period.

Based on the criteria set forth by RBI in paragraph 3 (xix) of the Master Direction for classification
of NBFCs as NBFC — Micro Finance Institution { NBFC-MFT’), the Company does not meet / meets
the criteria to be classified as NBFC-MFI as defined in the aforesaid Master Direction, with
reference to the business carried on by it during the year ended 31 March 2021,
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Restrictions of use

8. This Report is addressed to and provided to the Board of Directors solely to comply with the
aforesaid Direction and for submission to RBIL, if required and may neot be suitable for any other
purpose. Accordingly, our Report should not be quoted or referred to in any other document or made
available to any other person or persons without our prior written consent. Also, we neither zceept
nor assume any duty or liability for any other purpose or to any other party to whom our Report is
shown or into whose hands it may come without our prior consent in wriing.

ForBSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants

Finmm's Registration No. 101 248W/W-100022

KAPIL Digitally signed by KAPIL
VINODKUMAR  VhEI G
GOENKA 20:48:38 +05'30'
Kapil Goenka
FPartner

Mumbai

Date: 30 June 2021 Membership No: 118189

TCAT UDIN: 21TIBI89AAAACIT653



ORIX Leasing & Financial Services India Limited

Balance sheet
as af 37 March 2021

(Al amomnnts are in INR Lakhs, excepr as siated)
Pavticulars
I ASSETS
1 Financial assets
(a)  Cash and cash eguivalents
{b)  Bank balances other than (a) above
fc}  Trade recervable

{d)  Loans
te)  Other financial assets

Total financial asseis

2 Non-financial assets
(ay  Inventories
(b Current tux assels {net)
(¢} Tieterred wx assels (net)
{4y Troperty, plant and cquipgment
(¢)  Right-of-use assels
(fy  Othors intangible assels
(g)  Other non-linancial assets

Total nan-linancial assets
TOTAL ASSETS
1T LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

LIABILITIES
1 Financial liabilities
(a3 Trade Payables
(i) Trade pavables
- Total outstanding dues ol micro and snall enterprises
- Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and small enlerprises
(b)  Debt Secunties
(¢)  Borrowings (other than debt seeurities)
(&) Lease liabulities
(2)  Deposits
N Other financial liabilities

Total Financial liabilities
2 Non-financial liabilities
(a)  Current tax abiines (net)
(h)  Provisions
(¢ ) Other non-tinancial liabilities
Total noen-financial liabilities
3 Equity
(a}  Equity share capital
(b)Y Other cqunty
Taotal Equity

TOTAL EQUITY & LIABILITIES
Significant accounting policies

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these Fritancil Statements

As per our report of even date attached

ForBSR & Co, LLP

Cheartered Accountants

Firint's Repistration No: 101248W/AW-100022
KAPIL Digitally signed by KAPIL
VNODKUAR RO
GOENKA 20:46:43 +05'30°

Kapil Goenka

Partper

Membership No: 118189

Mumbai
3 June 2021

Note As at Al ut
31 Mareh 2021 31 March 2020

2 2,735 3,766
3 Y2 88
4 1,194 660
3 2,19,699 244 684
6 3,997 3,152
2.27.717 2,352,350
7 i 19
g 794 1.396
9 6,658 5454
10 1,746 2464
11 132 108
12 202 6
13 3,660 4914
15,283 14,621
243,000 2,66,971
14
3 i
2,764 2,003
15 20,000 20,000
16 1,32,790 1,83,343
17 i85 348
8 1,347 1,249
19 2,913 2127
1,79,972 209,173
20 258 74
21 262 158
22 647 471 "
1,167 703
23 14,004 10,094
2 51,767 47,001
61,861 57.095
2,43,000 2,66,971

For and vt helalf of the Buard of Divectors
ORIX Leasing & Financial Services Indiz Limiced
Saﬂd ee Digitalty signed by
G bhp RYOHEE AYOHEI SUZUKE
Date: 2021.06.30
am i SUZUKI 15.05:49 +05'30'
Sandeep Gambhir Ryohei Suzuki

Director
(DIN - 0821 8888)

Managing Director
(TN - 0G083116)

VIVEK

SANGHVI
WADHERA MEETA SAGAR
Vivek Wadhcera Meeta Sanghvi
IO Campany Secrefary



ORIX Leasing & Financial Services India Limited

Statement of prefit and loss
Jor the year ended 31 March 2021

(AN amownts are in INR Lakhs, except as stated)

HI

A3

X

Particular

Revenue from operations

(1) Titerest income

(i} IFges and commission ingcome
(iii) Net gain on tair value changes
(iv) Sales of services

Total revenue from operations

Otlher Tncome
Total income (1+ I

Expenses

(1) Tunange costs

tit) impairment on financial instruments

{it) Fmployec henefit expenses

{iv) Depreciation, amortization and fimpamment
{v) Other expenses

Total expenses (TY)

Profit before tax {TTI-1Y)

Tax Expenses

{1) Current tax

{ii) Tax expenses relating 1o prior years
(1ii) Deferred tax

Profit for the year

Other Comprehensive Tncome

1tems that will pot be reclassificd to profit or loss

Remeasurements of post-emiployvement benefit obiigation

Income tax related to items that will not be reclassified o profit or loss

Others Comprehensive income for the yvear
Tatal Comprehensive income for the year
Earnings per equity share (Face value T 10 per sharc)

(1) Basic {Rupees)
{ii} Dituted (Rupees)

Significant accounting policies

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these tinancial statcnienis

As per our repori of even date attached

Note For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2021 31 March 2026

23 31,218 31,762
26 191 274
2 96 72
28 1,208 1,164
32,713 33,272

29 1,156 1,532
33,869 34,804

30 14,767 17,972
31 3,99 1,807
32 3,361 3401
33 947 927
34 4,326 3,110
27,392 27,217

6,477 7,587

2,918 2,321

- 18

{£,203) 1,608

4,762 3,640

) 24
1) (6}

(5 13

4,767 3,622

35

4.72 3.59

4.72 3.59

For BSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No: 101248W/W-100022

KAPIL Digitally signed by KAPIL
VINODKUMAR GOENKA

VINODKUMAR  1,.:. 5021.06.30 20:12:59

GOENKA #0530

Kapil Goenka

Parmer

Membership No: 18189

Mumbai
30 June 2021

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

ORIX Leasing & Financial Services India Limited

o Il eslid.
it sandesp gamohi or
Gambhir e
D2t 23206530 14:13:82
+031T
Sandeep Gambhir
Managing Direcror

{DIN - 00083116
VIVEK
WADHERA

Vivek Wadhera
RO

RYOHEI
SUZUK] pate:2021.06.30

151 1:12 40530

SANGHVI
MEETA SAGAR

by RYGHE]
SUZUKI

Ryaohei Suznki
Director
{DIN - 08218388)

Meeta Sanghvi
Company Secretary

Digitaily signed



ORIX Leasing & Financial Services India Limited

Statement of Changes in Equity (SOCIE)
(A amonnts are i INR Lakhs, except as stated)

{a) Equity share capital

Ralance at the begimning of the reporting vear
Changes in equity share caprtal during the year

Ralance at the cod of the reporting yea

As ar 31 March 2021

Amount
1,00,93,59.010

As ot 31 March 2020

Amount
1,00,93 59010

1,00,95.59,011

1,00,9339010

(b) Other equity

Reserves & Swrplus
) Total
Particulars Statutory Reserve Securitics premium Retained earnings
Balanee at 1 April, 2049 2,797 30,303 10,27% 43,379
Profit tor te year - - .04 3,640
Other comprehensive meome for the vear - - (18) (B8}
Total comprehensive income for the year - - 3,622 3,022
Tranafer to Statutory Reserve 731 - (731) -
Balance at 31 March, 20206 3,528 30,303 13,870 47,00
Reserves & Surplus
. . Tatal
Purticilans Statutory Reserve Sceuwrities premium Retamed ewrmiogs
Balance at 1 Apsil, 2020 3,528 30,303 £3,170 17,001
Proiit fur the year - - 4,762 4,762
Other comprehensive income fur the vear - - 5 3
‘Fotal comprehensive income for the year - - 4,767 4,707
Transfer to Statutory Reserve 952 - {932} -
Balance at 31 March, 2021 4431 30,303 16,985 31,767

The above statement of changes in equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

For BS R & Co. 1P
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No: 101248W/W-1000622

KA®IL AP, VNGDRUNAR
VINODKUMA soenka
RGOENKA  35aias.msor
Kapil Goenka

Partner

Membership No: 118189

Mumbai
30 June 2021

Sandeep s
Gambhir pe

VIVEK
WADHERA

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
ORIX Leasing & Financial Services India Limited

Digitaliy sgnen by Sl ey

Gamhl:x

e
[

emailsangeen gawlibl- gt

Dates 2071 35 30 11531

Sandeep Gambhir
Managing Director
(DIN - 00083110)

Ly
et

Vivek Wa;dhera
CFG

RY QH E{ itaty signec by

RYOHEI SUZUKE

SUZUKI %isao e

SANGHVI
MEETA SAGAR

Ryohei Suzuki
Director
(DIN -08218888)

Meeta Sanghvi
Company Secrewiry



ORIX Leasing & Financial Services India Limited

Cash flow statement
Jor the vear ended 31 AMarch 2021

(AN camowunts are in INR Lakhs. except as stated )

Cash flow from operating activities

Profit Before Tax
Adjustments

Depreciation. amertisation and impairment
{I'rofit¥loss on sale of property, plant and equipment
Other Comprehensive Income

L.oss allowance ECL

Sundry balances written off

Bad debts

Liabilities / provisions no longer required written back

Net operating cash flow before working capital changes
Adjustments for working capital changes:

(Increase) in rade receivable

[Decrease in loans

(Increase) in other financiaf assers

(Increase) / Decrease in inventories

(Increase) / Decrcase in ather non-financal asscts
{Ingrease) / Decrease in trade payables
(Tncrease) / Decrease i deposils
(Increase) / Decrease in other financial habilities
(Tncrease) f Deerease in Provisions

Decrease i other non-linancial liabilitics

{Increasc) / Decrease in Loans and advanees (rom related party

{Increase) in Interest accrued but not due on Borrowings
{Inerease) / Decrease in Cash Credit & overdraft facilities

Net cash used in aperating activitics before taxes
I.ess: Taxes paid (net of refunds}

Cash flows vsed in operating activities -A

Cash flow from investing activities

Purchase of property, plant and cquipment

Praceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment
Investment in fixed deposits

Redemption in fixed deposits

Net cash used in investing activities-B

For the year
ended
31 March 2021

For the year ended
31 March 2020

6,477 7,587
947 927
{4 I
1 i24)
3,991 1.684
10 24
- 99
(68) (243)
11,357 10,053
(533) (380)
25,043 8.897
(845) {670}
(1) 35
(746) 940
661 {699)
98 {146)
786 (247)
(3.687) {1.818)
176 1
33 (275
(614) {1.474)
40 (19,402)
31,796 (3.277)
2,133 {2,700)
29,663 (7.977)
{517) (390)
330 96
¢148) (80)
143 72
(192) {302)




ORIX Leasing & Financial Services India Limited

Cash flow statement (Continued)
Jfor the year ended 31 March 26021

(Al amonnts are in INR Lakhs, excepr as stuted )
For the year

ended
31 March 2021

For the year ended
31 March 2020

Cash flow from financing activities

Proceeds from term loan & debt securities 1,01,860 4 11,333
Repayment of term loan & debt securities (1.32,174) (4,00,539)
Increase / (Decrease) in Lease Liabifity on principal component (158) {101y
Increase / (Decrease) in Lease liabilty Tnterest portion (3:4) (3)
Net cash flows generated from financing activities » C (30,502) 10,672
Net bncrease / (Decrease) in cash & cash equivalents (A+B+C) (1,031) 2,302
Cash & cash equivalents as at the beginning of the year 3,766 1.374
Cash and cash cquivalents as at the end of the year {Refer Note 2 (2)) 2,735 3.760
The accompanying notes form an imegral part of these financial

As per our report of even date attached

The above statement of cash fTows has been prepared under the indivect method as set out in Tnd AS 7 - Stalement of Cash Flows”.

ForBSR & Co. LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountanis ORIX T.easing & Financial Services India Limited
Firm's Registration No: 101248W/W-106022 e Digitally signed
KAPIL Digitatly signed by KAPIL SaﬂdEEP RYOHEI oy rvone
VINODK [ VINDDKUMAR GOENKA . SUZUKL

UnA Date: 2021.06,30 20:45:30 Gambhlr : SUZU Kl Date: 2021.06.30
GOENKA +05'30 2 13 e 5 15:50:47 +05'30°
Kapil Goenka Sandeep Gambhir Ryahei Sezuki
Parmer Managing Director Director
Membership No: 118189 (TN - 000831 16) (DIN-08218888)
VIVEK i
HE
WADHERA SAGAR
Mumbai Vivek Wadhera Meeta Sanghvi

30 June 2021 CFO Company Secretary



ORIX Leasing & Financial Services India Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements
Jor the year ended 31 March 2021

(All amounts are in INR Lakhs, except as stated)

1.

1.1

Company Overview and Significant Accounting policies

Company Overview

ORIX Leasing & Financial Services India Limited ("the Company") incorporated in India on 21 August
2006, is an Investment and Credit - Non - Banking Financial Company (NBFC", as defined under
section 45 TA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. It is a wholly owned subsidiary of ORIX Auto
Infrastructure Services Limited. ORTX Corporation, Japan 1s the ultimate holding Company. The
Company provides financial services such as Finance Leasing of Passenger Cars, installment loans for
Commercial Vehicles ("CV") and Loan against Property ("LAP") in India.

The Company’s registered office is at Plot no.94, Marol Co. op. industrial estate, Andheri-kurla road,
Andheri (E), Mumbai-400 059, Maharashtra, India.

Statement of compliance and basis of preparation & presentation

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Companies Indian Accounting
Standards (referred to as “Ind AS™) Rules, 2015 as prescribed under section 133 of the Companies Act,

2013 ("the Act™) and relevant amendment rules issued from time to time.

These financial statements were approved by the Company’s Board of Directors and authorised for issue
on 30 Jun 2021,

(b) Basis of preparation

These financial statemenis have been prepared in Indian Rupee (%) which is the functional and
presentation currency of the Company. All amounts are rounded-off to the nearest lakhs, unless
otherwise indicated These financial statements have been prepared on historical cost basis, except for
certain financial instruments which are measured at fair value or amortised cost at the end of cach
reporting period, as explained in the accounting policies below. Historical cost is generally based on the
fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods and services. Fair value is the price that
wotuld be received to sell an asset or paid to wansler a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date. Based on the nature of services rendered to customers and time
elapsed between deployment of resources and the realisation in cash and cash equivalents of the
consideration for such services rendered, the Company has considered an operating cycle of 12 months.
The statement of cash flows have been prepared under indirect method.

Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a newly issued accounting standard is
initially adopted or a revision to an existing accounting standard requires a change in the accounting
policy hitherto in use.



ORIX Leasing & Financial Services India Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements
Jor the year ended 31 March 2021

(All amounts are in INR Lakhs, except as stated)

1.

Company :Overview and Significant Accounting policies (Continued)

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Profit and Loss are
presented in the format prescribed under Division It of Schedule HI of the Act, as amended from time
to time, for Non-Banking Financial Companies ("NBFCs’) that are required to comply with [nd-AS. The
Statemnent of Cash Flows has been presented as per the requirements of Ind-AS 7 Statement of Cash
Flows.

1.3 Standards Issued but not Effective Yet

1.4

As at 31 March 2021, there are no standards which arc issued but not effective.
Use of estimates and judgements

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with the recognition and measurement
principles of IND AS requires management to make estimates, judgments and assumptions. These
estimates, judgments and assumptions affect the application of accounting policies and the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the
financial statements and reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the period. Application of
accounting policies that require critical accounting estimates involving complex and subjective
judgments and the use of assumptions in these financial statements have been disclosed in the relevant
disclosures. Accounting estimates could change from period to period. Actual results could differ from
those estimates. Appropriate changes in estimates are made as management becomes aware of changes
in circumstances surrounding the estimates. Changes in estimates are reflected in the [inancial
statements in the period in which changes are made and, if material, their effects are disciosed in the
notes to the financial statements.

This note provides an overview of the areas that involved a higher degree of judgement or complexity.
and of items which are more likely to be materially adjusted due to estimates and assumptions turning
out to be different than those originally assessed. Detailed information about each of these estimates and
judgements is included in refevant notes together with information about the basis of calculation for
each affected line item in the financial statements.

Critical estimates and judgements
The areas invelving critical estimates or judgements are:

Estimated usefu] life of property, plant and equipment (PPE) and intangible asset - useful life of PPE
and Intangible assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period.

Estimation of defined benefit obligation - Key actuarial assumptions including safary escalation rate,
discount rate, mortality rate, attrition rate.

Recognition of deferred tax assets on availabiiity of future taxable income - availability of future taxable
profit

Impairment of trade receivables and financial assets - The measurement of impairment losses on loan
assets and commitments and trade receivables, requires judgement, in estimating the amount and timing
of future cash flows and recoverability of collateral values while determining the impairment losses and
assessing a significant increase in credit risk.



ORIX Leasing & Financial Services India Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements
Jor the vear ended 31 March 2021

(All amounts are in INR Lakhs, cxcept as stated)

1.

Company Overview and Significant Accounting policies (Confinued)

The Company’s Expected Credit Loss (ECL) calculation is the output of a model with a number of

underlying assumptions regarding the chotce of variable inputs and their interdependencies. Elements

of the ECL model that are considered accounting judgements and estimates include:

- The Company’s criteria for assessing if there has been a significant increase in credit risk

- The segmentation of financial assets when their ECL is assessed on a collective basis

- Devetopment of ECL model, including the various tformulae and the choice of inputs

- Sclection of forward-looking macroeconomic scenarios and their probability weightings, to derive
the economic inputs into the ECL model

It has been the Company’s policy to regularly review its model in the context of actual toss experience
and adjust when necessary.

Consequent to the outbreak of the COVID-19 pandemic, the Indian government announced a lockdown
in March 2020. Subsequently, the national lockdown was lifted by the governiment, but regional
lockdowns continue to be implemented in areas with a significant number of COVID-19 cases.

The pandemic, including the second wave, continues to bave a considerable impact on economic
activities across the globe and the recovery is likely to be slow and hence the return to normalcy.

The final impact of the global health pandemic continues to be very uncertain and the actual impact on
these financial results may be different than that estimated based on the conditions prevailing as at the
date of approval of these financial statement. The management will continue to closely monitor the
material changes in the macro-economic factors impacting the operations of the Company.

Estimates and judgements are continually evatuated. They are based on histarical experience and other
factors, including expectations of future events that may have a financial impact on the Company and
that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

1.5 Revenue Recognition

The Company eamns revenue primarily from providing passenger vehicles on Finance Lease, Finance
installment foans for Commercial Vehicles and Loan against Property.

Income from operations is recognized on accrual basis.

Finance lease:

Finance income is apportioned over the period of primary lease at the Internal Rate of Return and in
respect of Loans.

In respect of Maintenance Linked Lease ("MLL"), lease rentals are segregated between recovery for
asset financed and maintenance charges. The Finance income is apportioned over the primary lease at
Internal Rate of Return Method. The maintenance costs are recognised and accounted for as expenses
as and when incurred.

Income arising out of modification in Finance Lease is recognised when the recoverability of the same
is ascertained,

Initial Direct Cost which inchides incremental employee cost for lease is amortised as expense over the
lease period.



ORIX Leasing & Financial Services India Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements
Jor the vear ended 31 March 2021

(All amounts are in INR Lakhs, except as stated)

I. Company Overview and Significant Accounting policies (Continued)

1.5

Loan against hypothecation and Lean against property

Initial direct cost including origination fees, brokerage expenses, is amortised as income/expense on
effective inferest rate basis over the loan period.

Initial direct cost including incremental employee cost and credit evaluation cost is amortised as expense
over the lease period.

Income arising out of defayed payment in Loans is recognised when they become measurable and when
it is not unreasonable to expect their ultimate collection.

Operating lease income

Lease income on an operaling lease is recognized in the Statement of profit and loss on a straight-line
basis over the lease term.

Other income

Other Income represents income earned from the activities incidental to the business and is recognised
when the right to receive the income is established as per the terms of the contract.

Property, plant and equipment

a. Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and impairment, if
any. Cost comprises of cost of acquisition, cost of improvements and any directly attributable cost of
bringing the assets to its working condition for its intended use.

b. The cost of fixed assets not ready for their intended use at the balance sheet date is disclosed under
capital work in progress.

c. Land and Buildings are taken on a fong-term composite lease. The Company has assessed the lease
of land and building separately and concluded that both of these leases are finance leases in nature.

d. Assels given by the Company under operating lease are included in fixed assets.

e. PPE is derecognised on disposal or when no tuture economic benefits are expected from its use. Any
gain or Joss arising on derccognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the net carrying amount of the assct) is recognised in the Statement of profit and loss in
the year the asset is derecognised.

f. Subsequent costs incurred, after the asset is put to use, are generally maintenance costs or other
statutory costs that do not increase useful life of asset and same are charged in the Statement of profit
and loss.

g. Residual value , estimated useful life and method of depreciation are reviewed every year. Any
change in these estimates are accounted as change in accounting estimates.



ORIX Leasing & Financial Services India Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements
Jor the year ended 31 March 2021

{All amounts are in INR Lakhs, except as stated)

1.

1.5

Company Overview and Significant Accounting policies (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

1.5.1 Depreciation / Amortisation:

1.6

1.7

L7.1

Depreciation / Amortisation has been provided on straight line method at the rates prescribed under part
“C* of Schedule 11 to the Companies Act, 2013, except tor tollowing assets. The useful life of the asset
is the period aver which the asset is expected to be available for the use to the Company:

Asset Type Useful
life

Furniture and fixtures 4-7 years

Vehicles 4 years

Commercial Vehicles under 6 vears

Operating Lease

Computer software 6 years

a. Depreciation for the month of purchase is calculated in the proportionate period from the date of
purchase and depreciation for the month of sale is calculated in the proportionate pertod till the date
of sale.

b. Fixed assets costing less than T 5.000 are charged to the Statement of profit and loss.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets are stated at cost less accumutated amortisation and impairment.

Intangibles are capitalised at cost of acquisition including cost attributable to readying the asset for use.
Tntangible assets are amoitised over their respective individual estimated useful lives on a straight-line
basis, from the date that they are available for use.

Amortisation method and useful lives are reviewed periodically imchuding at each financial year end.
Support and maintenance payable annually are charged to the statement of profit and loss

Financial instruments
Initial Recognition

The Company recognizes financial assets and financial liabilities when it becomes a party to the
conlractual provisions of the instrument. Al financial assets and liabilities are recognized at fair value
on initial recognition, except for trade receivables which are initially measured at transaction price.
Transaction costs that arc directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities that are not at fair value through profit or loss are added to the fair value on initial recognition.
Regular way purchase and sale of financial assets are accounted for at trade date.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
Jfor the year ended 31 March 2021

(All amounts are in INR Lakls, except as stated)

1.7

1.7.2

1.7.3

Company Overview and Significant Accounting policies (Confinued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

De-recognition of financial instruments

The company derecognizes a {inancial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the
financial asset expire or it transfers the financial asset and the transter qualifies for de-recognition under
Ind AS 109. A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged,
cancelled or expires. The difference between the carrying value of the original financial liability and the
consideration paid is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Subsequent measurement
a. Financial instruments

i) Financial assets carvied at amortised cost

A financial asset is subsequently measured at amortised cost if it is held within a business model whose
objective is to hold the asset in order to collcet contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the
financial asset give risc on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

ii) Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income

A financial asset is subsequently measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if it is
held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows
and selling financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates
to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest the principal amount outstanding.

iii) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

A financial asset which is not classified in any of the above categories are subsequently fair valued
through profit or loss.

iv) Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are subsequently carried at amortized cost using the effective interest method. For
trade and other payables maturing within one year from the Balance Sheet date, the cartying amounts
approximate fair value due to the short maturity of these instruments.

v) Off setting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the balance sheet
when, and only when, the Company has a legally enforceable right to set off the amounts and it intends
either to settle them on a net basis or (o realise the asset and settle the liability simulianeously
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Jor the vear ended 31 March 2021

1.

{All amounts are in INR Lakhs, except as stated)

Company Overview and Significant Accounting policies (Continued)

1.7 Financial instruments (Continued)

b.

1.8

1.9

Share Capital

Ordinary Shares
Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issnance of new
ordinary shares and share options are recognized as a deduction from equity, net of any tax effects.

Fair value of financial instroments

A number of Company’s accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair values, for
both financiai and non-financial assets and liabifities. In determining the fair value of its financial
instruments, the Company uses a variely of methoads and assumptions that are based on market conditions
and risks existing at each reporting date. The methods used to determine fair vahue include discounted
cash flow analysis, available quoted market prices and dealer quotes. All methods of assessing fair value
result in general approximation of value, and such value may never actually be realized.

Fair values are categorised into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the
valuation techniques as follows:

- Level I Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets and liabilities.

- Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or
tiability, either directly or indirectly.

- Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on abservable market data (uncbservable
inputs)

Tmpairment

Financial assets

The Company recognizes loss aliowances using the expected credit loss (ECL} mode! for the financial
assets which are not fair valued through profit or loss. The Company recognises lifetime expected
credit losses (ECL) when there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition
and when the financial instrument is credit impaired. If the credit risk on the financial instrument has
not increased significantly since initial recognition, the Company measures the loss allowance for that
financial instrument at an amount equal to 12 month ECL

The assessment of whether lifetime ECL should be recognised is based on significant increases in the
likelihood or risk of a default occurring since initial recognition.

When determining whether credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since initial
recognition and when estimating expected credit losses, the Company considers reasonable and
supportable information that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This includes both
quantitative and gualitative information and analysis, including on historical experience and forward-
looking information.
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(Al amounts are in INR Lakhs, except as stated)

1. Cempany Overview and Significant Accounting policies (Continued)
1.9 Impairment (Continued)

For trade receivables, Company measures loss allowances using simplified approach. Stage wise loss rates
have been imputed from loan portfolio as applicable in each of the other assets to arrive at the estimation of
impairment for these assets

Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortised cost are deducted from the gross carrying amount
of the assets.

The amount of expeeted credit fosses (or reversal) that is required to adjust the loss allowance at the reporting
date to the amount that is required to be recognised as an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss.

b. Non-financial assets

Fntangible assets and property, plant and equipment

Intangible assets and property, plant and equipment are evaluated for recoverability whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that their carrying amounts may not be recoverable. For the purpose of
impairment testing, the recoverabie amount (i.c. the higher of the fair vaiue less cost to sell and the value-in-
use) is determined on an individual asset basis unless the asset does not generate cash flows that are Jargely
independent of those from other assets. Tn such cases, the recoverable amount is determined for the Cash
Generating Unit to which the asset belongs.

Tf such assets are considered to be impaired, the impairment to be recognized in the Statemment of Profit and
Loss is measured by the amount by which the carrying value of the assets exceeds the estimated recoverable
amount of the asset. An impairment loss is reversed in the statement of profit and loss if there has been a
change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. The carrying amount of the asset is
increased to its revised recoverable amount, provided that this amount does not exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined (net of any accumulated amortization or depreciation) had no
impairment loss been recognized for the asset in prior years.

1.10 Write off

Loans and trade receivables are written off when the Company has no reasonable expectations of recovering
the financial asset. This is the case when the Company determines that the borrower does not have assets or
sources of income that could generate sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts subject to the write-off. A
write-off constitutes a derecognition event.

1.11 Provisions, Contingent liability and Contingent assets

A contingent liability is disclosed unless the possibility of an outflow of resources embodying the economic
benefits is remote.

Provisions are recognised when there is a present obligation as a result of a past event, and it is probable that
an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and there is a
reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation. Provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet date and
adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present
obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the
obligation. Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability.

When there is a possible obligation or a present obligation in respect of which the likelihood of outflow of
resowrces is reinote, no provision or disclosure is made.

Contingent Assels ave neither recognized nor disclosed in the financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
Jor the vear ended 31 March 2021

(All amounts are in INR Lakhs, except as stated)

1. Company Overview and Significant Accounting policies (Continued)
1.12 Foreign currency transactions

Initial recognition

Foretgn currency transactions are recorded in the reporting currency, by applying to the foreign currency
amount the exchange rate between the reporting currency and the foreign currency at the date of the
transactiot.

Subsequent measurement

At the end of each reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the
rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried at the fair value that are denominated in foreign
currencies are retransiated at the rates prevailing at the date when the fair value was determined. Non-
monelaty ilems that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated, The
difference on translation ts charged to the Statement of profit and loss account.

1.13 Leases

The determination of whether an arrangement is a lease , as defined under IND AS 116, is based on whether
fulfillment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset and the arrangement conveys a right
lo use the assel, even if that right is not explicilly specified in an arrangement.

Company as a Lessor :
Leases where the lessor transfers substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the leased asset are
classified as finance lease and other leases are classified as operating lease.

Company as a lessce:
The Company at the commencement of the lease contract recognizes a Right-of-Use (RolJ) asset at cost and

corresponding lease liability, excepl for leases with term of less than twelve months (short term [eases) and
tow-value assets. For these short term and low value leases, the Company recognizes the lease payments as
an operating expense.

1.14 Asset retirement obligations (*ARQO?)

ARO is initially measured at the present vatue of expected cost to settle the obligation and accounted for in
the books if found material.

1.15 Retirement and other employee benefits:

Employee benefits include salaries, wages, contribution to provident fund, gratnity, leave encashment
towards unavailed leave, compensated absence and other terminal benefits

i. Short term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are expensed as the related service is provided at the undiscounted amount of
the benefits expected to be paid in exchange for that service. A liability is recognised for the amount expected
to be paid if the Company has a present [egal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past
service provided by the employee and the obligation can be estimated reliably.
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(All amounts are in INR Lakhs, except as stated)

Company Overview and Significant Accounting policies (Continued)

Retirement and other employee benefits: {Continued)

ii. Post-Employment Benefits
Define contribution plans

Company’s contribution paid/payable during the year to provident fund and ESIC is recognised in the
Statement of profit and loss.

The Company has taken group gratuity- cum -life assurance scheme of Life Insurance Corporation of India
for gramity payable to the employees and incremental liability based on actuarial valuation as per the
projected unit credit method as at the reporting date, is charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Define benefit plans

The Company’s gratuity benefit scheme is defined benefit plan, The Company's net obligation in respect of
a defined benefit plan is calculated by estimating the amount of future benefit that employees have earned i
return for their service in the current and prior periods; that benefit is discounted to determine its present
value. Any unrecognised past service costs and the fair value of any plan assets are deducted. The calculation
of the Company's obligation under each of the two plans is performed annually by a qualified actuary using
the projected unit credit method.

The Company's net obligation in respect of defined benefit plans is calculated separately for each plan by
estimating the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in the current and prior periods,
discounting that amount and deducting the fair value of any plan assets.

The calculation of defined benefit obligations is performed annually by a qualified actuary using the projected
unit credit method. When the calculation results in a potential asset for the Company, the recognised
asset is limited to the present value of economic benefits available in the form of any future refunds from
the plan or reductions in future contributions to the plan.

Remeasurement of the net defined benefit Liability, which comprise actuarial gains and losses, the return on
plan assets (excluding interest) and the effect of the asset ceiling (if any, excluding interest), are recognised
immediately in Other Comprehensive Income. Net interest expense (income) on the net defined liability
(assets) is computed by applying the discount rate, used to measure the net defined liability (asset), to the
net defined liability (asset) at the start of the financial year after taking into account any changes as a result
of contribution and bencfit payments during the year. Net interest expense and other expenses related to
defined benefit plans are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss.

When the benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed, the resulting change in benefit that relates
to past service or the gain or loss on curtailment is recognised immediately in Statement of Profit and Loss.
The Company recognises gains and losses on the settlement of a defined benefit plan when the settlement
OCCUfs.



ORIX Leasing & Financial Services India Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements

Jor the vear ended 31 March 2021
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Company Overview and Significant Accounting policies (Continued)

L.eave encashment

The employees can carry-forward a portion of the unutilised accrued leave encashment and utilise it in future
service periods or receive cash compensation on termination of employment. Since the leave encashment do
not {all due wholly within twelve months aller the end of the period in which the employees render the related
service and are also not expected to be utilised wholly within twelve months after the end of such peried.
the beneflt is classified as a long-term employee benefit. The Company records an obligation for such leave
encashment in the periad in which the employee renders the services that increase this entitlement. The
obligation is measured on the basis of independent actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method.

Taxation
Income tax expenses represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.

Current Tax

Current tax comprises amount of tax payable in respect of the taxable income or loss for the year determined
in accordance with Income Tax Act, 1961 and any adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respecet of
previous years, The Company’s current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset as the Company has legally enforceable right to set
off current tax assets against current tax liabilities.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amount of assets and liabilities in
the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred
tax Habilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary ditferences. Deferred tax assets are generally
recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits
will be available against which those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax
assels and liabilities are not recognised il the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of assets and liabilities in a transacticn that atfects neither the taxable profit
nor the accounting profit.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the
assets to be recovered.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates thal are expecied to apply in the period inn
which the liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted
ot substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflect the tax consequences that would follow from
the manner in which the Company expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying
amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset as the Company has legally enforceable right (o set
off current tax assets against current tax lLiabilities.
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Company Overview and Significant Accounting policies (Continued)

Taxation (Continted)

Current and deferred tax for the year

Current and deferred tax are recognised in statement of profit and loss, except when they relate to items that
are recognised in other comprehensive income or dircctly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred
tax are also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief
operating decision maker.

The board of directors of the Company has appointed a CEQ, who asscsses the financial performance and
position of the Company, and makes strategic decisions of allocation of resources, Hence, CEQ has been
identified as being the chief operating decision maker.

Entity shall report separately information about operating segment that meets criteria as per IND AS 108.
Assignment

Assigned assets are derecognised only if the Company loses control of the contractual rights that comprise
the corresponding pool or mortgages transferred. Transfer of pool or mortgages under the current scenario
involves transfer of proportionate shares in the pools of mortgages. Such transfers result in de recognition
only of that proportion of mortgages as to meet the derecognition eriteria. The proportion retained by the
Company continue to be accounted for as loans, as mentioned above. Retained interest on loan assigned is
recognized upfront in the statement of Profit and Loss Account in the year of assignment. Aay changes in
retained inlerest in subsequent years due to change in interest rates, prepayments elc are recognized in the
statement of Profit and Loss Account in the year it occurs.

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity
shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year. The weighted
average number of equity shares outstanding during the year is adjusted for events such as bonus issue, bonus
element in a rights issue, share split, and reverse share split (consolidation of shares) that have changed the
number of equity shares outstanding, without a corresponding change in resources.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to
equily sharecholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year are adjusted for
the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.
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Company Overview and Significant Accounting policies (Continued)

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hand and as imprest, demand deposits with banks and other short-
term highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs (other than those that are attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of
qualifying assets) are charged to the statement of profit and loss account in the period in which they are
incurred.

Inventories

Inveniories comprising of vehicles returned by customers are valued at the lower of cost and net realizable
value,

Commitments

Sanction and disbursement is a continuous activity. There may be few advances which are sanctioned during
the year however not disbursed / delivered are disclosed as commitments.
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(4 amounts are in INR Lakhs, except as stated )

As at Asat
Particulars 31 March 2021 31 March 2028
2 Cash and cash equivalents
Balance with Banks in current accounts 2,630 3761
Cuash on hand 88 N
Cheques, drafts on hand 17 -
2,735 3766
3 Bank balance other than Cash and cash equivalents
Deposit with original maturity of more than 3 months but residual maturity of less than
12 months* 92 88
92 88

*(ut of the above bank deposits of T 86 have heen kept as a seeurity {or registrativn with the VAl authoritics of vartous states.

4 Trade receivable
Receivabies considered good sceured 78 110
Less: Loss allowance for trade receivable i -
Receivables considered good unsecured - -
Less: Loss allowance for trade receivable - -
Receivables which have significant increase in credit risk 137 196
Less: Loss allowance for trade recefvable ()] -
Reccivable credit impaired L0 505
T.ess: Loss allewance for trade recenvable {131) {01)
Total 1,194 660

There are no debts due by directors or ather afficers of the Company

5 Loans
Loan against Hypothecation of vehicle 25,606 36,239
Loan against Property 1,57,024 1.66.451
Finance Leases 45,657 46,661
ILess: Impairment loss allowance (8.588) (4,687)
Tatal 2,119,699 244,684

Emergency Credit Line Guarantee Scheme {ECLGS)} in respect of Loan against Hypothecation of vehicle and Loan against property
During the current year, the Government of India through Ministry of Finance, Department of Financial Services, had introduced the
Emergency Credit Line Guarantee Scheme (ECLGS), for providing 100% guarantee coverage for additional working capital term foans (in
case of Banks and Fis) and additional term loans (in case of NBFCs) upto 20% of their entire outstanding credit (upta limits specified
under the Scheme) as on February 29, 2020. ECLGS was offered to borrowers eligible as per the crileria specified in the scheme, The
Company catried out credit assessment of eligible borrowers to assess the requirement of the borrower and the qualifying criteria as
per criteria as spacified by National Credit Guarantee Trustee Company Limited {NCGTC).

Restructuring of Accounts in respect of Loan against Hypothecation of vehicle and Loan against property

The economic fallout on account of COVID-19 pandemic has led to significant financial stress for many borrowers. Considering the
above, with the intent to facilitate revival and to mitigate the impact on ultimate borrowers, Reserve Bank of India (RB1) intraduced
measures under the Resolution Framework for COVID-19. As per the RBI Framewaork, the Coampany established a policy to provide
resolution for eligihle borrowers having stress an account of COVID-19 in line with the RBI Guidelines. As advised under the said circular
and Company’s policy, the eligibility of customers was assessed, so as to understand the extent of financial stress caused due to COVID-
19, sales and cansegquent cash flow mismatch, duly supported by the documentary evidence. in addition to assessing the impact of
stress, the Resoltution framework was discussed with the eligible borrower({Refer note 47 for disclosure as per circular on restructuring)
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(A amounes are in INR Lakhs, except as stated )

Particulars

Loans (Contintied)

Moratarium

Asat
31 March 2021

As at
3I March 2028

The RBI had announced Moratorium for 6 months on repayments for the period March 2020 to August 2026 for term loans and working
capital facilities outstanding as on February 29, 2020, This was part of the regulatery measures adopted tc mitigate the burden of debt
servicing brought about by disruptions on account of Covid pandemic and to ensure continuity of viable businesses. As part of the
scheme and as per Company's Board approved policy, the Company has provided moratorium to eligibie borrowers. {Refer note 46 for

disclosure as per circular on maratorium)

T.oans at amortised cost

A

Term Inans

Finree Lease

Gross Total A

Less: Tmparrment Loss allowance
Net Total A

B

Seewred by tangible assels

Secured by intangible assets

Covered by Bank/Govermment Guaraniges
{nsecured

Gross Total B

Less: Paparment Loss allowanee

Net Total B

C

Loans in India

Public Secror

Others

Gross Total

Less: Impairment loss allowance
Net

Loans outside India
Less: Impairment loss allowance
Net

Net Total C
Other financial assets

Security deposits Premises

Sundry Deposits

Retained Tnterest on {.oan Assigned
Recoverable from salc of asscts
Luans and advances W cmployees
[xgratia receivable®

Out of pocket cxpenses recoverable

Less: Loss Allowance for Out of pocket expenses recoverable

Totad

1,82,631 2.02.710
43,657 40,661
2,258,287 2.49.370
(8.588) {4,6873
2.10.699 345583
2,23,339 249370
£,948 -
2,28,287 249370
{8,588} (4,687
7,19,699 31i583
2,28,287 2.49.370
(8,588) (4,687)
2,19,699 2,44,683
219,699 2,939,683
24 34

14 49

505 563

29 27

5 7

197 -
3,208 2,488
(15) {16)
3,997 3,152

*The Government of India, Ministry of Finance, vide its notification dated Octaber 23, 202G, had announced COVID-19 Relief Scheme for
grant of ex-gratia payment of difference between compound interest and simple interest for six months from March 20 to Aug 20 to
borrowers in specified loan accounts (Scheme), as per the eligibitity criteria and other aspects specified therein and irrespective of
whether the moratorium was availed or not. The Company has implemented the Scheme and calculated the amount to be eredited to

the eligibie borrowers loan account as per the Scheme.
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as at 31 March 2027

A amounts are i INR Lakhs, excepr as stated )

Asat A5 at
Particulars 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
7 Inventories
Stock-in-trade B4 20
91 20
8 Current tax assets (net)
Advance ax (net of provision for tax) 794 1,396
(Net of provision Tor tax of March 2020 T 12,048/, March 2021 2 12.048/)
Total 794 1,396
9 Deferred tax assets (net)
6,658 5,454

Peferred Tax Assets (net)

Total ’ 6,658 5454
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ORIX Leasing and Financial Services India Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
as at 31 March 2021

(Al amounits are in INR Lakhs, except as stated |

IT  Right of use Assets

Particulars

Giross carrying amomnt
As At April 01, 2019
Additions

As at March 31, 2020
As Ar April 01, 2020
Addiions

Dhsposals

As at March 31, 2021
Acrimulated Depreciation / amortization and impairment :
As At April 01, 2019
Additons

As at March 31, 2020
As At April 41, 2020
Additions

Disposals

Ax al March 31, 2021
Net carrying

As at March 31, 2020
As at March 31, 2021

Right to use Total
551 S5
3 31
582 582
582 582
17 17
147 147
452 452
12% 128
146 146
274 274
274 274
i28 128
82 82
320 320
308 308
132 132




ORIX Leasing and Financial Services India Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continned)
as at 31 March 2021

(Al arironris are i INR Lakhs, except us stoted |

12 Intangible Assets

Particulars

Gross carrying amaune
As At April B, 2019
Addiztons

As at March 31, 2020

As At Apeil 01, 2020
Addiwong

As at March 31, 2021

Accumulated Depreciation { amortization and impairment
As At April OF, 2019

Additions

As at March 31, 2024

As Ac April 1, 2020
Additions

As at Marels 31, 2021

Net earrying

As at March 31, 2

As at March 31, 2021

Software Total
236 2136
236 236
236 236
207 207
443 443
125 125

13 43
170 176
170 170

T T
240 248
66 66
203 203
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Notes to audited financial statements (Continued)
as af 31 March 2021

(Al amounts are in INR Lakhs, except as stated )

Particulars

i3 Other non-financial assets

Prepaid Expenses

Ralance with government authoritics

= Var credit receivable

= GST credit receivable

- Sales lax refund

Advanges to snppliers of goods and scrvices
Advanees towards Nuance lease & others

Tatal

14  Trade Payables

Total oulstanding dues of Micro and Small Enterprises
T'otal outstanding dues of creditors other than Micre and Small Enterprises

Total

Debt Securities

—
h

Non-convertible unsecured debentures

Total

Liability component of compound financial instruments
{Debenture)

Total (A)

Dbt securitics in Tndia
Pebt securities outside India

Total (B) to tally with (A)
16 Borrowings (Other than debt sccurities)

Term Loan

= From banlks

= Masala bond

- ECB borrowing from Bank

Cash credits

Overdrafl facililies

Loans and advances from related party
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings

Total
Sceurity Terms for ail the above secured facility are conunon and they read as under.
1) Unencuwhered ovwned assets

iy Receivables under operating lease with underlying assets.
iif) Receivables from the Company’s other business activities

As at As at
31 March 2621 31 March 2020
506 419

53 33
2,997 37531
56 36

261 275
1,853 380
3,660 4,914
3 i1
2,764 2,003
2,767 2,106
20,000 20,000
20,000 20,000

Al Amortised Cost

20,000 20,000
70,000 70,000
20,000 20,000
20,000 20,000

1,15,968 1.53.466
10,000 10,000
24,688 17,500

245 198

. 7

1,003 672
886 1,500
1,52,790 1,83,343




ORIX Leasing & Financial Services India Limited

Notes to audited financial statements (Continued)
as at 31 March 2021

(Al amonnis are in INR Lakhs, excepi as stated )

Particulars

16  Borrewings (Other than debt securities) (Continued)

{a)¥Term loans
{{)ftom banks
(i) {rony other partics
{Deferred payment habilities
(¢c)Loans from related parties
(d) Finance lease obligations
(e)l.aabihity component of compound financial instraments
(f)Loans repavable on demand
(1) from banks
(ii¥rom other partics
(g) Other loans-Tnterest acerued but not due on borrowings

Total (A)

Borrowings in India
Borrowings outside India

Total (B) to tally with (A)

17  lLease liabilities
Lease liabilities
Total

18 Deposits
Sccurily deposits from lessees
Taotal

19 Other financial liabilities
Other Payables to Employees
Payable in respeet of loans assigned
Provision {or expenses
Advance from customers
Total

20 Current tax liabilities (Net)

Provision [or income lax (nel of advance tax)
(Nel of advance tax for March 2020 T 3,301/- and Marclk 2021 2 6,036/-)

Total

A% at
31 March 2021

Asat

31 March 2020

At Amortived Cost

1.50,656 1.80.9686
1,003 672
245 203
886 1,500
732750 1,683,343
117,759 1,55.523
35,031 27.820
T.52,790 83,333
(55 348

i35 E¥E
1,347 1,249
134 249
371 240

135 83

466 299
1,942 1.505
2,913 2,127
258 74

258 T4




ORIX Leasing & Financial Services India Limited

Notes to audited financial statements (Confined)
as af 31 March 2021

(Al amounts are in INR Lakhs, except ax stafed )

Particulars

21  Provisions
Provision for emiployees' benefits
- Provision for Compensated ahsences
~ Provision for Gratoity
Cther Provisions

Taotal
22 Other non-financial liabilities

Deferred Income-Sceurities deposit
Statutory remittaces (Contributions to PF, GST. TDS etc)

Total
23 EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL

Authorised

15,00,000,00 cquity shares of T 10 each

Issued

100,935,961 equity shares of T 16 each fully paid up

Tuta!

24 Other equity

Statutary Reserve

Opening balunce

Add : Additons during the year
Balance at the end of the year

Securities premium account

Retained Earnings

Balance at the beginning of the year
Profit for the year

Less: Transfer to statutory rescrve
Bafance at the end ol the vear

Other Comprehensive Tncome ;
Halance at the beginning of the year
Transactions during the year
Baiance at the end of the year

Tatal

As af
31 Murch 2021

Asat
31 March 2020

163 136

60 b

37 6

262 158

32 325

305 146

647 471
1,50,00,60,000 1,50,00,00,000
1,60,93,59,000 1.00,93,59,010
1,00,93,59,010 1,00,93,59,010
3,327 2,796

952 131

4,479 3.527

30,303 30,303

£3,280 10,37%

4,762 3,640

952 731

£7,090 13,280

(169) 1)

5 (18)

(103) {109)

51,767 17,001

£) Securities premiwn is used for yecording the premiwm on issue of shares. The reserve is utilised in accordance with the provisions of

section 52 of the Companies Act, 2013

#) Slatutory reserve represents reserve fund created pursuant to Section 45-1C of the RBI Act, 1934 througlh transfer of specitied percentage
of net profit every year before any dividend is declared. The reserve fund can be utilised ondy for limited purposes as specilied by RBI from
time Lo time and every such utilisation shall be reported to the RBI within specilied period ol time {from the date of such utilisation.

i{i) Retgined earnings or acoumulated surplus represents otal of all profits retained since Company’s inception. Retained carnings are
credited with current year profits. reduced by losses, it any, wransters to General reserve or any such other appropriations to specific

[CSCIVEs,

iv) Other comprehensive income represent acruarial gaing and losses on defined benefit plans, net of taxes.



ORIX Leasing & Financial Services India Limited

Notes to audited financial statements (Continued)
Jor the year ended 31 March 2021

(A amonts are in INR Lakhs, except as stated |

(]
h

26

27

28

29

PARTICUALRS

Interest income

Interest on lpans
Penal interest meome

Total
On Financial Assets measured at Amortised Cost

Intcrest on loans
Penal inlerest imcome

Total

Fees and commission income
Origination and processing [ees
Total

Net gain on fair value changes

Securities-lesses
Sceuritics-{remiscs

Total

Sales of services

Fleet managenent services
{euse rental on operating, lease

Total
Other income

Discount received from dealers

Ternunation / Rescheduling charges - Hypothecation
Tneome on pre termination of lease

L.iabilitics / provisions no longer required written back
Bad debis recovered

Bank deposits

Interst on loan to staff’

Other interest

Interest on inconze tax retund

Miscellaneous income

Total

Far the year ended
31 March 2021

For the year ended
31 March 2020

31,192 31,738

26 24

31,218 31,762

31,192 31,738

26 24

31,218 31,762

191 274

191 274

93 71

3 1

6 72

252 185

956 978

1,208 1,164

152 102

254 276

12 5|

6B 243

8 a2

4 3

0 1

- 9
70 -

588 813

1,156 1,532




ORIX Leasing & Financiai Services India Limited

Notes to audited financial statements (Continued)
Jor the year ended 31 March 202/

(AN antounts ave in INR Lakhs. except as stated )

30

31

32

33

34

PARTIHCUALRS

Finance Cost

Thgerest
Other horrowing cosls
Interest ot lease labidity

Total

On Financial liability measured at Amortised Cost
Interest on borrowings

Interest on debt securities

Other interest expense

Tatal

Impairment on financial instruments

Loss alfowance ECL
Bad debts

Total
Employee benefit expenses

Salaries and wages
Contribugion to provident and other funds
Stat? welfare expenses

Total

Depreciation and amortisation expense

Depreciation on tangible {ixed assets
Depreciation on Right-ofouse assets
Amortization on intangible fixed assets

Tatal

Other expenses

Power and fuel

Rent

Repairs and maintenance

[nsurance

Rates and taxes

Suh-coniract charges

Comununication expenses

Legal and professional fees

Corporate social responsibility expense (Refer note (i) helow)
Computer maintenance and Software
Travelling and conveyance

Durector's sitting fees

Payments to Auditors (Refer note (i) below)
{055 on pre termination of lease

Loss on leemination and foreclosure of loans
Sundry balances written off

Management fees

T.0ss on assigment

Miscellancous expenses
Total

For the year ended
31 March 2021

For the year ended
31 March 2020

14,460 17,632
346 303
21 33
14,767 17,972
13,774 15,082
626 2,550
367 340
14,767 17,972
3,991 |.684
- 123
3,991 1,807
3004 3.009
199 216
38 86
3.361 3,401
749 757
128 146
70 45
947 928
85 87
196 200
74 70
258 379
222 237
82 167
26 35
252 367
124 48
138 79
34 214
13 4y
51 49
394 -
1,658 614
10 -
538 259
58 68
160 168
4,326 3,410




ORIX Leasing & Financial Services India Limited

Notes to audited financizl statements (Continted)
Jor the year ended 31 March 2021

(A cmowirs are in INR Lakhs, excepi as steted )

PARTICUALRS

34 Other expenses (Continued)

Notes :
(1) Corporate Soctal Responsibility Expendilure (CSR)

. Gross amount reguired to be spent by Company on CSR s T8 (P. Y. T 64) and the

same is spent during the year.
2. Ameount spent during the year on:

Particulars

I. Construction/acquisition of' any asset
2. On purposes other than (1) above
Total

(1L} Pavment to Auditors:
Statutery audil fees
(Certitication fees

Total

7]
th

Earnings per equity share
Profit after tax atiributable to equity shareholders

Calculation of weighted average number ot equily shares

Number of equity shares at the beginning of the year

Number of cquity shares outstanding at the end of the'yvear

Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding dering the year  (B)

Basic and diluted carnings per share (3} (A7B)

Face value per share (3)

For the year ended For

31 March 2021

Amount Spent

the year ended
3t March 2020

88 38

88 88

42 44

D) 5

51 49

1,767 3.622
10,09,35,901 10,09,35.901
10,09,35,901 10.09,35.901
10,09,35,901 10,09,33.901
£72 3.39

10.00 10.00



ORIX Leasing & Financial Services India Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
as at 31 March 2021

(A1l amounts are in INR Lakhs, except as stated )

23.1

Shave capital :

Particulars As at 31 March 2021 As at 3] March 2020

Number Amount Number Aamtount
Authoriscd
Fyuity Shares of 210 cach 15.00,00,000 1.50,00.00.000 15,60,60,000 1.50.00,00,000

13.5% preference shaves of € 16 each - - - -

Issued
Equity Shares of ¥ 11 cach 10,0835 901 £.00,93,59.010 10.09.33901 100,93, 39,010

Subseribed & fully paid up
Equnty Shanes of 2 10 cach 10,09,35 901 1009359010 10,0935 904 1.00.95,39.010

Tatal 10,09,35,901 1,00,93,59,018 10,09 35 90 1,00.93,39.010

Reconciliation of the number of shares and amount outstanding at the heginning and at the end of the reporting period:

Particulars Asat 3F March 2821 As at 31 March 2020
Number Amount Number Ampunt
Shares outstauding at the begmming ol the year 10,09,35.901 1.00,93,59010 10,0935, 901 1,006,933 539010

Shares fssued durmg the year - - - -
Shares outstanding at the end of the year 16,0%,35,901 1.00,93.59.010 10,09,35.901 1069359010

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par vatue of T 10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote
per share.

T the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to recesve remaining assets of the Company, after
distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution wiil be in proportion {o the aumber of equity shares held by the sharcholders.
10,09,33,901 (P.Y. 10,09,35901) Equity Shares are held by ORIX Auto Infrastructure Services Limited, the holding company and its

nominces.

Details of sharcholders olding more than 3% sharces in the Company/ shares held by holding/ultimate holding company and its nominccs:

Name of Shareholder As at 31 March 2021 Asat 31 March 2020
No of shares held Y% of holding No of shares held % of holding

ORIX Auto Infrastructure Services Linuted and its nonunecs 10,09,33 904 H00% 10,0933 5¢1 100%




ORIX Leasing and Financial Services India Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continted)
Jor the year ended 31 March 2021

(Al amonnts are in INR Lakhs, except as stated)
36.1 Contingent liabilities (to the extent not provided for):

i} Claims ggainst the Company not acknowledged as debts

Particubars 31 March 02t 31 Mareh 2020
income {ax 5§45 545
Sales tax TI0 133
Eitigation pending against (he comgany 2 2

Toral 1,315 1,320

The Company believes it is most Hkely to succeed in the above cases and fience no provision ts considered necessary.

i) Commitments:

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed and not provided for :

Particulars 3E March 2021 31 Murch 2020

Loan and lease commutments 7754 3408

36.2 Details of dues to Miero and Small Enterprises

Based on and to the extent of the information received by the Company from the suppliers during the year regarding their status under the
Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 20060 (MSMED Act) and relied upon by the auditors, there arc owtstandimg amounts
due to MSME as at 31 Marcch 2021,

Particulars 31 March 2021 31 March 2020

e

a) Prncipal amwunt due andd remainiug unpaid to suppliers as at the year end
b Interest acertied and due 1o supplicrs on the above amount as at the year end - -
cy Interese paid to suppliers i terms of Section 16 of the MEMED Aut - -
d) Payment made to suppliers (other than interest) beyond the appomted day, durmg the year - -
¢) hiterest pand (o suppliers (other than Section 16 of the MSMET? Act) - -
1) Interest due and payable to supplicrs for payments alrcady made { for the peried of deluy, il any) - -
) Tnterest accried and remaiving unpaid at the year end - -

h) Further interest due and payable even in the succeeding vears, uatil such date when the interese duc as above are - -
actuaily paid to the small enterprises




ORIX Leasing and Financial Services India Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
Sor the vear ended 31 March 2021

(A amonnts are fin INR Lakhis, except as stated)

36.3 Foreign currency exposures not hedged by derivative instruments are as follows:

Particulars 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Amount in original Amount in INR Amount in original Amount in INR
curTeRcy carrency
Amount pavable for baok 1 77 i 84
guarantee fees USL)
Amount pivable for 0 2 (} 2
canututiment Towy
Amount receivable for 3 10 3 204
reimbirsement of expenses
tUsDy

The Company has a process whereby periodically all fong term contracts are assessed for material foresceable losses. At the year end. the
Cempany has reviewed and ensured that ne material provision as required under any law / accounting standards for material [oresceable
losscs on such long term contracts is required t be made in the books of accounts. The Comapny did nol enter inte any derivative transactions
during the year.

364 There las been no other events after the reporting date that require disclosure in these fimancial statement.

36.5  Based on management's assessment, the Company repossesses vehicles where there s delinquency and the probability of recovery 1s doubtlul.
Ason 31 March 2021, there are 29 (Y. 79) repossessed vehicles having value of Rs 304.62 (1NY. [ 183.39)

36.6  Value zero represent amount less than fifty thousand.



ORIX 1 easing and Financial Services India Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
Jor the year ended 31 March 2021

{All mmounts are in INR Lakhs, except as stated )

37

.

These disclosures are made pursuant {o Reserve Bank of India Master Direction DNBR. PD. 0608/03.10.119/2016-17 dated
September O, 2016 (as amended), to the extent applicable to the Company.

Capital :

‘The Company determines the amount of capital required on the busis of aperations, capital expenditure and strategic thvestment plans. The capital struetuie
is moaitored on the basis of net debt 1o equity and maturity protile of overall debt portfolic of the Company

The Company is subject to the capital adequacy reguirements of the Reserve Bank of India (RBI). Under RBIs capital adeguacy guidelines, the Company is
required to maintain a capital adequacy ratio consisting of Tier t and Tier 1T Capitat. The total of Tier I Capital a1 any point of tme, shal! nat exceed H)
percent of Tier I Capital. The minimum capitat ratio as prescribed by RBI guidelines and applicable to the Company, consisting of Tier T and Tier I capnal,
shail not be less than 15 percent of its aggregate risk weighted assets on-balance sheet und of risk adjusted value of oif-balance sheet,

The Company has complied with all regulatory requirements related o capital and capital adequacy ratios as prescribed by RBI, details of which are given

betow -
Particulars 31 Mareh 2021 31 March 2020
Regulatery Regulatory Regulatory Regudatory
capital  capital value capital  capital valae,
i) Tier Tcapital {*5) 23 04% 19 309 40 246
) Tieu 17 capital 1%3) At 072% 1812
iy Agpreaate of Risk Werghled Assets 252,490
Total capital 24,607 20.22%, 3,03,554

Asset Linbility Management Matority pattern of certain items of Assets amd Liabilities :
As at 31 March 2021

Tarticulars Deposits Advances  Investinents  Borrpwings Fureign Fareign

Currency Currencyi

ASSEIS liabilities
1ta 7 days - 3189 - 140 - -
Y to 14 days - 130 - - - -
13t 30/3F duys - 11,357 - 12,753 - -
OGver 1 Morth Upto 2 Monik - 2,637 - 3,709 - -
Over 2 Morth Upto 3 Maonth - 2,383 - 10,563 - -
hverr 3 Morth Upto 6 Month - 7,843 - 9,293 - -
Over 6 Morth Upto 1 Year - 15,222 - 29,265 - -
Over 1 YearUpto 3 Year - 41,983 - 77,046 - -
ver 3 YearUpto 3 Year - 24,147 " 30,000 - -
Over 5 Year - 1,18.216 - - - -
Totul - 1,28,287 - £,72,790 - -

As at 31 March 2020

Pariiculars Denusits Advances  Tnvestments  Borrowings Furetgn Foreign
Currency Currency
assefs lzabilities
[ o7 days - 2577 - 249 - -
8 to 14 duys - F00 . - - -
E5 to 30431 dlays - R.309 - 4,107 - -
Over 1 Month Upte 2 Manth - 259 - 3,690 - -
Over 2 Manth Upte 3 Manth - 3,366 - 3399 - -
Over 3 Manth Upto 6 Month - 14,38] - 43,267 - -
Over 6 Month Upte 1 Year - £9,229 - 37,363 - -
(hver T Yearlpro 3 Year - 51,771 - 98,637 - -
ver 3 YearlIpto 5 Year - 22,000 - 12,633 - -
her 5 Year - i,28,781 - - - -
Total - 2,49,370 - 2,003,344 - -

Matuvity pattern is as per contractual cash flow and management estimate of recovering/paying advances/borrowing



ORIX T.easing and Financial Services India Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
Jor the year ended 31 March 2021

(All amounts are in INR Lakhs, except as stated)

37  These disclosures are made pursuant to Reserve Bank of India Master Direction DNBR. PD. 008/03.10.119/2016-17 dated
September 01, 2016 (as amended), to the extent applicable to the Company. (Continued)

37.3  Exposure to Real Estate Sector @

Category 31 ¥arch 202§ 31 March 2020
Direet Exposare
{n Residential Mortgages -
Lenduny fully secured by mortgages on residental property that s or will be
ocgupied by the borrower or that 15 rented
{n) Comnercial Real Estate - 1,805 2,025
Lendmg secured by mertgages on cotamereial real estates (office buitdings,
retail space, mult- purpose commerciat premises, muhi-tamily residential
butddings, multi-tenanted commercial premises, imdustral or warchouse
space, hotels, nd acquisition, development and censtruction, ecc.). Fxposure
waould also melude nen-fund based limits
fus)  Investmenis in Morigage Backed Securities
(MI135) and ather securitised exposures -
& Residential
B Commercral Real Estue
Tutad 1,805 2025

This includes exposure 1o parties having business aclivities ol real estale/ infrastructure

37.4  Details of Single Borrower Limit (SG1.) / Group Borrower Limit (GBL) excecded by the NBFC :
The Company has not exceeded the Mrudential Exposure Limits for any Singles Group Borrower,

37.5  Ratings assigned by credit rating agencics and migration of rafings during the year :

The Caompany has recetved revised rating on 12 June 2020 from India Ratings & Research (Fiels group) Lid as Tollows

. Current Previvus
Particalars . .
Rating Rating
Loy Term IND AAA IND AAA
Short Term IND AL+ IND Al
37.6  Provisions and Contingencics @
Break up of "Provisions and Cuntingerreies' shuwie oader the head Fxpenditure in 3F March 2021 31 March 2020
Profit and Loss Aecount
Provision towards non performing assets {stage three) 2122 1,048
PrD\'lSl(lﬂ l‘ﬂ'dd(: l[l\\'iﬂ'(_‘ﬂ Tneome lax I,T l 5 3'946
Provision for other finaneral assets a1 179
Troviston for standard assets {stage one and tvo) 1,777 (264)
377 Concentration of Advances:
Particulurs 31 March 2021 3t March 2020
Total Advances to twenty largest betrovers 18,101 10,522
Percentage of Advances to tventy fargest borroswers to Towal Advances of the 8% %
Company
All advances are scowred by underlying assets
378  Concentration of Exposures :
Particulars 31 March 2421 31 Marcl 2020
Total exposure to twenty fargest barrowers ¢ cusiomers 18,101 19,522
Perentage of exposures o twenty fargest borrowers / customers 1o Total Exposure 8% 8%
of the Compary on borrewers / customers




ORIX I.easing and Financial Services India Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continted)
Jor the vear ended 31 March 2021

(Al amounis are in INR Takhs, except as stated )

37 These disclosures are made pursuant to Reserve Bank of India Master Divection DNBR. PD. 008/03.10.119/2056-17 dated

September 01, 2016 (as amended), to the extent applicable to the Company. (Continued)

379 Concentration of non performing assets

Particulars

Total exposure to top four non performimg assets sceounls

3t March 2021

1,509

31 March 2070

1,130

37.10  Sector-wise non performing assets :

Sl

Seetor
No.

1 Agriculmre & albed acuvities
2 MSME

3 Corporate borrowers

4 Services

3 Unsccured personal loans

& Auto Joans

7 Other persoal loaas

Percentage of gross NI"As to net advances in that sectar

31 March 2021

942%,
7.69%

37 23%

3¢ March 2020

4 22%

322%

2lel®

37.11  Movement of non performing assets :

Particulars
(1} Netnon pedfonmmy assets Lo Nel Advances (%)

(ny Movement of non performng assets ( Gross)
a) Opening balance
by Additions during the vew
©) Reductions during the yes

d) Clesmy balanee

tni)  Movemenr af net non performing assets
a) Opening balance
b) Additions during the year
¢} Reductions during the year
d} Crosmy badance
{iv)  Movement of provisions for nen performing assets (exciuding provisions on

standard assels)
a) Opening balance

by Provisions made during the year
<) Wiite-back of excess provisions

dy Closing balance

31 March 2021

9 43%

15,770
12,877
(2,692)

26,055

12,804
10,286
12,126)
24054

287

2,601
{506)

3,001

31 March 2020

5 23%

7,843
10,435
(2.52%)

13,770

6,289
8,452
{1,347
12,894

1,354

2003
(681}

2876

37.12 Disclosure of Customers Complaints :

Patticulars

No. of complaints pending at the beginming of the vea

P

o

No. of' complatnts received durimg the year

No. of complants redressed during the year

a

d  No. of complaints pending at the end of the vear

31 Myreh 2021

3t March 2020

37.13  Betails of Off Balance Shect Assets :

The Company has provided bank guarantees amountmg to ¥ 76 (P.Y T 76) 10 vurious VAT authorities

37.14  Encumbrances of fixed deposits held by Company :

The Company has lien marked tixed deposits with Bank amounting to € 90 (P.Y.Z 86) for obtaining guarantees as mentioned m nete no 37,13,

37.15 Registration obtained from other financial sector regulators

The Company is not registered with any other financial sector regulator.




ORIX Leasing and Financial Services India Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
Jor the vear ended 31 Mareh 2021

(All amounts arc iy INR Lakhs, except as stated)

37 These disclosures are made pursuant to Reserve Bank of India Master Direction DNBR. PD. 608/03.£0.119/2016-17 dated
September 81,2016 (as amended), to the extent applicable to the Company. (Continued)

37.16 Penalties imposed by RBI and other regulators
RBI and other regutator has not imposed any penaliies on the Company duting current and previous year.
37.17 Financing of parent company product
The Compary has nol linanced any parent conpany product durmg current and previeus year.
37.18 Investmenis
The Company has not made any investnents during cwrrent and previous year
37.19  Derivative
The Company has not entered into any derivauve transaction during current and previaus year.
37.20  Securitisation

The Company has not entered into any securilisalion or assignment transaction during corrent year and previous year

Particulars Current year Previous year
Number ol daccounts - -
Aggregate value {net of provisions) of accounts seld - -
Aggregale consideration - -
Additonal consideration realised in respect of accounts & - -

Aggregale gain/ loss over net hook value B ~

37.21 Purchasing or selling of Non Performing assets
The Company has not purchased or sold any non performing financial asset during current and previous year
37.22  Exposure to capital mavket
The Company does not have any exposure (o capital market during current and previous year
37.23 Overseas assels
The Company does not have any overseas assets during current and previous year.
37.24 Ol Balance Sheet SPVs
The Company does not have any off Balunce Sheet SPVs during current and previous year
37.25  Details of Fraud :
During the vear under review, the Company, in an investigation of Whistle Blow, ascertamed a traud done by sct of borrowers with the Company in
Commercial Vehicle Department. The borrower created fake documents such as Registration Certificate and Tosurance copies. Against these documenty
and valuation report which he had submutted through Valver, this fraudster along with other borrowers obtained loan amounung to T 804.45 Lakhs against

used vehicles (34 in nos), which were not in existence (except on papers). It was taler ascertained that most of these borrowers have caused traud with ather
banks ard financial institutions tollowing same modus operends

This fraud was reported to Audit Committee and Board of Directers and to the RBI through prescribed returns
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Notes to the financial statements (Continuned)
Jor the year ended 31 March 2021

FAEF ctmtertenids e Be ANR Feskhs, SXCUPE 8 STt

38 As per Ind As 24 - Related partices

(A} Name of related parties by whom control is exereised

Ownership nterest

Particwlars Type Place of Tucorporation
31-Mar-21 31-Xlar-10
ORIX Ao Infiastinicine Tinmediare holding Tindia B0 BO09° 95 00994,
Services Limited compiiny
ORIX Carporation Ulnmate holding company Japan 000ty 0 a0
ORIX Housng Finwwe Fetfow Subudiary India 000t o9
Corporatiom Indis Lamited
Infraseeucnere Leasing And Fellow Subsidiary Indie 200 0 00%
Tinancial Services Led
{B} Key management personned

Yaoshiaki Matsuoks - Directors  (ftom 07 Juty 2020)

Harukazu Yamayuchi - Directors  (from 31 March 2021)

Tuo Nakamura - Directors — {upto D3 July 2020}

Takehiro Onishi - Directors  (from 31 March 2021)

Sandeep Gambhir - Managing Director

Koyokozu Ishinube - Divectors {upte 04 November 2020}

Takasht Nakayamo - Diectors (from 04 November 2020)

Ryohet Suzuki - Directors

Vivek Wadhera - CFO

Abhay Kakkar « Diveciors

Nagesh Dubey - Directors

Rajeev Seth - Dircetors

Crourt Sawant « Directors
Detaiks of related party transaction during the year arve given helow:
Facticulavs Immedigte  Ultimate Hofding  IKey managemend  Fellow ssbsidiary

Managesmetzt Charges

Enterest Expenses

Interest Expenses on ECB

Bank guarantce fees

Reut Expense

Reimbursement of Expenses Received

ECE borrowing

Camaitment Charges

Firmance lease assets

Tnterest Tucome on Finance Lease

Finaace lease rentad

Finance lease addition

Finauce lease dedaction

Cast reimbursemwert pail to

lipldliceg company

338
{359}

137
{462)
25
143

Cospany

{180)

10,000
110,000}

a
{12}

personnel
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As per Ind As 24 - Related parties {Confinued)

Parliculars fmmediate

Tliimate Holding

Key munagement

Eoliting company Company personmet
Advance given fur Soltware cost - . - -
(18) =) ] {-}
Auvasee receive for Software cost - - - .
(1443 ] (-} (-}
Brivector sitting fees - - 13 -
-) S Q] -}
Tax Payment - - - i
) [ (] (-}
Loans & receivables (Net off RCL} - - - 3
-} i) =) )
Tncome fraw finance lease - - - 0
) -} O] (1)
Figures in brackets relate o previous year.
Details of related parey outstanding halunces as at the year-end ave given helow:
Pasticnlars Immediate  Ultimate Hobding Koy management  Fellow subsicdary

hwlding company

Net Pavahle 1,004
{p72)
Payabte
Managewenr Charges 344
193
Rent Expense 34
{4y
Cust reimbursement 1
(1
Adavance receive For Soltware cost -
154
Odher payzble 625
{437y
Reccivabie
Service fees towards provide staffing and adwisary -
=)
Payable -
)
TCB borrewinyg -
(=)
Interest on IZCH borrowing -
()
Bank Guarantce tees -
G
Commitment Cliarges -
(-
Payahle towards Divector sitring fees
Abshay Kaklar -
(=)
Nagesh Dmbey -
()
Rajeev Seth -
()
Receivalile
DRIN Houstng Finance Corpovation India Limiged -
(=)
Receivable
[afrastructure Leasing & Financial Sorvices Led -
-}

Cowpany

=

]

=)

=)

20
{204)

20,276
(1,241
20,000
(10,000
197
(155}

77
(84)

nersonrel

=)

Figures in brackets relate to previous year,
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3%  Employee benefit
The Company contributes 1o the fellowing post-empieyment defined benefit plans in India
(i} Defined Contribution Plans:
The Company makes contributions towards provident fund, superannuation Tund and other retirement benefits w a defined conuthution
retirement benetit plan tor qualitying employees. Under the plan, the Company s requirad 1o contribute a specified percentage of payroll cost to
the retirement benefit pian to fund the benefits
The Company recognised T 9 (previous vear T 93 for supcrannuation cantribution and other retirerment henefis contributions in the Statement of
Proficand Loss
The contrthutons payable o these plans by the Company are at rates specitied in the roles of the schemes
The Company recagnised £ 133 tprevious vear 1333 for provident fund contriburions 1 the Statement of Profit and Loss
(iiy  Defined Benefit Plan:
Al The Company makes annual contributions o the Group Gramily cim Life Assurance Schemes admumistered by the HDFC, a tunded defined
benefit plan for gualifying emaployees. The schete provides for payment as under; '
11 On normal retirement S early retirgment 7 withdrawal / resignation
As per the provisions of the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 with vesting pertod of 3 yeurs of service
it} On death in service:
As per the provisions of the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 without any vesting perind. The most recent actuanal valuation of plan assets and
the present value of the defined benefit obligation for gramity were carried out as at March 31, 20210 The present value ol the defined benefit
obligations und the retated current service cost and past service cost, were measured using the Projected Unit Credit Method.
Based on the actarial valuation obtained in this respect. the following table sers out the staws of the grawity plan and the amounts recognised
in the Company’s financial statements as at balance sheet date:
31 Viareh 2021 31 March 2020
Gratuity Fanded
Trefined beneln oblizdion 188 348
Farr value of plan assets 328 32
Net defined benefit {obligation} 50 1]
Nenecurrent - -
Cunent jilt] o
B. Movement in net defined benefit (asset) liability
The lollowing table shows a reconcitiation from the opening balanees 1o the closing balances for net defined benefit {asset) fiability and its
componenis
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Gratwity Funded Graewity Fuanded
Defined berelit ublization
Opewing halaney 347 3o
Current service cost 57 i3
Taterest cost (incame) 24 24
428 387
Ireluded in OCT
Financial assumprinus (&) 35
Ixxperience adjustient 1 (26)
424 3%
Other
Comributions paid by the employver {28} (4
("losing hafance 330 347
Faiér valie of plaw asset
Opening balgnee 342 28
Tmerest invome 24 23
366 HE
included in OCT
Remeasurement gain (loss)
Demographic assumptions
Return on plan assels excluding interest income 0 (16)
366 296
Other
Conributions. paid by the empleyer - a4
Benefits paid (38) [48)
Closing balznce 328 342
Represenied by
Net defined benefit asset -
Net defined henetig liabiliy 58 i
38 5
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39  Emplovee benefit (Continnred)

(iiy  Defined Bencfit Plan: (Contiuned}
C. Plan asscts

Plan assets comprise the following

Tivesument in scheme of fsw soce

31 March 2021

31 March 2020

Grrawity Funded

1009

140G

D. Defined benefit obligations

i. Actuarigl assumnptions

The following were the principal actuarial assumptions at the reporting date (expressed as weighted averages)

Discount rate
Fxpected rate of retarn on plan ussets

Salary escalation

Moriafity post retirement

Emplovee twrnover vate (for different age groups?

31 March 2021
T
3.89%
7000

Indran Assred Lives
Moutalivy (2006-08)
imadified) Ultimae

5.73% & 2%

31 March 2020
6.89%
589

T,

Indran Assuved Lives
Mortadity (200608}
(medified) Vltimate

T &

:J|

The overall expected rate of return on assets is determined based on the market prices prevating on that date. applicable to the pertod over

which the obligation is to be scttled

E. Reconciliation of net tiability/asset
Gratuity Ay at As at
31 March 2021 31 March 2010
Cpening Balance o 21
Expenses Recopmized i the Statement of Prodit or Loss a4 55
Expenses Recognized in OCT ) 24
(Employeer benefiis) - (94)
Net fiabalicy Asset recogrised in the balance sheat &0 [
F. Expenses recognized in Statement of Profit & loss
As L As al

31 Mzrech 2021
Expenses Recopmzed in the Statement of Profic ar Loss for Cuarrent
Period

31 March 2020

Crrrent Service £'ost s7 53
Net Interest Cost 4 2
Expenses Recogmzed 57 A5

G, Expenses recognized in Other Comprehensive Encome (OCEH
As At As at

31 March 2021
Lxpenses Recogmzed in the Uther Comprehensive Liceme (OCT) tor
Current Penod

Actuarial (GainspLosses on Obligation For the Period (4)
Return on Plan Assets, Excluding Interest Income 0
Vet {Invome)Expense Fos the Period Recogmized in OCT 4

31 Muarch 2020

5o

12
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39 Employee benefit (Continued)

(it} Defined Benefit Plan: (Contiuned)
II. Reconciliation of OCI

Gratuiry Asat As at
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Opening Balanee £ ol
Actanes losses during the year ) 18
Balavce cnd of the yek 104 {1
L Other Detuils
Ayt Asat

Preseribad contrtbutton for next years (12 manths)

31 March 202t

94

31 March z0Z0

63

J Maturity Analysis of Projected Benefit Obligation : From the Fund

Projected benefits payvable in fitlure vears (rom the date of repoeting

As at
31 March 2011

As at
30 Mareh 2026

Ist fodlowing Year 20 8
Zud (offowing Yew H] @
3vd followng Year 27 1
Guh following Yea 22 23
Sth following Year 30 2l
S of years 310 10 142 i43
K. Scositivity analysis
31-pMar-21 31 Mareh 2620
Increase Decrease Increase Decrease
Gratuity Gratuily

Discount rate {1% movement} (35) (231) (33) 39
Future safaey wrowih (1% movertem) 41 (158) 38 {33
Martality post renrement (139) (370) 23 1

Although the analysis does not take account of the full distribution of cash flows expected under the plan, it does provide an approximation of

the sensitivity ot the assumptions shewn

iii. Othker long term emplayee benefits.

Compensated absences are payabie to employees. The charge towards compensated absenees for the year ended 31 March 2021 hased on

actuarial valuation using the projected accrued benefit method is T 164 .62 (previous year ¥ 135.53).
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40

The table below shows the maturity analysis of assets and liabilities according to when they are expected to be

recovered or settled.

Asscts

Casl and bank baiances

Bank Deposits

Favnrs

Trade receivable

Security deposits Premises
Retained Interest on Loan Assigned
Other {eposits

Loans and advances t emplovees
Recoverable from sale of assets
Exoratia receivable®

Advances to suppliers of goods and services
Out of packer expenses tecoverable
Inventories

Tax paymems less provisions
Delerved Tax Asset

Prepaid Expenses

Balances with fiovemment authonities
Capital Advances

Property, plant and equipment
Right-of-use assets

Other Intangible assets

Liabiligics

Trade Payables

Bebt Seewrdics

Burrowings

Security deposits from Jessees
Other Payables to Fmployees
Payable inn respect of foans assigned
Ocher Pavables

Payable towards refund of interest
Advance tronr customrs

Lease liabilities

Current tax habilities (Ner)
Provision for Compensated absences
Gther provistons

Lease Equalisation

Dreferred Income-Securitics deposit

Statucory remittances [Contributions te PF, withholding taxes,

(ST, TDS, etc)

Within 12
moths

2,735
87
43,236
L1594
5

41

5

29
197
201
1,523
%1

361
3,052
1,853

2,767

65,760
377
371
13%

March 31, 2021

After 12
months

5
1,76,463
4

413

3

20,4100
§7,630
970

Total

2,735
y2
2,19,69%
1,194
24
5045
44

5

1
197
201
3,193
9t
794
6,638
300
3,108
1,853
1,746
132
w2

2,767
20,000
1,52,990
1,347
3T

135

166

Within 12
montles

3,766

46,639
660

131
kY]
7
27
275
1,369
20

2,106
20,800
72,123

277
240
83
299
1,305
147
74
12

16

46

March 31, 2020

After £2
months

&8
1.98,043

1.3%6

189
53

P

464
308
[

1.11,220
972

Totul

3,766
5%

244 684
660

173
2472
20
1,396
5.454
419
3839
E
2464
308
66

2,100
20,000
183343
1.249
240

a3

299
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Concentration of Credit Risk

Company’s foan portfolio is predeminantly o finance commercial vehicle loans, loan against property and Leasing of vehicles . The
Company manages concentration of risk primarily by geographicat region in India. The following tables show the geographical
Concentration by Geographical region in India:

Asat March 31, 2021 East West North South Total
Loan agaist Hypothecaton of Vehicles . 3463 18136 2007 25,606
Loan against Property 7.269 49,280 51,771 18,704 157,024
Finance Lease Recetvables 4,933 11,628 10,891 18,203 45,637
Total £2,262 60,371 80,7498 68,910 2,25,287
As at March 31, 2020 East Woest North South Tatal
Loan against Hypothecation ol Vehicles - 0,431 17438 2,369 36,258
Loan against Property 7470 31,803 35834 31,638 1,466,451
Finance Lease Recemvables 1,203 9577 12,766 23115 F6,061
TFotak 8,379 67831 96,058 722 249370
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Maximum Exposure to credit Risk

The maxitzum exposure to credit risk of advanees is (heir carrying amount. The maximum exposure i$ before considering the effect of miligation

through collateral

Narrative Deseription of Collateral

Collateral primarily include vehicles for Commercial Vehicle Loans and Finance Lease: whereas for Loan against property collateral includes property

Quantitacive Information of Collateral

The value of the collateral for Commercial Vehicle Loan is derived by writing down the asset cost &t origination by 16 66% p.a on straight-line basis.

The vaiuc of the collateral [or Finance Lease is derived by writing duwn the asset cost at origination by 20% p.a on straight-line basis.
The vaiue of the collateral for Loan against property is based on valuation of property at the tme of loan.

Fair value of collateral and credit risk enhancenents held

As at March 31, 2021 Txposure to the Vehicles  Land & Building Deposits from  Total Colluteral — Net Exposure ECL
risk T.essees

Toan awainst Hypothecation of Vehicles 25,606 27,530 - - 17,530 -1,923 (3,540)

Loan against Property 1,537,024 - 437,106 - 4,37,106 -2,80,082 14,307y

Finance Lease Receivables 5,637 47,392 - 1347 48,939 ~3,282 (741)

Torat 1,283,287 75,122 4,537,106 1,347 5,13,575 -2,85,288 {8,588)

The above table inchides advances and sutstanding

As at March 31, 2020 Expusure to the Vehicles  Land & Building Bepusies from  Total Codlateral  Not Exposure ECL
risk Lessees

Lown aganst Hypotiwecatron of Velicles 36,259 14635 4;),655 -13376 -2,263

Loan against Property 1,660,451 438,354 4,38,354 -2.71.903 -1,699

Finance Lease Receivables 46,0661 46,033 1,249 47,282 -621 -723

Total 2,490,571 93,668 438,354 1249 535,27t -2,85,900 4,687

The above table includes advances and cutstanding,
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Credit quality of loans

The Company reviews the credit quality of its loans based on the ageing of the loan.

The ageimg of the loan is scgregated in three stages. These stages arc mentioned in Inputs considered in the ECL model.

Loan agawst Hypetheeatien of Velucles
Foar agnimst Praperty

Finance Lease Receivables

Trade receivable

Total

The above table mehudes advances snd outstandiog

Loan against Hypathecation of Vehicles
Loan against Property

Finance Lease Recenvables

Trade recenable

Total

The above table includes advinces and outstanding

Stuge 1
13,5379

ke

L.

(%)

36
32,964

78
1,706,457

Stage 1
2447
1,34 972
33,826
o
1,93.355

As ar Marcl 31, 2021

Stage 2
1813
20,701
9240
137
31,891

As at March 31, 2020
Stage 2
4,466
24 334
45t
106
40,557

Srage 3
224
4 387
3,432
1109
27,162

Stape 3
7346
6,945
1,382

505

16,179

Tatal
25,66
1,537,024
43,656
1,324
1,19.610

Tatal
36,259
1,66,451
46,660
T2
2,530,091
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44  The Company has made use of the fellowing practical expedients available in End AS 116: -

a) The Company will not reassess whether a contract is or conlains a lease. Accordingly, the definition of fease in accordance with Ind AS 17

will continue to be applied o lease contracts entered by the Company or moditicd by the Company betore Apiii |, 2018,

b) The Company has applicd a single discount rate to a portfolio of feases ol simular assets in similar cconemic environment, Conscquently, the

Company has rccorded its lease lability using the present value ol remaining lease paynents, discounted using the incremental borrowing rate
at tse date of initial application and the righi-of-use asset at its carrying amount as 1l the standard had been wppiied since the commencement

date of the fease, but discounted using the incremental borrowing rate at the date of initial application,

c) The Company does not recognize ROU assets and lease liabilities for leases with less than twelve monihs of lease term on the date of Initial
application.
d) The Company had taken office premises under canceliabie and non-canceilable operating lease agreements that were renewabic on a periodic

basis at the option of hoth the lessor and the lessec. The operating lcase apreements extended up to a maximum of nine yewss from their

respective dates of inception and some of these lease agreements had price escalation clause.

¢) As a result of engotng pandemic, during the year 2020-2 1, the lessor and the Company mutually agreed concession in renial for premises.
There is a reduction in lease payvments due to rent concession. As these concessions are short werm, the change in Izase payments of INR 24 is

credited to profit and loss account.

The company has applicd the practical expedient 1o all rent concessions as these concessior meet the conditions of practical expedient.

IND AS F6 disclosure

Particuiar

Depreciation charge of ROU

Interest expenses on lease Hablity

Expenses for short term leases

Expenses for bow vatue leases

Cash outflow of leases durmy the yem

Additions ta ROU during the year (New premises on leasc)

Camying amogat of ROU as at

Matuwity analysis of Tease liabilivy
Less than 6 months

6-12 months

1-2 vears

23 years

More than 3 years

Total

As at
31 Mavch, 2021
128

2
0

13t

30

132

31

32
17

As at
31 March, 2420

Lt
14
348
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45 Disclosure as p&;l' RBI circalar number DORNBEC)LCC.PDLNO109/22,10.106/2019-20 for comparison between Provision as per IRACP norms &

expected eredit loss as per Tnd AS 109

Assets classification as at 31 March 2021

Asset Classitication as per RBI Norms

)
Perlorming, et
Sunkad

Suhitutal

Mun-1'erforaring Assets (NIN4)

Sulxslantt

Troubtiud - ap to | vest
I s vans
Ao it 3 s

Sulitoral for doubiiul

Sublata fur NPA

ol s such

ave i the Tt nat coverad nndse auaend

cupre i Tnd

Trginerss Byt Szt Classification. il Banisnnuy)

SIRALT) pormes

Subtotal

Trtal

et attees. L cnmstnienty, cle, w3

Asset chawsificativg as per

Titad

Grass Cazrying Aincuat

as per

I T AT

i85

22,233

10k Ly

LHu

4300

173532
LERTH
27161

232485

Lo Albwiiees
(Provisiung zs requivel
under Tnd AS (17

(£

2
HTS

3380

T

184

2370
113
3132

817

Net Caereying Amount

167356
30,691
18047

8,540

7,915
1754
294
11,963

3300
136
L]

ERIE]

174250
0827
pARRS|

I

Pro s required as
pev TRACT nonny

1y

3650

TR

a7

DBifference heiw een bk
AS 1Y pr
RACT

[ER TN}

LR

144

1y
w7
[ROR ]

218

Since the total impairment allow:
requived to be
vitue of stage -
permitted under TIRACT norms

Assets classification as at 31 March 2020

ces under Ind A5 199 is higher than the total provisioning reguired nader IRACP (including standard asset provisio
isierred to Tmpaiment Reserve' The gross carmyng amount of asset as per Ind AS {09 and Loss atlfowances (Provisions) thereon includes interest acoiual on net canvi
assets as permitted under Ind AS 139 While, the provisions required as per FRACH norms does aot include any such dnrerest as mterest accrual o non perftiming asseis is not

=) as at 31 March 2621, no ameunt is

At Classification us per RBY Norms

(451
Derforming Asscts
Standard
Subtogal
Non-Perforating Assets (NPAY

Snbsianelird

1ousbUiud = gt | ewr
I us 3 vvas
e

Subtutal for doubiful

n 3y

Taws

Suhtutal fur NPA

Eather iterus suel s puarantecs. [oan comminents. ele. which
arz in e seope o [k AR 119 bus g covered unda cerent
Eirconte Rew o Assel Classtlication and Moovisioning

TIRACH) nomas

Sublatat

“Latal

Assel clansification as per Gross Carrying Ainnung

Nease b

Stipe 7

Sty 3

Suige d
Sty 3

St 3

Slege |

Sage 2

it

o3

Tataf

ay pur Tl A8

H
1.92,707
D452
233,150

10,523

3,412
Lacd

126
10038

ElG:)
3m

8,047
106
505

HHIH

| 98754
My 558
6,175

255587

Euss Allowances
1Prov n) as reguiredl
wnder Finl AS 119

W

621

1191

1582

1936

665
223

BaY

"

5
191
PRk

4782

Nt Cavrying Adnoum

[EAREIROH

142,086
19,261
201,347

8,588

2,807
1,176

as
4078

6,564

1.9% 4150
39367
13359

230,805

Pravislons reguired as
aur IRACT narns

)

1,817
195
htE

952
453
a9
1405

212
241

DitTerence hetween Ind
AR 10D provisinns wul
IRACE tnknin

17 = dyeried

[ REINT
Sy

1200y

[Re T

1347
12301
(3

(636)

1130
[t 210)

04

1162y
{04
293

127
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46

Asset Classification and Provisioning

In termis of the circular DOR.No.BP.BC.47/21.04.048/2019-20 dated March 27, 2020 and DOR No BP.BC.63/21.04.048/2019-20 dated April
17, 2020 (*Regulatory Package™, the lending institutions were permitted to grant a morateriwn ol three months on payment of all term loan
instatments falling due hetween March 1. 2020 and May 31, 2020 Cmoratorinm period’). Tn respect of accounts overdue hut standard ar 29
February 2020 where movatoriom benetit as been granted, the staging ol those accounts at 31 March 2020 is based on the days past due status
as on 29 February 2020, Based on an assessment by (he Company, this relaxation does not automatically trigger significant increase n credit
risk. The Company centinues to recognise interest income during the moratorium period and in the absence of other credit risk indicators, the
granting of a moratoriuns does not result in accounts becoming past due snd awtomatically triggering Stage 2 or Stage 3 classification criteria.

The RBI vide its guidelines dated May 23, 2020 has permitted all Banks, NBFCs and other financial institutions to grant moratorium for an
additional period of 3 moaths on payment of instalments falling due hetween June 1, 2020 and August 31, 2020, The Company has chosen (o
offer this to its customers.

As per RBI Circular DOR.No.BP.BC.63/21.04.048/2019-20, in respect of accoums in defiult but standard where asset classitication benefitis
extended, fending institutions shall make general provisions of not {ess than 10 per cent of the total cutstanding of such accounts, to be phasad
over bwo quarters as uneer:

(1) Quarter ended March 31, 2620 — oot less than 3 per cent

(it} Quarter ending June 3{), 2020 — rot less than 5 per cent

Below table shows the exposure where moratorium was granted and provision as mentioned above on the same for guarter cnded March
31,202]

Asat As at
Pardcular 31 March, 2021 31 March, 2020
Respective amounts i SMAfoverdus categories, where the moratorium/deferment was extended (Refer note 161} 1,33,793# 21 204+
Respective amount where asset classification benefits is extended - 21,204
Provisiens made during the Q4FY 2020 as per RBI Circular DOR Ne BP.BC.63:21 04 848/2019:20 (Refer aote 46.2) NA 1.060
Provistons adjusted during the respective accounting peniods agamnst shppages and the restdual provisions NA -

46,1 Quistanding as oa 31 March 2021 and 31 Magch 2020 respectively on account of all loans where moratarium benetit was extended by the Company,
that were in SMA/ overdue categories just before granting of Moratorinm:

# Oustanding as on 31 March 2021 on account of all such loans where moratorium benetit wus extended by the Company upte preveous year and and
[irther upto Augnst 31, 2020,

* Duistanding as on 31 March 2020 on gecount of all such loans where moratarium benefic was extended by the Company as al the previous vear end.

462 As per RBI ciccalar DOR No BP BC 63/21 04 048/2019-20 dared April 17, 2020 on Regulatory Package, the Company has created adequate
provision for EC1. as per its Board approved ECL policy. Further, for the purpose of computing provision under IRACP nerms as veguired by circular
DOR(NBFC).CC.PD NGO 109/22.10.106/2019-20 dated March 13, 2020, the Company has created 5% provision on cases where moratorium is granted
and assel classification benefit is considered,
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Disclosure in accardance with RBI Circular No. RB1/2020-21/16 DOR.No.BP.B(/3/21.04.048/2020-21 dated August
6, 2020 in relation to the Resolution Framework for COVID-19 related stress:

Types of borrower

Personal Loans
Caorpoerate persons®
Of whigh, MSMEs
Dthers

Total

A B
Number ol accouns  Exposure to accounts
where resolution plan mentioned at {(A)
has been maplemented  before nmplementatzon
under this window of Lhe plan

982 41,178
18 2017

C
OF (3), aggregate
amoeunt of debt that
was converted into
olher securitics

D
Additional funding
sanctioncd, if any,
including berween

irvocation ot the plan
and implementation

E
Increase 1n provisions
an account of the
implememation of the
resolution plan

1,987
293

*ag defined in Scction 3(7) of the Thsolvency and Bankruptey Code, 2016

Disclosure related to MSME restructurcd accounts

No. of accounts restructured

Amount

982

41,178
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Finance Lease and Operating Lease as Lessor

The Company has given vehicles on finance lease. These leases have a primacy period ranging from 2 te 5 years | which is fixed and cannot be
terminated without consent of both the parties. There are no exceptional / restrictive covenants i the lease agreements The reconciliation berween
the tolal gross investment in the lease at the balance sheet date and (he present value of minimum lease payments reccivable at the halance sheet
are as follows:

Risk management on the residual interest of the leasing portfolio happens through the process of residual value commitee. Risidual value
commmitiee meets on a periodic basis and determines the restdual value (hat are offered for each model. Tn case of Finance lease ransaction , there
is & commitment by the lessee / user and guaranteed residual value is inclnded in lease payment receivable. The same is factored lease rental
caleulation and henee residusl value risk is taken care ol

As at As at
31 March, 2021 3t March, 2020
Finance lcase income 6,144 6,370
Net mvestiment o finance lease 42,492 44,205
Cuategory of lease
As at As at
31 Marcl, 2021 31 March, 2020
Vehicle 32828 33,820
Equipment 10,967 8,393
Two Wheeler o0 tiz
Furniture & Fisturs 168 32
44,0583 44,377
Movement of net invesfinent in finance feaase
As at As at
31 March, 2021 31 March, 2020
Opemnyg balance 44,245 41,374
Wet addion{ deletiond 11,723 2,611
Nt clusing of net investntent in finance leaase 42,492 44215
————— |

Gross investment in lease and present value of minimom lease payments for each of the following periods are as [oflows:

As at As at
31 March, 202§ 31 March, 2020
Gross  Net present value of  Gross investinentin - Net present value of
investutent in minimum lease lease minimuem lease
case payment pavment
Less thay one year 23,321 18,308 22,640 17,291
Between one and live years 30,073 25743 31,820 27086
Mare than five years - - - -
53,394 44,053 54,472 44 377

Operating Lease as Lessor,

The Company gives vehicles under operating lease. These Teases have an average primary period of 2 to 4 years which is fixed and cannot be
terminated without the consent of beth the partics. No purchase aptions are given to the lessees doring or al the end of the lease erm. On
retirement of vehicles from the rental business i.e. when a vehicle is not actively fet out on a lease for more than 4 year, the vehicle becomes held
for sale and reclassificd (o inventory, Any contingent rent is rot considered as part of minimum lease payment as they are not reasonably measured
at the commencement of the lease and recognized in profi and loss as income when received.

Risk management on the residual interest of the leasing portfolic happens through the process of Residual Value commitice. Residual Value
comimitiee meets on a periodic basis and detcrmines the residual value that are offered for each model.

In case of Operaling lease transaction residual value comsmittee decides the residual value of each asset class, The Company has sdequate
expertise, data and resources 10 estimate the residual value at the inceplion of fease and manage the sale process al the end of fease tenor,

Operating leases rental:

For the year ended For the year crded:

31 March, 2021 31 March, 2020

Operating leases rental 936 G478
Total 956 978
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48  Finance Lease as Lessor (Continued)

‘The future minimum fease payments under non=cancellable operating leases ate as follows:

As al|
31 March, 2620

917
787

Asal
31 March, 2021
Less than one vear 361
Between one and ive years 3ol
More than five years -
Total 022

1,704
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Segment Reporting

The Chief Executive Officer {CEQ} been identified as the Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM). The CEQ regufarly reviews the
performanee reports and make decisions about allocation of resources.

An operating segment is a component of the company that engages in business activities from which it may earn vevenue and incur expenses.
for which discrete financial information is available.

The Company provides financiat services snch as Finance Leasing of Passenger Cars, install ment loans for Commercial Vehicles ("CV™) and
Loan against Property {"LAI) in India.

Tn the opinion of the CODM. the Company has Lending' as the only business segmenl. Also, the Company eperales only in India and it
perceives that there is no significant difference in il risks and returns in operating from different geographic arcas within India.

The Company does not discluse separate segment information as the external reporting information provided in these linaneial statements
reflects internal management information. Thus the assets and result of the scgment can be determined by reference 1o the Balance Sheet and
Statement of Profit and Loss for year respectively.

Inform:tion about neajor customers

No revenue from transaction with g single customer amounted (o 10% or more of the Company's total revenue in the year ended 3 Ist March
2021 or 31st March 2020
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Al Accounting classification and fair values

Carrying amounts and fair values of financial assets and liabihities, inciuding themr levels in the fair value hierarchy, are presented below:.

Fair valae

March 31, 2021 Carrving value Level | Level 2 Level 3 Tatal
INR actual
Financial assets
Loans
Caslr and cash equivaients 2.827 2827 - - 2.827
Loan against Hypothecation of vehicle 22 (66 - - 22,255
Loan against Property 152,118 - 152718 - 1,528
Finance Leases 44 510 - 46,422 - 40,422
Trade vegevable 119 - 1,194 - 1,194
Security deposits Premises 24 - 24 - 24
Sundvy Deposits A4 - 44 - 44
Retained Intercst on Loau Assigned s03 u 83 - 305
Recoverable from sale of assets 29 - 29 - 29
Lxgraua reeeivabhy 1w - 197 - 197
Loans and advances to einpiovees 3 - 5 - 5
Our of pocket expenses recoverable 3163 - 3,193 - 3,193
2,217,718 2,827 2,26,556 - 2,729,413
Financial liabilitics
Trade payables 2767 - 2767 - 267
Nott=convertible Debentures 20,600 - 20,000 - 20,000
Term Loau 1,15,968 - 1,04,761 - 1,04 761
Masala Bond 10,000 - 10,600 - 16,000
ECH Borrowing from Bank 24 683 - 24,688 - 24 684
Cash Credit 245 - 243 - 245
Overdraft Gacilities - - - - -
Loans from Related Parties 1,003 - 1,003 - 1,003
Interest accrued but not due on byrowigs 886 - 886 - 886
Seeurity Deposits From Lessees 1,347 - 1,347 - 1,347
Other Payables o Employees 371 - a7 - 371
Payable m respect of luans assigned 135 - 133 - 133
Provision for expenses 466 - 400 - 4640
Payable wwacds refund of interest - - - - -
Advance from custoniers 1,942 - 1,942 - 1,942
Leuse liabiliries 155 - 155 - 135
1,79,473 - 1,68,766 - 1,68,766
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50  Financial instruments — Fair values and risk management (Continued)

A. Accounting classification and fair values (Continucd)
Fair value
March 31, 2020 Carrying value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
INR acheal
Financial assets
Naon Current
Loans
Cash and cash equivalems 3,854 3,854 - - 3,854
L.oan against lypothecation of vehicle 33,994 - 33,860 - 23 866
.oan aginnst Property 1,064,752 - 1.64,752 - 164,752
Finance Leases 43937 - 47,839 “ 47 839
Trade receivable 660 - G0 - 000
Security deposits Prenuses 34 - 3 - 34
Sundvy Deposits 49 - 49 - 49
Retaimed fnterest on Loan Assigned 3632 - 563 - 563
Recoverable from sale of assets 27 - 27 . 27
Other Deposits - - - - -
Loans and advances to employees 7 - ¥ - 7
Bunk Deposits maturity maore (an 12 mombs - - - - -
O of pocket expenses recoverable 2472 - 2472 - 247
2,32,349 3,854 2,350,269 - 234,123
Financial liabilitics
Trade payables 2,100 - 2106 - 2,106
Nom=gonvertible Debentures 20,000 - ) 20,000 - 20,000
Term Loan 1,533,466 - 1,33,541 - 1,335,541
Mlasata Boud 10,000 - 10,000 - 10,000
LLCB Borrowmg from Bank 17,5300 - 17,500 " 17,500
Cash Credit 198 - 198 - 198
Overdraft facilities 7 - 7 - 7
Loans from Related Parties 672 - 677 - G672
Interest acorued but not due on borrowings 1.500 . 1,500 - 1,500
KSecurity Deposits From Lessees 1,244 - 1,249 - 1,249
Other Payables iv Employees 240 - 240 - 240
Payabde in respect of loans assigned 33 - 83 - 83
Provision for expenses 299 - 5% - 259
Advance from customers 1,506 - 1,506 - 1,506
Lease hiabilities 348 - 348 - 348
2,091 - 1,91,249 - 1,91,249

{1) Asscts that are not [inanciat assets (such as prepaid cxpenses, advances to suppliers ete.), are not included.

(2) i this table, the Company has disclosed the fair vafue of gach class of financial assets and financial liabilities in a way that permits the
information to be compared with their carrying amounts. In addition, it has reconciled the asscts and Habilities Lo ihe different categories of
financial instruments as defined in Ind AS 109, This presentation wethod is optienal and a different preseatation method may be more
appropriate, depending on circumstances.

B. Measurentent of fair values

Valuation techniques and sigrificant unobservable inputs

a. Fair valuc of cash and bank balanges, trade payables. other current financial asscts and liabilities. approximate their carrying anounts
largely due o shott term marurities of these struments.

b. The following tables show (he valuation techniques used in measnring Level 2 and level 3 fair values, as well as the sigailicunt
unobscrvable inpiets used.

Financial instruments measured at fair value

Type Vuduation technique
Fixed rates long term borrowings The vahizion model considers present vatue of expected

paymeits disconnted using an appropriate disconnting rate
Security Deposits The valuation model conséders present vatue of expested

payments discounted nsing an appropriate discounung rate.
Loans The valuztion model considers present value of expested

payments discounted nsing an appropriate disconnting rate
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Financial risk management

The Company has cxpesure o the (ollowing risks arising from financial instruments:
= Market Risk (Tntcrest Rate risk)

 Credit risk :

= Liquidity risk : and

» Currency risk

i Risk management framewark

The Company’s Board ol Directors ias overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight ol the Company’s risk managemen
[ramework.

The Company’'s risk management poiicies are established w identity and analyse the risks faced by the Company, to set appropriate risk limitg
and controls and to monitar risks and adherence o limits. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in
marker conditions and the Company’s activities. The Company, through i3 training and management standards and procedures, aims o
maintain a disciplined and constructive control environment in which alf employees understand theiv roles and obligations.

ii. Enterst risk management framework
Tmerest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash (lows of a financial instrument will fluctuaie because of changes in market interest
rates. The Company's exposurc to the risk of changes in market interest rates primarily w the Company's borrowings with {loating intcrest
rales.
Exposure fo interest rate risk

Company’s inferest tate risk arises from borrowings. The interest rate protile of the Company s interest-bearing financial instruments as
reported o the management ol the Company s us follows.

INR
March 31, 2021 March 33, 2024
interest hearing financial liabilities

Tixed rate borrowings

Non-convertible unsecured debentures 20,000 20,000
Termt Loan 32,000 63,000
Security Deposits 1,347 1249
Total 73,347 84,249
Varigble rate borrowings
Term Loan 98,630 117,966
Cash Credit 245 198
Overdrafl Facifities - 7
Loans and advanees from related party 1,003 672
Iinterest acerued but not due on borrowings R&G 1,500
Totzl 1,00,790 1,20,343
[nterest beaving financial assets

Fixed vate assels

Deposit with orgingl maturity of mere than 3 months but residual a2 8%

maturity of less than 12 months

Loan against Hypotheeation of vehicle 22,0006 33,994

Finance Leases . 1,916 45,937

Loans and advances to employces 5 7
Tatal 67,079 80,026

Variable vate assets
Loan apainst Property 132718 1,64,752
Total 1,352,718 1,64,752
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ii. Taterst risk management framework (Confinued)

Fuir valoe sensitivity analysis for fixed-rate instruments

The Company does not account for any {ixed-rate financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss. Therefore, a
change 11 micrest rates at the reporting date would not affect profit or loss.

Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable-rate instruments

A reasonably possible change of 100 basis points in mlerest rates ar the reporting date would have increased (decreased) profic or loss by the

amounts shown below.

Profit or {loss)

INR 140 bp increase 100 by decrease
Murch 31, 2021

Variable-rate instruments 519 (319
Cash flow sensidvity (net) 319 {31t
INR 100 bp incvease 100 bp decrease
March 3E, 2020

Varublesrate instreunents 444 (dddy
Casly fluw sensitivity (net) 444 {Aday

The risk estimates provided assume a paraliel shifi of 100 basis points interest rate across alf yicld curves. The sensitivity has been calenlated
asswning the Interest bearing asset and Habilities outstanding at the reporting date have been vutstanding for the entire reparting year.
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Financial instruments — Fair values and risk management (Continted)
Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk ol (inancial less 10 the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial mstrument fails to mect its contractual
obligations, and ariscs principally from the Company's receivables [ron customers and loans and advances.

The maximum exposure to the eredit visk at the reporting date is primanty (rom loans against hypothecation of’ vehicle, loans against
peoperry and finance leases as mentioned helow

The Company’s exposurc 1o credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characleristics of cach customer,
3 I 3

Amounts arising from Expected Credit Loss (ECL)

i, Tnputs, assumptions and technigues used for cstimating impairment on Leans against hypothecation of vehicles, Loans against
praperty and Finance Lease receivables

Inputs considered in the ECL model:

When determining whether the risk of defauit on a financial instrument has increased significantly since iniual recogmition, the Company
considers reasonable and supportable information that is refevant and available withowt undue cost or effort. This includes both guantitative
and qualitative information and analysis based on the Company’s historical experience, expert credit assessment and including forwurd
tooking information.

In assessing the impairment of loan assets under Expected Credit Loss (ECL) Madel, the loans have been segniented int three stages based
on the risk profiles. The three stages reflect the gencral patlern of credit deterioration of a financial instrument.

The company categorises Fmance Tease, Commercial Vebicle T.oan and T.oan against property asscts into stages based on the days past due

stams.

- Stage 1: 0-30 days past due

- Stage 2: 31- 90 days past duc
3

- Stage 3: More than 90 days past due

Assumption considered in the KCL model:

- "Probability of default” (PD) is defined as the probability of whether the borrowers will default on their obligations in the future.

= "Laoss given default™ (1.GDY is an estimate of loss trom a transaction given that a default oceurs.

- "Exposure at default" (EAD} represents the expected exposure i the event of a default and is the gross carrying amount s case of (he
financial assets held by the Company.

Fstimafion technigues:

The following risk parameters have been assessed to evaluate the ECL -

~ The probubility of default is assessed hased on the flow of receivables Mtowing through successive DPTY buckel based on past portfolio
performance.

- Loss given default is assessed based on factors such as past recoveries, applicable regulatory gnidance etc.

-(iiven the economic scenario. recoverics from sale of CV assets have been stressed by 30% and an additional LGB of 5% has been factored
in for Loans against hvpothecation of vehicles

- For assets which are in Stage 1, a 12 month ECT is assessed. For Stage 2 and stage 3 assets a lifetime ZCL is assessed

~Exposure at default is arrived at after factoring in prepayments, which are estimated based on past portfolio performance. These have been
adiusted to factor in the situation arismg out of COVID 19

Forward Iooking information:

The below table shows the values of forward tooking macro econemic variable used in each of the scenarios for the ECL calculation. For this
purpose the Company has used the data source of Economisl Intellipence Unit. GDP has been used as a macro economic factor to calculate
the forward looking probabililies of defaull. The upside downside % change has been derived using historical standard deviation [rom he
basc scenario based on previous 7 years change in the variables

Scenario Weights have been arrived ar taking into consideration the products and prevailing macro-cconemic conditions. With the overall
ceunomie coadition worsening on aceeunt of COVID 19, the worst case sceanrio weights have been substantially increased for the retail
lending products. This is basis management's estimation ol market scenario and related impact on portfolio quality
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Financial instruments — Fair values and risk management (Continned)}
Credit risk (Coutinued)

Fmpact of Covid-19 :

The COVID-19 pandemic has had a significant impact on coonomie activities globally as well as across our country. After the onset of the
Covid pandemic in 2020 and subsequent lockdowa of the economy, there was a calibrated opening up of the economy till Feb’21. However,
there was the onset of the second wave and the cconomy was under lockdown again since the ead of fisval year 202121 and beginning of
2021-22. The Tndian economy is row again opening up in a calibrated way, and is projected to bounce back from a low base after a
contraction in 2020,

The Government of India and Reserve Bank of Tndia as & part of its measures (o support and boosl the ceonumy have since last year come
out with various measures for the lending businesses including granting of moratorium for six months to eligible borrowers, EC1.GS Scheme
and Resofution Framework for COVID-19-refated Stress.

Based on the plans rolled ont by the Company with respect to the above measure and other information available up to the date of approval
of these financial statements. the Company assessed the impact on its assets, expected credit loss on iLs loan portfolio and Habilities including
Asset Liability Management ("ALM™) position.

Based on the detaited evaluation, the Company has:
a) made adequate provision for credit losses on its loan portfolio against the potential impact of COVID -19. The aggregate provisions are
adequate vis-a-vis the minimum regulaiory provisions preseribed by the Reserve Bank of India, and

b) stress tested its ALM position and the Company has a comfortable liguidity outlook across all maturity buckets and has adequate liquidity
position maintained in form of high-quality liquid assets and undrawn committed Iines of eredit. Certain loun accounts i the LAP portfolio
and Loan against Hypothecation of vehicle porifolins have heen extended resofution uader the Resolution Framework for COVID-19-related
Stress annonnced by the RBT on 6th August 2020, For such LAP accounts, the management has decided to keep a minimum ECL tfloor of
3% and 10% ol exposure amount for MSME & non MSME loans respectively, Similarly, for Loun against Hypothecation of vehicle
portfolio, the management has decided to keep & minnum ECL floor of 10% of exposure amount.

The [inal impact of the global heaith pandemic is uncertain and the aetual impact may be different than that estimated based on the
conditions prevailing as at the date of approval of these financial statemenis. The management will continue (o closely wonitor the material
changes in the macro-economic factors impacting the operations of the Company.

ECIL Scenario Hest Case Base Cuse Waorst Case
Probability assigned -Finance Tease 21.20% 68 2% 10.60%
Probability assimed -Loan Against Property 21.20% 47.00% 31.804%
Probability assigned -Loans against 21.20% 36.40% 42.40%
hypothecation of vehicles
2021 (%) 18 I3 8
2022 {%) 10 3 {y
2023 (%) 11 G 0
2024 (%) 1 5 [{th]
2025 (%) 11 6 ]
2026 (%) 1 G il
2027 (%) 11 G i
12 6 t

Subsequent years (%} ’ 2

Asscssment of significant increase in credit risk:

The credit risk on a financial asset of the Company are assumed to have increased signiticantly since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past due and/ or management assessment of vredit deterioration. Accordingly the financial assets shall be
classified as Stage 2, if on the reporting date, it has been 30 days past duc.

Cerain catcgorics of Loan Against Properzy borrowers less than 30 days past duc have been classificd as Stage 2 horrowers based on the
assessient of their Industry and Economic Scctor. Management has done an indepth assessment of portfolio into industries and basis the
management’s estimation of imapet of COVID 19 on specilic industries, stage has been moved

Detinition of defauit
A default is when the counterparty fails fo make the contractual payments within 90 days of’ when they fall due. This detinition of defaalt 15

determined by considering e business environment in which the company operates and other micre-cconomic factors,
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Financial instruments — Fair values and risk management {Confinued)

Policy for write-aff of loan assety

No writc offs have been done by the management during the periods for consideration.

ii Exposure at defaunlt and Loss allowance
The following table shows the exposure at default and loss allowance for the same

Eoan against Property 2021 2020

EAD ECL EAD ECL
Stage t 1,21,93 1771 1,34,972 170
Stage 2 20,701 780 24,334 650
Stuge 3 14,387 1,749 6,943 873
Totat 1,57,024 4,306 1,66,451 1,699
Loan against Hypothecation of vehicle 2021 2020

EAD ECL EATY ECL
Suage | 15,579 395 24447 229
Stage 2 1813 31 1,466 231
Stage 3 g.214 2.854 7,340 1,803
Total 23,606 3,540 36,259 2,263
Finance Leases 2021 2020

EAD ECL EAD ECL
Stage | 32,964 161 33.826 222
Stape 2 9,240 185 11.451 304
Stage 3 3452 395 1,383 198
Total 45,636 741 36,660 724

Trade receivable
3P0

1-60 DPD

61-93 DPD

9+ DPD

Total

Loss Allowance

31st March 2021

31st March 2020

114
106
503
72

6l

The following table shows reconciliations from the opening to the closing balance of gross exposure

Gross carvying amount Stage One Stage Two Stage Three Total
Loean against Hypathecation of Vehicles
Balance as at April 1, 2019 49,340 3920 3118 36,378
Transfer to stage one 379 (354) {25} -
Transter to stage two {3,720) 37 113 i
Transfer to stage three (3,301) {1,547 4,938 -]
Net renmeasurement of loss allowance (14,287 (802) {13y (13,102
New financial assets onginated or purchased 1,882 312 150 2 344
Financial assets that have been derceogmsed (5,750) (804) (8061 {7,360
Write — offs - - - -
Ralance as at March 31, 2020 24,447 4,466 7,346 36,259
‘Transfer to stage ene 1,827 11,751) {76} -
Transter to stage two (1,260 1,265 4y -
Transfer to stage three (1481 (950 2430 (1}
Net remeasurement of loss allowance (3,050 (580 a0 {2,358
New fmancial assels origimated or purchased 150 - - 150
Financial assets that have been derecognised (3,053) {628) {1,783) (3,107
Write — offs - - - -
15379 1.813 8,214 25,606

Bulunce as at March 31, 2021
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Giross carrying antount Stage Onc Stage Twe Stage Three Total
Loan against Property

Balunce as ar Apeil 1, 2019 147,230 4,341 1,113 1,535,714
Transter to stage one S0% {769 (14 -
Transiler to stage two (18.803) 19,340 (477 -
Trapsiur o stage three 12,973) (976} 3,049 -
Net remeasirenient of loss allowanee {3,207) 1173) 43 {3,137y
New financial assets originated or purchased 35,634 3231 - 38,883
Iinancial assets that have been derecognised (23.778) (460) t773} {23011
Write — olls - - - -
Balance as at March 31, 2020 134,972 24,534 6,943 1,66,451
Transfer w stage one 3474 {3,444 (2 -
Transfer to stage two {4,560) 1,300 - -
Transter to stage three (3,524 t3,013) 0,537 -
Net remeasurement of loss allowance 2,134 07 1.279 1,320
New timanetal assets orimuaed or purchased 5,621 9 - 5,630
I'inancial assets that have been devecogmised 116,179) {2,858 (340) (19.277)
Wit — otfs - - - -
Balance as at March 3, 2021 £21,930 20,701 E4,387 1,537,024
Gross carrying amount Stage One Siage Two Stage Three Tofal
Finance Lease Reccivables

Balance as at April 1, 2019 38118 3410 82 42,110
Transfer to stage one 864 {862) 4] -
Transier W slage bwoe {6,116} 6,122 (6} -
Transfer to stage three {085) {1y 96 -
Net remmeasurement of loss allowance {2,303) (491 t82y (2.876)
New financial assets enginated o purchased 4,591 3,399 132 8,322
Fuancial assets that have been derecogmsed {643) (216) {37) {896)
White — offs - - - -
Balance as at March 31, 2020 33,826 11,451 1,383 46,660
Transier to slage one 3,279 (5,235} e -
Transfer o stage two {2,007) 2,033 126) -
Transfer to stage three {1,261) (7100 1,971 -
Net remeasurernent of loss allowance t7.331) 679 39 (6,613}
New financial ussets originuied or purchased 4756 1,091 137 5984
Financtal assets that have been derecognised (298) (69} {8} (373
Write — offs - - - .
Balantce as at March 31, 2021 32,964 9,240 3,452 45,656
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Financial instruments — Fair values and risk management (Confinned)

The following table shows reconciliztions from the opening to the closing balance of the loss allowances and write offs:

Lifetime ECL. vot

Lifetime FC1.

f2Z-month ECT. s i o . Total
creditsimpaired  eredit-impaired
Loan against Hypothecation of Vehicies
Balance as at March 31, 2019 125 113 830 1,076
Transter to £2 month ECL 3 13) - -
Transter to Lifetime FCT. aot credit mpaived (18%) 193 {1} -
Transfer 1o Lafetime ECL credit impatred {18343 {381} L2is -
Net remeasurement of loss atllowance 1,125 A2 84 1321
New finanuial asscts originated or purchased ) 20 37 73
Financial assets that have been derecogmsed 9} (20} (360) (403)
Write — offs - - - -
Balance as al March 31, 2020 229 238 1,805 2,265
Trausfer to 12 mone ECL 150 (148) 12) -
Transfer to Lifetime ECL not credit impaived 138) 59 - !
Transfer to Lifetime ECL eredit impaived (42:4) (284) 708 -
Net remeasurement of loss allowauce 700 261 783 1,734
New financial assets originated or purchascd 1& - - 18
Financial assets that have been derecopmsed [113] 128) {44M) {488}
Write — offs - - - -
Balance as ai March 31, 2021 505 91 2,854 3,540
Write Offs - Loan against Hvpothecation of Vehicles
For the year ended For the year cnded
34 March 20021 31 March 20020
Amount of Loans written oI during the ] 0
period but sull recoverible
Lifetime ECL Liferime ECL
t2-month ECL i |ftt!r1.11.. C .nUl 1.e[rme : Total
credit-impaived  credit-impaired
Loan against Property
Balance as at April 1, 2019 21 228 378 827
Transter to 12 month ECL. 3 (2 (1h] -
Transter to Lifetinie ECL not credit impasred 1446 481 135 -
Transter to Lifetime ECL credit impaired {362} (121) 483 -
Net remeasurement of loss allowance ) 82 21 1,01%
New tinancial ussets aviginated or purchased 41 18 - 59
Financial assers that have been derecognised {3) 130) (i73) {206
Write — ofts - - - -
Balance as at March 31, 2020 170 656 873 1,699
Transfer to 12 month ECL 163 {163} - -
Transfer to Liteume ECL not credit impaired {369} 369 - -
Transfer to Lifetime ECL credit imparved (30} {367) 797 .
Net remeasurement ol loss allowance 2352 361 121 2,734
New financial asscts originated or purchased 4 1 - 3
Financial assets that have been derecognised (19 (TH 42) {132}
Write — ofts - - - -
Balance as at March 31, 2021 1,771 786 1,749 4,306

Write Offs - Loan apainst Property

Amount of Loans written off during the
peried but stil recoverable

For the year endied For the year ensled
31 Murch 20021 31 March 28020
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Financial instruments — Fair values and risk management (Continued)

Lifetime ECL not

Lifetime ECL

- C Total
12-mouth ECT credit-impairved  credit-impaired ot
Finance Lease Receivables
Balanee as ar Aprit 1, 2019 739 263 140 [AEE)
Transfer to 12 month ECL 6 16} n “
Tramsfer 1o Lifetime ECL not eredit impaired (148 148 - -
Transter to Lifetime ECL credi impared 168y 1 50 1
Net remeasurement of lass allowance {321} (181) (200 {328)
New financial assets originaled or purchased 29 12 13 154
Finanatal asscts that have been derccognised ((3) 123) {9} G+
Write — ofis - - - -
Bakermee as at March 31, 2020 212 304 198 724
Transier 1o 12 month ECL 33 (343 (N -
Transier to Litetime ECL not credit timpaired =30 k3| (1 -
Transler 1o Litetinme FCT eredit nngaived =124 {71) 197 -
Net remeasurement of loss allowance 335 167) {3) {33
New tinancial assets originated or purchased 29 23 14 60
Financial assets that have been devecognised (43 n {9) 183
Write — ofls - - - -
Balance as at Muarch 31, 2021 161 i85 398 741
Write Offs - Finance Lease Reecivables
For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 20028 31 March 20020
Amount of Loans writen off durmg the [} 0
period but still recoverable
Security Deposits, C'V lease and other advances
2020-21 2019420
Opening balance 94 30
Net Impairment loss recognised 21 44
Balance written back
Closing balance 185 94 -
Trade receivables are non interest bearing and generally on terms of 30-90 days
‘Trade receivable days past due 1-30 days 31-60 61-90 91 amd ubove Total
3lst March 2021
ECL rate 0% 0% 0% 12%
EAD v [&] 68 AL 1,325
ECL i 0 ] 131 131
Net carrying amount v 68 68 979 1,194
31st March 2020
ECL rute 0% 0% 1% 12%
EAD 118 55 31 305 722
ECL f ] i] G0 61
Net carrying amount 110 55 31 445 661
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ECL changes on Finaneial instruments recorded in P&L

Financial instruments — Fair values and risk management (Continued)

Vear ended 31 March 2021

. Lifetime F.CL not Lifetinee ECT. Simplified -~
1 2-month ECT. L . L. . Total
credit-impaired credit-impaired approach
Loan agawnst Hypothecation of Vehicles 363 (140) 1,052 1273
Loan against Property 1,600 132 870 2,608
Finance Lease Receivables 61y (H9) 197 17
Trade receivables and others at a1
Tutal 1,902 -127 2,125 91 3,991
Year M
eur ended 31 March 2020 . Lifetime ECLnot  Lifetime ECL Simplitied
12-monuth ECL L B L. . Total
credit-impaired  credit-impaired approach
Loan againat Hypothecation of Vehicles 104 Lid 9069 1,189
1.oan against Property 148 428 296 872
Finance Lease Recetvables (317) 39 37 14200
Tride recervabies and others En| 44
Total ~264 582 1,322 44 1,684

iii. Inputs, assumptions and technigues used for estimating impairment of all other
of vehicles (C'V), Loans against property (ILAP) and Firance Lease receivables {(FL)

s Assets other than Loans against hypothecation

The Organization has adopted the simplified approach for estimation of impairment {or such assets. Stage wise loss rates have been imputed
from CV, LAP & FL as applicable in cach of the other asscts to arvive at the cstimation of impairment for thesc asscts

There is increase in expeeted credit joss in statemenl of profit and loss account is primarily due to forward-looking impact of malerial

deterioration it the economic outlook due to the COVID-19 pandemic.
There 1s no material concentration of foss allowance at any particufar geographic arca.
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0  Financial instruments — Fair values and risk management (Continued)

th

iid. Liquidity risk

Liquidiry risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficully in meeting the obligations associated wilh its financial liabilities that
are settled by delivering cash or another financial assct. The Company’s approach to managing lguidity is. that it wilk have safticient
liguidity to meet its Habilities when they are due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or
risking damage to the Company’s reputation.

Maturity profile of financial assets and liabilities

The fellowing arc (he remaining contractual maturitics of financial assets and liabilitics at the reporting date. The amounts arc gross and
undiscounted and inchude estimated interest payments.

Contractual cash flows
March 31, 2021
INR actuals Carrying mnount Tutal Less than § £-12 months 1-2 years 23 years
mortths

Non-derivative financial assets
Loans
Cush and cash equivalens 2,827 2827 2827 - - -
Lomr agamist Hypothecation of vehicle 22 066 25,600 11,007 4,724 6,619 3256
Loan apainse Property 152718 1,57,024 5,506 2,252 5437 1,43.828
Finance Leases 44,916 43,637 11,583 8.20% £3 357 12,512
Tvade receivable 1,894 1194 1,194 - - -
Secority deposits Premises 4 24 - - - 24
Sundry Deposits ke 4t 44 - - -
Retained Interest on Loan Assigned 03 505 505 - - -
Advances to suppliers of goods and services kL) 29 29 - - -
Exgratia recevable ta7 197 - - - 197
Loans and advances to employees 3 3 5 - - -
Other Advances 3,193 3,193 1,323 - - 1,870

2,217,718

Non-erivative financial liabilicies
Non-convertible unsecured debentures 20,000 24,037 - 1,677 1,480 21,480
Term Leans irem Banks matueity 1,153,968 116,814 33320 17,136 32,871 13467
Masala Bond 10,006 13444 238 10,186 - -
ECB Borrowing from Bank 24 688 29943 2.368 2564 2,316 22,693
Security deposits from lessees 1,247 1,501 167 448 519 767
Cash Credits Faeitities 245 245 245 - - -
Loans and advances from refated party Lo03 1.003 1403 - - -
Trade Payable 2,767 2,767 2,767 - - -
Provision for expenses 466 460 466 - - -
Lease liabilities 155 133 155 - - -
Other Payables to Employees 371 371 3Tl - - -
Payable n rospect of loans assigned 138 135 135 - - -
Payable towards refund of interest - - - - - -
Advance from customers 1.942 1,942 1,042 - - -
Tterest Acerued bt not due k86 886 R36 - - -
Commitinent 77054 7,734 7734 - - -

Total YT T
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Financial instruments — Fair values and risk management (Confinued)

Liguidity visk (Contineed)

March 31, 2020
INR actuals

Non-derivative financial assets
Lms
Cash and cash equivalents
i against [ypotheeation of vehicle
Loan against Property
Finanee Leases
Trade veceivable
Security deposils Premises
Surdry Deposits
Retined Interest on Loan Assigired
Advances to supphiers ot goods and services
Loans and advances to enplovees

Other Advanues

Non-derivative financial fHabibinies
Non-corvertithle wnscenced debestres
Term Loans from Banks imatunty
Masata Bond
ECB Borrowing from Bank
Security deposus from lessees
Cash Credits Tacilides
Overdraft factlities
Loans and advances from related paity
Trade Payable
Troviston for expenses
Lease liabilivies
Other Payables to Cmployees
Bayable in respect of toans assivned
Advance from customers
Titeress Acorned but not due

Commiment

Total

Carrying amount

3,854
33,994
164752
45,937
060

34

24m

2,52,34%

20,600
1,53.466
16,000
17.500
1249
198

7

672
2,106
299
348
240

3
1,505
1,500
3,408

2,12,581

Total

20,619
1,81,900
306
8,148
1.661
198

1,505
1,500
1408

Contractuat cash flows

Less than 6

mienthes

3,854
9901
2,830
10,677
660

t
=]
=
&

s

6-12 mynths 1-2 years

8,161 11.066
2917 6407
g2 13715
40,318 40,148

386 -
2095 3,977
307 470

2.3 years

1,112

63,523

=
v
‘_u

oc
s
o

The gross inflows/{outflows} disclosed in the above table represent the contractizal undiscounted cash flows relating to the financial

liabilitics.
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0  Financial instruments — Fair values and risk management (Continted)

th

iv. Market visk

Market risk (s the risk that changes in market prices — such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates and equity prices — will affect the
Company’s income or the value of ils holdings of financial mstruments. Market risk is attributable to alt market risk sensitive financial
instruments including foreign carrency receivables and payables and long term debt,

Currency risk
The Company has its revenues and olher wansactions in its functional currency i.e. INR except immaterial expenditure in foreign currency.
Accordingly the Company has no material exposure to currency risk as on 3 1st March 2021,
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Capital Management

The Company’s objectives when managing capital are to (a) maximise shareholders value and provide benefii to the stakeholders and (b)
maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

The Company monitors capital using a ratio ol "adjusted net debt” to "udjusted equity”. For this purpose, adjusted net debt is defined as totaf
Liabilitics, comnprising interest bearing Inans and borrowings less cash and cash equivalents. Eauity comprises ail components of equily.

INR Lakls
As ac March 31, 2021 Ax at March 31, 2020
Rarrowings P,74,137 204,393
Gress Debt 1,74,L37 204,593
Eess = Cash and Cash Equivalents (2.827) {3.850)
Adjusted Net deln 1,74,31¢ 2,040,739
Total equity 61,861 57,093
Adpested Net debt to equity ratio 277 352

The Company determines the amount of capital required on the basis of operations, capilal expenditure and strategic mvestment plans. The
capital structure is monitored on the basis of net debt to eguity and maturity profile of overall debu portfolio of the Company.

The Company is subject to the capital adequacy requirements of the Reserve Bank of India (RBI). Under RBI's capital adeguacy guidelines,
the Company is reguired 1o maintain a capital adequacy ratio consisting ol Tier [and Tier 11 Capital. The total of Tier 1T Capital at any point
of time, shall not exceed 100 percent of Tier T Capital. The minimum capital ratio as prescribed by RBI guidefines and applicable to the
Company, consisting ol Ticr I and Tier I capital, shall not be less thap 13 percent of its aggregate risk weighted assels on-balance sheet and
of risk adjusted value of off-balance sheet.

The Caompany has complied will: all regulatory requirements related to capilal and capital adequacy ratios as prescribed by Ri31 as per circular
number DOR(NBFCLCC PR NO 10922 10.106/2019-20 dated 13 March 2020

Particulars 31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Regulatory capital
iy Tier I Capital (%) 25.04% 19.50%
i) Fler 1T Capatal 1%0) [.56% 6,72%

Total Capital 24.60%% 20.22%,
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52 Repayment scheduie of long term borrowing :

Loan as on 31 March 2021 are repayable as stated blow

Interest Rarce 12 years 2-3yeurs 3-5 vears Total
Floaring
Monthly 7.00% to B.45% 12,658 967 - 13,023
Quarterly 595% 10 8.50% 3321 25060 - 2021
Builet Payment ST 7.35% 32,000 - 10,000 42,000
Fixed
Monthly - - - -
Quarterly 8.80% - - - -
Bullet Pavmem 6.35% 1o 7.60% 4,000 20,0600 20,000 44 (1K)
Total 53,579 23,467 30,000 107,046
Loan as on 31 March 2028 are repayable as stated blow

Interest Rate 1-2 years 2-3 yeurs 3-3 years Tatal
Floating
Monthly 8.10% - 9.40% 16,975 8.725 133 25833
Guarterly 7.63%-5.20% 12917 5321 2,500 20,938
Hullet Payment 7.25% - B.00% - 32,000 - 32,000
Fixed
Monthly - - - -
Guarterly §.30% 2,300 - - 2,500
Bullet Payment T47% - B.83% 16,000 4,000 10,000 30000
Tatal 48,392 30,246 12,633 1,11,27¢
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53  Deferred fax

It-vEar-21
Net balance Recogniseld in Recoghised Net Deferred tax Deferred tax
April 1, 2020 profit or loss in OC1 asset Tiakility
Deferred tax asset
Lease rentals and tax depreciation 4 808 223 3,031 5,051 -
Provisiun for non-performing assets/ Expected Credit Losses 836 926 1,762 1,762 -
Provision for leave encashmem & waunty 36 21 37 37 -
ifuntenance linked reserve 21 3 24 24 -
ind AS Adjustments
Lease wemial swaight lining 1 (h - - -
Effective interest rate on borrowmgs 38 (37 I 1 -
Effective gain on loan wanster transactions (247 7 {240) - {240y
Lffective interest rate on loans and advances 10 {10} - - -
Empleyee benetits Other Comprehensive Ineome profit & loss 138 38 - - -
Lmployer benefits Other Comprehensive Income 38 (37} 1 1 + -
Discounting of security deposits paid for premises 142) 46 kS 4 -
Discounting of security deposits recerved from lessees (7} 4 £3) . (3)
fnitial direct cost salary expense - 13 13 13 -
Saluries - 8 # ¥ -
Tax zssers (Liabilities) 3454 1,204 5,658 £,4H1 243
Net tax assets 5,454 1,204 6,638 6,901 (243}
31-Mar-20
Net balance Recognised in Reengnised Net Deferred tax
April 1, 2019 profit or loss in OCE asset liability
Deferyed tax asset
Lease rentals and tax depreciation 631 11,623} + 808 4,808 -
Provision for nonsperforming asscts/Expected Credit Losses 763 71 836 836 -
Pravision for leave cncashment & pratuity 6 (28) 30 6 -
tfaimtenance linked reserve 43 (22) 24 21 -
Ind AS Adjustments
Lease rental straight lining 1 0 1 [ -
Effective inferest vate on borrowings 22 14 38 38 -
Effective gaint on loan transfer transactions (247 - (247} - {247y
Effective mierest rate on oans and advances 7 3 1 10 -
Employee benefits Other Comprehensive Income profit & loss 132) (6} (38) - (38)
Employee benetits Other Comprehensive Income 32 G 38 38 -
Discomating of scenrity deposits pard Tor premises 124) (18) (42} N (42)
Discounting of securtty depasits received from lessees (7) (0} (7 - N
‘Fax assets (Liabilities) 7,055 (1.607) & 5454 5,788 {334}
Net tax assels 7,055 (1,607} ] 5454 5,788 {334}
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54  Tax expense

(1) Amounts recognised in profit and loss

Cuirest income tax

Excess Provision for previous vears

Deferred income eax liability £ {asser), nee

Increase n deferred tax assets

Tnerease i deferved tax liabilities due to Tnd AS Adjustments
Deferred tax expense

Tax expense for the year

For the year ended
Murch 31, 2021

For the year snded
March 31, 2020

INR INR
2918 2321
- s
2,018 2339
(E,174) 1.602
30 5
(1,205) 1.607
1,713 3,046

{b) Amouwnts recognised in other comprehensive income

Remeusurements of the defined beneli plans

Tax (expense} benelit

Tax {expense) benefit]

INR INR
M (&)
S1) 16}

() Reconciliation of effective tax rate

Profit before tax
Tax using the Company’s domeshic (ax vate 25.168%,

Reduction m tax rate

Tax effect of amounts which are not deductible in caleulating taxubke income:
Corporate Social Responsibility Expenditure

[interesel expense

Others

Actuartal tosses passed through Other Comprehensive Income reclassified to Mrofit & Toss
Difference in apening batance due Non Convertible Debenture interest

Difference due to change m lax rates

Drifference due to tax andit adjustment

Opening steck difference

Short provision of tax for cartier vears

For the year ended
Marvch 3F, 2021

For the vear ended
March 31, 020

INR INR
6,477 7,387
1,630 1916

30 22
)
0 (0}
. 16)
st .
. 2013
- 16}
4
. 18
1,714 1,941

The applicable Indian corporate statutory Lax rate for the year ended March 31, 2021 and March 31, 2020 is 25.168% . The decrease in the

corporate stattory rax rate to 25, 168% is consequent to chanpes made in the Finance Act, 2020.
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35  Change in liabilities arising from financing activities

Particulars 1 April 2020 Cash Flows 31 March 2021
Term loan 23,338 =20,311 8,047
ECE Bovrowmyg - HLOGO 10,600
Non Convertible Debeature 22,000 126.000) 2,006
Loans and advances Trom related party 672 331 1.003
|ease Liability an primeipad component 33 (138) 155
Feuase Habilty Interest portion 33 {34) 1
Tatal 51,378 {30,172% 21,206

Particulars t April 2019 Cash Flows 31 March 2024
Terny loan 17,582 10,776 28338
Non Convertible Debenue 22,000 - 22,000
Loans and advances from related party 951 (279) 672
Lease Liability on principd compuonent ) 414 tn 313
Lease liabiley Interest portion 3R 3 33
Tutul 40,945 L3593 51,378
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Public disclosure on liguidity risk

Public disclosure on liquidity risk based on audited financial statement as at 31st March 2021 pursuant o RBI netification RBI2G19-20/88

- DOR.MNBFC (PDy CC. No.102/03.10.001/20:9-20 duted November 04, 2019 on Liguidity Risk Management Framework for Non-Banking

I"inancial Companies and Core Investment Companies

Funding Concentration based on significant counterparty (both deposits and borrowings).

Sr. No. Nuwuber of Significant Aunount % of Fotal deposits Yo of Total Liabilitivs
Counterparties

1 7 b3 NA T3%|

a
a
(9]
J,
=)

Total liability does not include Eouiry

Top 20 large deposits (amount in T Lakhs and % of total deposits) - Not applicabic. The Company being a Systemically Tmportant Non-
Deposit taking Non-Banking Financial Company registered with Reserve RBank of India does not accept public deposils

Top 14 borrowings { % of total borrowings) -

Sr. No. Particulars Amount % of total borrowings
1 Bank Term Loan 1,04 183 5%
2 ECB Loan 24688 %
3 NCD 20,000 %
4 Working Capitat 14,019 8%
3 Masala Bond 10,080 6%

Funding Concentration based on significant instrument/product

S, Nu, Name of the instrament/product Amounr % of Total Liabilities

| Bank Buorrowing 118,103 3%

Stock Ratios:

Sr. N, Pardculars . NA

1 Commerctal Papers to Tatad Public Fonds NA
2 Commercisl Papers 1o Totad Liabilities NA
3 Commercizl Papers w0 Total Assets NA
4 NCD { Original Maturity<[ year ) ta Total Public Funds NA
5 NCD ( Original Maturity=1 year ) te Total Liabilities NA
] NCD ( Origgmal Maturity =1 year ) (o Total Assets NA
7 Cther Shert Term Liabilitzes to Total Public Funds Na
S Other Short Term Liabilittes to Total Liabidities 40%
9 Other Short Term Liabilites 1o Totad Assets 30%

Note : 1) Total Hability does not include net worth
2) Other short term Habilities exclude NCD <1 year as considered m point 4 1 6

Institutional set-up for liguidity visk management

The company manages its liquidity risk based on the policy for Hguidity risk management which incorporates the principles laid down by RBI
in the liquidity risk management framework for NBFC'.

The Company’s Board of [Jirectors has overall responsibilities of management ol liguidity risk.

The Company has a Risk Management Committee, which reports to the Board and is responsible lor evaluating overall risks faced by
Company inchading liguidity risk

Asset Liability Committee of company consisting Directors is responsible for ensuring adherence  to the risk tolerance limit and implementing
the liguidity risk management strategy of the Company

The Company has also set up ALM suppert group.

NA- Not Applicable
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Disclosures reguired wader Master Direction - Non-Bauking Financial Company - Systemically Important Nen-Depusit taking Courpany and Breposit taking Compaay

{Reserve Bankj Directious, 2086 {Continued)
Schedute to the Balunee Sheet of a nen-deposit taking non-banking financial company

(Al amounnis are in INR Lakhs, except as stited

3

Particalars 31 Marcly 2021

Liabil

s sithe ¢
Anroant
vutstanding
Loans and advances availed by the nonbanking {financial
company inclusive of financial interest accrued therson but not paid :

{2} Debentres : Secured .
nseowed 20,000

iother than falling within the meaning of public deposits®)

(b Delerted Credits -

te) Term Louns L30,801

1) Tnter-corporate loans and borrewing -

te) {’ommercial Paper

(13 Other Loans (specityv namere) Cash Credit & Subordinate Deb parsuant to scheme of
FEOIganission

~Cash Credit & short term loans -
-Subordinate Debt -

Amount Amount
overdue outstanding

- 20,000

- [IR-1 18 Ira

31 March 2020

Amount
overdue

* Please see note 1 below

12

TParticulars

Assets side =
Break-up of Loaus and Advances inchuting bifls seceivables
Tother than those included in (3) helow]

(a) Sccured
(b} Unsecured

Break up of Leased Assets aud stock o huve and other assers
counting rowards ATC activities

(i) Lense assets including, lease renrals under sundry debtors :

{a) Finectal lease (Net Stock of Finance Lease + Sundvy Debtors) (Net of Provision}
(1) Operating fease (incl Sundry Debtors)

(11} Stock on hire mcluding lire charges under sundry debtors

{a) Assets on hire
(b) Repossessad Assets

{itt) Other lcans countmy towards AFC activities

{a) Loans where assets have been repossessed
th) Loaus ather than {4) abave including debtors (Net ol Pravision)

31 March 2021
Amount
whitstanding

44,916
978

1,74,784

31 Murch 2020
Amrount
putstanding

§,98.743
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Disclosures required under Vaster Direction - Nen-Banking Finencial Company - Systemically Imporsant Non=Deposit taking Company and Deposit taking Company

{Reserve Bank) Divections, 2016 (Continued)

Schedule tn the Balance Sheet of a non-deposit taking non-banking financiai company (Continued}

Particulars

Break-up of lnvestments
Crent Investinents :

1. Quosed
(1) Shares : {a) Equuty

(b) Preference
() Debentures and Bods
(irtd Units ol muotaal funds
{iv) Government Securities
{v}) Others (please specity)

2 Unquoted :
(1) Shares . (a) Equity

b} Preterence
tii} Debendures and Bonds
tin} Linits of mutsal funds
vy CGovernment Securitics
(v} Cnhers (please speeify)

Loirg Term investnents
1. Quoted :

(i) Shares : (a) Equity

() Prefirence
(1} Debentures snd Bonds
(i Unats of mutual finds
fiv) Government Securities
() Others {please specifi)

2. Unquetad
(1) Shaves © (a) Lquity

(b} Preforence
{11) Debentmres and Boods
{iii) Tinits of mutual funds
(v Govermnoent Sceantics
(v} Others (please specify

31 March 2021
Amount
outstanding

31 March 2020
Amount
outstanding

Particulars

Borrower group-wise classificasion of assets financed as in (2) and (3) above:

Please see Note 2 below
Category

1. Relited Parties ##
fa) Subadiaries
{bb) Compaties in the same group
{c) Ocher related parties

2. Other than related parties

Total

3E March 2021
Amount
oulstanding

wr

2,20,675

31 March 2020
Amount
oatstaniling

1,20,678




Disclosures required under Master Direction - Nen-Banking Financial Company - Systemically Impartant Non-Deposit caking Company and Deposit taking Company
(Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 (Conflinued)

Schedule to the: Bakance Sheet ¢f a now-teposit faking nun-banking financial company (Continued)

Investar group-wise elassification of all investments (current and fong term)
in shares and securities (both quoted and unquotedy:

Please sce unle 3 helow 31 Marveh 2021 31 March 2020

Market Value / Book Value Market Value /
Break ap or fair {Net of Brealcup or fair
value or NAY Provisions} value or NAY

Hook Value (Ner
Catepory of Provisions)
1. Relited Parties **
(1) Substdianies
{b) Companies in the same group
{c) Other related parties
2. Other than related partics
Tatal

*# As per Accounting Standard of TC AT (Please see note 3)

10}

{11}

31 Mareh 2021 31 March 2620

Particulars
Anount Awount

t7) Cher information

Gross Non-Performing Assets
{a) Related parties

th) Other than velated parties 15,770

26,0

P
o

Net Non-Performing Asscts

(&} Relatad partics
21,054 12 594

(b) Onher than related parties

Assets acquired in satisfaction of debt

Note :
i

ta

w

As defined in paragraph 2{1)xii) of the Nun-Banking Financial Companies Acceptance of Public Depusits (Reserve Banky Divections, 1989,

tmpairment i financial assets is calenlated as per d AS 109

All Accounting Standards and Guidance Notes by The Instiure of Chartered Accountant of Indis are applicable meluding for valuation ot mvestments and others assets as also
assets acgnired bt satsfaction ol debt. However, marker vadie in respect of guoted invesiments wd break up * fair valbe / net asset value i respect ol anquaoted iovestments showid

be disclosed of whether they are classified as long teem or current in (4) above.
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